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Allegheny’s financial results. These matters include changes involving: the terms, conditions and pricing of transmission services; construction 
of transmission enhancements; auction of long-term financial transmission rights and the allocation mechanism for the auction revenues; the 
RPM; the locational marginal pricing mechanism; transmission congestion patterns due to the proposed implementation of PJM’s regional 
transmission expansion planning protocol or other required transmission system upgrades; new generation retirement rules and reliability 
pricing issues. Furthermore, changes in PJM’s credit and collateral requirements, deterioration in the credit quality of other PJM members, 
socialization of member defaults, the withdrawal from, or addition to, PJM of other transmission owners, may have an adverse effect on 
Allegheny’s results of operations, cash flow and financial condition.  

The terms of AE Supply’s power sale agreements with West Penn could require AE Supply to sell power below its costs or prevailing 
market prices or require West Penn to purchase power at a price above which it can sell power.  

In connection with regulations governing the transition to market competition, West Penn is required to provide electricity at capped rates 
to certain retail customers who do not choose an alternate electricity generation supplier or who return to utility service from alternate suppliers 
through the end of 2010. West Penn satisfies these obligations by purchasing power under a contract with AE Supply. At times, AE Supply 
may not earn as much as it otherwise could by selling power priced at its contract rates to West Penn instead of into competitive wholesale 
markets. In addition, AE Supply’s obligations under the agreement could exceed its available generation capacity, which may require AE 
Supply to buy power at prices that are higher than the sale prices in the power supply agreements. Conversely, West Penn’s capped rates may 
be below current wholesale market prices through the applicable transition periods. As a consequence, West Penn may at times pay more for 
power than it can charge retail customers and may be unable to pass the excess costs on to its retail customers. Changes in customer switching 
behavior could also alter both AE Supply’s and the utilities’ obligations under these agreements.  

Allegheny is exposed to price volatility as a result of its participation in wholesale energy markets.  

AE Supply buys and sells electricity in wholesale markets, which exposes Allegheny to the risks of rising and falling prices in those 
markets. Among the factors that can influence such prices are:  
   

   

   

   

   

As a result of these and other factors, wholesale market prices for electricity may fluctuate substantially over relatively short periods of 
time and can be unpredictable, and may have an adverse effect on Allegheny’s results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.  

Allegheny’s use of derivative instruments for hedging purposes may result in financial losses.  

Allegheny uses derivative instruments, such as futures, swaps, forwards and financial transmission rights, to manage its commodity and 
financial market risks. Allegheny could recognize losses on these contracts as a result of volatility in the market values of the underlying 
commodities or to the extent that a counterparty fails to perform. In the absence of actively-quoted market prices and pricing information from 
external sources, the valuation of these instruments involves management’s judgment or use of estimates. Furthermore, changes in the value of 
derivatives designated under hedge accounting to the extent not fully offset by changes in the value of the hedged transaction can result in 
ineffectiveness losses that may have an adverse effect on Allegheny’s results of operations.  
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•   the balance of supply and demand for electricity, which may be influenced by any number of factors, including but not limited to 

prevailing weather and economic conditions;  
  •   fuel costs, the cost of emissions allowances and other production costs;  
  •   transmission constraints;  
  •   changes in PJM rules and other changes in the regulatory framework for wholesale power markets; and  
  •   market liquidity and the credit worthiness of market participants.  

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 1142 of 9808



Table of Contents  

Recently, members of Congress and various federal regulatory agencies, including the SEC, the Commodity Futures Trading 
Commission and the U.S. Treasury Department, have put forth proposals regarding the potential for more stringent regulation of the over-the-
counter (“OTC”) derivatives markets. If ultimately adopted, such regulations could include requirements for greater standardization and more 
centralized trading of these instruments. Some have proposed that OTC derivatives trading take place on organized exchanges. Depending upon 
its specific terms, it is possible that any new legislation or regulation in this regard could significantly increase Allegheny’s costs with respect 
to, or otherwise constrain its ability to effectively use, these instruments to manage financial risks, which could have an adverse effect on 
Allegheny’s business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.  

Changes in prevailing market conditions or in Allegheny’s access to commodities markets may make it difficult for Allegheny to hedge 
its physical power supply commitments and resource requirements.  

In the past, unfavorable market conditions, coupled with Allegheny’s credit position, at times made it difficult for Allegheny to hedge its 
power supply obligations and fuel requirements. Although substantial improvements have been made in Allegheny’s credit position over the 
past few years, significant unanticipated changes in commodity market liquidity and/or Allegheny’s access to the commodity markets, 
including as a result of any decline in Allegheny’s credit ratings (including ratings for AE, AE Supply or Monongahela), could adversely 
impact Allegheny’s ability to hedge its portfolio of physical generation assets and load obligations. In the absence of effective hedges for these 
purposes, Allegheny must balance its portfolio in the spot markets, which are volatile and can yield different results than expected. 
Furthermore, if Allegheny’s credit ratings were to decline, it would likely be required to deposit additional cash or cash-equivalent collateral 
with its hedging counterparties, which could have a negative impact on Allegheny’s liquidity and commodity trading activities.  

As widely reported, the financial markets and overall economies in the United States and abroad are currently undergoing a period of 
significant uncertainty and volatility. These conditions can adversely impact the liquidity of the commodity markets in which Allegheny may 
wish to transact and may negatively affect the ability of Allegheny’s counterparties to honor their commitments. This, in turn, could inhibit 
Allegheny’s ability to transact in the desired timeframe or at a satisfactory price, which could increase Allegheny’s exposure to commodity 
price fluctuations and may have an adverse effect on Allegheny’s business, results of operations, cash flow and financial conditions.  

Allegheny’s policies and procedures cannot eliminate all risk involved in its energy commodity activities.  

Allegheny may not always hedge the entire exposure of its operations to commodity price volatility. Furthermore, Allegheny’s risk 
management, wholesale marketing, fuel procurements and energy trading activities, including its decisions to enter into power sales or 
purchase agreements, rely on models that depend on the judgments and assumptions regarding factors such as generation facility availability, 
future market prices, weather and the demand for electricity and other energy-related commodities. Many of these models are developed 
utilizing statistical relationships between numerous interrelated factors. Such relationships can change significantly in an unpredictable manner, 
especially during periods of significant volatility. Even when Allegheny’s policies and procedures are followed and decisions are made based 
on these models, Allegheny’s policies and procedures cannot eliminate all risk involved in its energy commodity activities. Allegheny’s 
financial position and results of operations may be adversely affected if the judgments and assumptions underlying its models prove to be 
inaccurate or commodity prices otherwise fluctuate in ways that Allegheny does not anticipate.  

Failure to retain and attract key executive officers and other skilled professionals and technical employees could have an adverse effect 
on Allegheny’s operations.  

Allegheny’s business is dependent on its ability to recruit, retain and motivate employees. Competition for skilled employees in some 
areas is high. At the same time, Allegheny has an aging workforce. The inability to  
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attract new employees, whether to appropriately replace retiring and other departing employees or otherwise, and to retain and motivate 
existing employees may have an adverse effect on Allegheny’s business, results of operations, cash flow and financial condition.  

Allegheny is currently involved in significant litigation that, if not decided favorably to Allegheny, could have a material adverse effect 
on its results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.  

Allegheny is currently involved in a number of lawsuits, some of which may be significant. Allegheny intends to vigorously pursue these 
matters, but the results of these lawsuits cannot be determined. Adverse outcomes in these lawsuits could require Allegheny to make significant 
expenditures and may have an adverse effect on its financial condition, cash flow and results of operations. See “Environmental Matters” and 
“Legal Proceedings.”  

The Distribution Companies and other AE subsidiaries are and may become subject to legal claims arising from the presence of 
asbestos or other regulated substances at some of their facilities.  

The Distribution Companies have been named as defendants in pending asbestos litigation involving multiple plaintiffs and multiple 
defendants. In addition, asbestos and other regulated substances are, and may continue to be, present at Allegheny-owned facilities where 
suitable alternative materials are not available. Allegheny’s management believes that any remaining asbestos at Allegheny-owned facilities is 
contained. The continued presence of asbestos and other regulated substances at Allegheny-owned facilities, however, could result in additional 
actions being brought against Allegheny. See “Legal Proceedings” and consolidated financial statement Note 19, “Asset Retirement 
Obligations (“ARO”).”  

Adverse investment returns and other factors may increase Allegheny’s pension liability and pension funding requirements.  

Substantially all of Allegheny’s employees are covered by a defined benefit pension plan. At present, the pension plan is underfunded in 
that the projected pension benefit obligation exceeds the aggregate fair value of plan assets. Recent results in the capital markets have increased 
the level of underfunding in the pension plan. Under applicable law, Allegheny is required to make cash contributions to the extent necessary to 
comply with minimum funding requirements imposed by regulatory requirements. The amount of and timing of such required cash contribution
(s) is based on an actuarial valuation of the plan. The funded status of the plan can be affected by investment returns on plan assets, discount 
rates, mortality rates of plan participants, pension reform legislation and a number of other factors. There can be no assurance that the value of 
Allegheny’s pension plan assets will be sufficient to cover future liabilities. Although Allegheny has made significant contributions to its 
pension plan in recent years, it is possible that Allegheny could incur a significant pension liability adjustment, or could be required to make 
significant additional cash contributions to its plan, which would reduce the cash available for business and other needs.  

Energy companies are subject to adverse publicity, which may make Allegheny vulnerable to negative regulatory and litigation 
outcomes.  

The energy sector has been the subject of negative publicity, most recently in the context of the dialogue regarding climate change. 
Allegheny has come under some scrutiny in this regard, and also has faced public opposition in connection with its transmission expansion 
initiatives, as well as certain of its demand-side conservation efforts and ordinary utility rate increases. Negative publicity of this nature may 
make legislators, regulators and courts less likely to take a favorable view of energy companies in general and/or Allegheny, specifically, 
which could cause them to make decisions or take actions that are adverse to Allegheny.  
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Risks Related to Allegheny’s Leverage and Financing Needs  

Allegheny is dependent on its ability to successfully access capital markets. Any inability to access capital may adversely affect 
Allegheny’s business.  

Allegheny relies on access to the capital markets as a source of liquidity and to satisfy any of its capital requirements that are not met by 
the cash flow from its operations. Capital market disruptions, decreases in market liquidity or the availability of credit, a downgrade in 
Allegheny’s credit ratings or other negative developments affecting Allegheny’s access to capital markets, could increase Allegheny’s cost of 
borrowing or could adversely affect its ability to access one or more financial markets. Causes of disruption to the capital markets could 
include, but are not limited to:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

As widely reported, the financial markets and overall economies in the United States and abroad are currently undergoing a period of 
significant uncertainty and volatility. As a result, Allegheny’s management has placed increased emphasis on monitoring the risks associated 
with the current environment. At this point in time, there has not been a materially negative impact on Allegheny’s liquidity. However, there 
can be no assurance that the cost or availability of future borrowings or other financings, if any, will not be impacted by the ongoing or future 
capital market disruptions.  

AE’s and AE Supply’s revolving credit facilities currently are well-diversified, including more than 20 lenders at December 31, 2009. 
Additionally, TrAIL Company and Monongahela recently entered into separate revolving credit facilities, both of which also include a diverse 
group of lenders. Allegheny currently anticipates that these lenders will participate in future requests for funding. However, there can be no 
assurance that further deterioration in the credit markets and overall economy will not affect the ability of Allegheny’s lenders to meet their 
funding commitments. Additionally, Allegheny’s lenders have the ability to transfer their commitments to other institutions, and the risk that 
committed funds may not be available under distressed market conditions could be exacerbated to the extent that consolidation of the 
commitments under Allegheny’s facilities or among its lenders occurs.  

Allegheny’s leverage could adversely affect its ability to operate successfully and meet contractual obligations.  

Allegheny has substantial leverage. At December 31, 2009, Allegheny had approximately $4.56 billion of debt on a consolidated basis. 
Approximately $1.85 billion represented debt of AE Supply and AGC, $455 million represented debt of TrAIL Company, and the remainder 
constituted debt of one or more of the Distribution Companies or their subsidiaries.  

Allegheny’s leverage could have important consequences to it. For example, it could:  
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  •   a recession, including the current recession, or other economic slowdown;  
  •   the bankruptcy of one or more energy companies or highly-leveraged companies;  
  •   significant increases in the prices for oil or other fuel;  
  •   a terrorist attack or threatened attacks;  
  •   a significant transmission failure; or  
  •   changes in technology.  

  
•   require Allegheny to dedicate a substantial portion of its cash flow to payments on its debt, thereby reducing the availability of its 

cash flow for working capital, capital expenditures and other general corporate purposes;  

  
•   limit Allegheny’s flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in its business, regulatory environment and the industry in which 

it operates;  
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Covenants contained in certain of Allegheny’s financing agreements restrict its operating, financing and investing activities.  

Allegheny’s principal financing agreements contain restrictive covenants that limit its ability to, among other things:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

These agreements may limit Allegheny’s ability to implement strategic decisions, including its ability to access capital markets or sell 
assets without using the proceeds to reduce debt. In addition, Allegheny is required to meet certain financial tests under some of its loan 
agreements, including interest coverage ratios and leverage ratios. Allegheny’s failure to comply with the covenants contained in its financing 
agreements could result in an event of default, which may have an adverse effect on its financial condition.  

A downgrade or negative outlook in Allegheny’s credit ratings could increase its financing costs and the cost of maintaining certain 
contractual relationships.  

Allegheny cannot be assured that any of its current credit ratings will remain in effect for any given period of time or that a rating will not 
be lowered or withdrawn entirely by a credit rating agency if, in the agency’s judgment, circumstances in the future so warrant. Among other 
reasons, Allegheny’s credit ratings may change as a result of the differing methodologies used by various rating agencies or as a result of 
changes to those methodologies. Any downgrade or negative outlook in Allegheny’s credit ratings may increase its financing costs and the cost 
of maintaining certain contractual relationships. Among other things, if Allegheny’s credit ratings were to decline, it would likely be required 
to deposit additional cash or cash-equivalent collateral with its hedging counterparties, which would have a negative impact on Allegheny’s 
liquidity. Thus, a downgrade or negative outlook in Allegheny’s credit ratings may have an adverse effect on its business, results of operations, 
cash flows and financial condition.  

AE has no income or cash flow apart from dividends paid or other obligations due it from its subsidiaries.  

AE is a holding company and has no operations of its own. As a result, its ability to meet its financial obligations associated with its 
indebtedness and to pay dividends on its common stock is primarily dependent upon the earnings and cash flow of its operating subsidiaries 
and their ability to pay dividends or make other distributions to, or repay loans from, AE. AE’s subsidiaries are distinct entities that have no 
obligations to make dividends or other distributions to AE, and their ability to do so is contingent upon their respective earnings and a number 
of other business considerations, including in some circumstances regulatory constraints.  

ITEM  1B.    UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS  

None.  
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  •   place Allegheny at a competitive disadvantage compared to its competitors that have less leverage;  
  •   limit Allegheny’s ability to borrow additional funds; and  
  •   increase Allegheny’s vulnerability to general adverse economic, regulatory and industry conditions.  

  •   borrow funds;  
  •   incur liens and guarantee debt;  

  
•   enter into a merger or other change of control transaction (other than the proposed merger with First Energy, for which Allegheny has 

obtained the requisite consent of the relevant lenders);  
  •   make investments;  
  •   dispose of assets; and  
  •   pay dividends and other distributions on its equity securities.  

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 1146 of 9808



Table of Contents  

ITEM 2.    PROPERTIES  

Substantially all of Monongahela’s, Potomac Edison’s and West Penn’s properties are held subject to the lien of indentures securing their 
first mortgage bonds. Some of AE Supply’s properties are subject to liens of various relative priorities securing debt obligations. Specifically, 
certain of the properties and other assets owned by AE Supply and Monongahela that were financed by solid waste disposal and pollution 
control notes are subject to liens securing the obligations under those notes.  

In many cases, the properties of Monongahela, Potomac Edison, West Penn and other AE subsidiaries may be subject to certain 
reservations, minor encumbrances and title defects that do not materially interfere with their use. The indenture under which AGC’s unsecured 
debentures are issued prohibits AGC, with certain limited exceptions, from incurring or permitting liens to exist on any of its properties or 
assets unless the debentures are contemporaneously secured equally and ratably with all other debt secured by the lien. Most T&D lines, some 
substations and switching stations and some ancillary facilities at generation facilities are on lands of others, in some cases by sufferance but, in 
most instances, pursuant to leases, easements, rights-of-way, permits or other arrangements, many of which have not been recorded and some 
of which are not evidenced by formal grants. In some cases, no examination of titles has been made as to lands on which T&D lines and 
substations are located. Each of the Distribution Companies possesses the power of eminent domain with respect to its public utility operations. 
See “Business—Electric Facilities,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and 
Capital Resources” and consolidated financial statement Note 8, “Capitalization and Debt.”  

Allegheny’s principal corporate headquarters is located in Greensburg, Pennsylvania, in a building that is owned by West Penn. 
Allegheny also has a corporate center located in Fairmont, West Virginia, in a building owned by Monongahela. Other ancillary offices exist 
throughout the Distribution Companies’ service territories. Additionally, Allegheny began construction in 2009 of a facility located in 
Fairmont, West Virginia that will serve as the center for Allegheny’s multi-state transmission functions. Construction of this facility is expected 
to be completed in the fall of 2010.  

ITEM 3.    LEGAL PROCEEDINGS  

Allegheny is involved in a number of significant legal proceedings. In certain cases, plaintiffs seek to recover large and sometimes 
unspecified damages, and some matters may be unresolved for several years. Allegheny cannot currently determine the outcome of the 
proceedings described below or the ultimate amount of potential losses. Pursuant to SFAS 5, management provides for estimated losses to the 
extent that information becomes available indicating that losses are probable and that the amounts are reasonably estimable. Additional losses 
may have an adverse effect on Allegheny’s results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.  

Shareholder Actions  

Purported AE shareholders have filed derivative and class action lawsuits in state courts in Pennsylvania and Maryland against AE and 
each of the members of AE’s Board of Directors that seek to enjoin Allegheny’s proposed merger with FirstEnergy and, in some cases, 
damages in the event that the merger is completed. Allegheny intends to vigorously defend against these claims but cannot predict their 
outcome.  

Nevada Power Contracts  

On December 7, 2001, Nevada Power Company (“NPC”) filed a complaint with the FERC against AE Supply seeking action by the 
FERC to modify prices payable to AE Supply under three trade confirmations  
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between Merrill Lynch and NPC. NPC’s claim was based, in part, on the assertion that dysfunctional California spot markets had an adverse 
effect on the prices NPC was able to negotiate with Merrill Lynch under the contracts. NPC filed substantially identical complaints against a 
number of other energy suppliers. On December 19, 2002, the Administrative Law Judge (“ALJ”) issued findings that no contract modification 
was warranted. The ALJ determined in favor of NPC that AE Supply, rather than Merrill Lynch, was a proper subject of NPC’s complaint. On 
June 26, 2003, the FERC affirmed the ALJ’s decision upholding the long-term contracts negotiated between NPC and Merrill Lynch, among 
others. The FERC did not decide whether AE Supply, rather than Merrill Lynch, was the real party in interest. On November 10, 2003, the 
FERC issued an order, on rehearing, affirming its conclusion that the long-term contracts should not be modified. Snohomish County, NPC and 
other parties filed petitions for review of the FERC’s June 26, 2003 order with the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit (the 
“NPC Petitions”). The NPC Petitions were consolidated in the Ninth Circuit. On December 19, 2006, the Ninth Circuit issued an opinion 
remanding the case to the FERC to determine, in accordance with the guidance set forth in the Ninth Circuit’s opinion, whether the FERC 
utilized the appropriate standard of review in deciding various claims, including NPC’s complaint. On May 3, 2007, AE Supply and others 
filed a petition to appeal the Ninth Circuit’s ruling to the United States Supreme Court. On June 26, 2008, the United States Supreme Court 
issued an opinion that rejected the Ninth Circuit’s reasoning, with instructions that the case be remanded to the FERC for amplification or 
clarification of its findings on two issues set forth in the opinion. The case has been remanded to the FERC, and the FERC issued an order on 
December 18, 2008 that provides for a paper hearing on the two issues identified by the United States Supreme Court, with initial filings due 
within 90 days and reply submissions within 90 days thereafter. However, the order holds those deadlines in abeyance, contingent upon 
settlement discussions between the parties, and a subsequent order lifting that stay has not been entered.  

Allegheny intends to vigorously defend against this action but cannot predict its outcome.  

Claims by California Parties  

On October 5, 2006, several California governmental and utility parties presented AE Supply with a settlement proposal to resolve 
alleged overcharges for power sales by AE Supply to the California Energy Resource Scheduling division of the California Department of 
Water Resources (“CDWR”) during 2001. The settlement proposal claims that CDWR is owed approximately $190 million for these alleged 
overcharges. This proposal was made in the context of mediation efforts by the FERC and the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth 
Circuit in pending proceedings to resolve all outstanding refund and other claims, including claims of alleged price manipulation in the 
California energy markets during 2000 and 2001. The Ninth Circuit has since remanded one of those proceedings to the FERC, which arises 
out of claims previously filed with the FERC by the California Attorney General on behalf of certain California parties against various sellers 
in the California wholesale power market, including AE Supply (the Lockyer case). A judge has been assigned to the Lockyer case, and a 
hearing is now set for April 20, 2010, with an initial decision date of September 14, 2010. AE Supply and several other sellers have filed 
motions to dismiss the Lockyer case that are now pending before the assigned judge. On June 2, 2009, the California Attorney General, on 
behalf of certain California parties, filed a second lawsuit with FERC against various sellers, including AE Supply (the Brown case), again 
seeking refunds for trades in the California energy markets during 2000 and 2001. The above-noted trades with CDWR are the basis for the 
joining of AE Supply in this new lawsuit. AE Supply has filed a motion to dismiss the Brown case that is pending before FERC. No scheduling 
order has been entered in the Brown case. Allegheny intends to vigorously defend against these claims but cannot predict their outcome.  

Claims Related to Alleged Asbestos Exposure  

The Distribution Companies have been named as defendants, along with multiple other defendants, in pending asbestos cases alleging 
bodily injury involving multiple plaintiffs and multiple sites. These suits have  
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been brought mostly by seasonal contractors’ employees and do not involve allegations of the manufacture, sale or distribution of asbestos-
containing products by Allegheny. These asbestos suits arise out of historical operations and are related to the installation and removal of 
asbestos-containing materials at Allegheny’s generation facilities. Allegheny’s historical operations were insured by various foreign and 
domestic insurers, including Lloyd’s of London. Asbestos-related litigation expenses have to date been reimbursed in full by recoveries from 
these historical insurers, and Allegheny believes that it has sufficient insurance to respond fully to the asbestos suits. Certain insurers, however, 
have contested their obligations to pay for the future defense and settlement costs relating to the asbestos suits. Allegheny is currently involved 
in two asbestos and/or environmental insurance-related actions, Certain Underwriters at Lloyd’s, London et al. v. Allegheny Energy, Inc. et al., 
Case No. 21-C-03-16733 (Washington County, Md.) and Monongahela Power Company et al. v. Certain Underwriters at Lloyd’s London and 
London Market Companies, et al ., Civil Action No. 03-C-281 (Monongalia County, W.Va.). Allegheny and Liberty Mutual Insurance 
Company resolved their dispute and, therefore, Civil Action No. 07-3168-BLS was voluntarily dismissed. The parties are seeking a declaration 
of coverage under the policies for asbestos-related and environmental claims.  

Allegheny does not believe that the existence or pendency of either the asbestos suits or the actions involving its insurance will have a 
material impact on its consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. As of December 31, 2009, Allegheny’s total number 
of claims alleging exposure to asbestos was 861 in West Virginia and four in Pennsylvania. Allegheny intends to vigorously pursue these 
matters but cannot predict their outcomes.  

Environmental Matters  

In addition to the matters described above, Allegheny is involved in litigation relating to compliance with certain environmental laws and 
regulations. See “Environmental Matters.”  

Ordinary Course of Business  

AE and its subsidiaries are from time to time involved in litigation and other legal disputes in the ordinary course of business.  

ITEM 4.    RESERVED.  
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PART II  

ITEM 5.    MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUIT Y AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS  

AE’s common stock is publicly traded. “AYE” is the trading symbol for AE’s common stock on the New York Stock Exchange. As of 
February 24, 2010, there were 17,130 holders of record of AE’s common stock. The table below shows the high and low sales prices of AE’s 
common stock in composite trading for the periods indicated:  
   

In 2009, AE declared cash dividends of $0.15 per share on its common stock that were payable on March 23, June 22, September 28 and 
December 28, 2009, to shareholders of record on March 9, June 8, September 14 and December 14, 2009, respectively. In 2008, AE declared 
cash dividends of $0.15 per share on its common stock that were payable on March 24, June 23, September 29 and December 29, 2008, to 
shareholders of record on March 10, June 9, September 15 and December 15, 2008, respectively.  

The amount and timing of dividends payable on AE’s common stock are within the sole discretion of AE’s Board of Directors. The Board 
of Directors reviews the dividend rate periodically in light of Allegheny’s financial position and results of operations, legislative and regulatory 
developments affecting Allegheny and the industry in general, overall market conditions and any other factors that the Board of Directors 
deems relevant. See consolidated financial statement Note 15, “Dividend Restrictions.”  
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     2009    2008 
     High    Low    High    Low 

1 Quarter     $ 35.97    $ 20.32    $ 64.75    $ 45.46 
2 Quarter     $ 29.85    $ 22.70    $ 55.98    $ 49.38 
3 Quarter     $ 27.70    $ 23.42    $ 51.14    $ 33.94 
4 Quarter     $ 27.15    $ 21.84    $ 36.61    $ 23.86 

st 

nd 

rd 

th 
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ALLEGHENY ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
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ITEM 6.    SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

      2009   2008   2007   2006   2005   
(In millions, except per share amounts)                       

Income statement data for the year ended December 31:            

Operating revenues    $ 3,426.8   $ 3,385.9   $ 3,307.0   $ 3,121.5   $ 3,037.9    
Operating expenses    $ 2,507.0   $ 2,576.4   $ 2,489.7   $ 2,389.2   $ 2,501.1    
Operating income    $ 919.8   $ 809.5   $ 817.3   $ 732.3   $ 536.8    
Income from continuing operations attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc.    $ 392.8   $ 395.4   $ 412.2   $ 318.7   $ 75.1    
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax    $ —     $ —     $ —     $ 0.6   $ (6.1 )  
Net income attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc.    $ 392.8   $ 395.4   $ 412.2   $ 319.3   $ 63.1    
Weighted average number of diluted shares outstanding      170.0     170.0     169.5     168.7     158.6    
Earnings per share attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc.:            

Income from continuing operations attributable to Allegheny Energy, 
Inc.            

—Basic    $ 2.32   $ 2.35   $ 2.48   $ 1.94   $ 0.48    
—Diluted    $ 2.31   $ 2.33   $ 2.43   $ 1.89   $ 0.47    

Net income attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc.            

—Basic    $ 2.32   $ 2.35   $ 2.48   $ 1.94   $ 0.40    
—Diluted    $ 2.31   $ 2.33   $ 2.43   $ 1.89   $ 0.40    

Dividends per share    $ 0.60   $ 0.60   $ 0.15   $ —     $ —      
Balance sheet data at December 31:            

Property, plant and equipment, net    $ 8,957.1   $ 8,002.2   $ 7,196.6   $ 6,512.9   $ 6,277.4    
Total assets    $ 11,589.1   $ 10,811.0   $ 9,906.6   $ 8,552.4   $ 8,558.8    
Short-term debt    $ —     $ —     $ 10.0   $ —     $ —      
Long-term debt due within one year    $ 140.8   $ 93.9   $ 95.4   $ 201.2   $ 477.2    
Long-term debt    $ 4,417.0   $ 4,115.9   $ 3,943.9   $ 3,384.0   $ 3,624.5    
Total equity    $ 3,128.1   $ 2,855.7   $ 2,548.6   $ 2,115.1   $ 1,741.3    
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ITEM 7.    MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  

The primary purpose of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) is to 
provide information regarding Allegheny’s past and expected future performance in implementing its strategies and managing its risks and 
challenges. Allegheny’s MD&A includes the following sections:  
   

   

   

   

   

OVERVIEW  

Allegheny is an integrated energy business that owns and operates electric generation facilities and delivers electric services to customers 
in Pennsylvania, West Virginia, Maryland and Virginia primarily through AE’s various directly and indirectly owned subsidiaries.  

Allegheny changed the composition of its business segments during the fourth quarter of 2009, consistent with changes made to its 
management structure and the internal financial reporting used by its chief operating decision maker to regularly assess the performance of the 
business and allocate resources.  

Prior to the change in composition of segments, the Generation and Marketing segment included the regulated generation operations of 
Monongahela and the unregulated operations of AE Supply, and the Delivery and Services segment included the regulated operations of the 
Distribution Companies (excluding Monongahela’s generation operations), TrAIL Company and PATH, LLC.  

The changes in Allegheny’s reportable segments during 2009 consisted primarily of the following:  
   

   

   

   
61  

  •   “Overview”  includes a discussion of overall challenges and recent development and initiatives.  

  
•   “Results of Operations” provides an overview of Allegheny’s operating results in 2009, 2008 and 2007, including a review of 

earnings and results by reportable segment.  

  

•   “Financial Condition—Liquidity and Capital Resources” provides an analysis of Allegheny’s liquidity position and credit profile, 
including its sources of cash (including bank credit facilities and sources of operating cash flow) and uses of cash (including 
contractual obligations and capital expenditure requirements) and the key risks and uncertainties that impact Allegheny’s past and 
future liquidity position and financial condition. This subsection also includes a listing and discussion of Allegheny’s current credit 
ratings.  

  •   “Market Risk Information”  provides an explanation of Allegheny’s risk management programs relating to market risk and credit risk. 

  
•   “Application of Critical Accounting Policies” provides an overview of the accounting policies that are particularly important to the 

results of operations and financial condition of Allegheny and that require management to make significant estimates, assumptions or 
other judgments.  

  
•   Monongahela’s regulated generation operations were moved from the Generation and Marketing segment to the Delivery and 

Services segment.  
  •   The Generation and Marketing segment was renamed the Merchant Generation segment.  
  •   The Delivery and Services segment was renamed the Regulated Operations segment.  
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Allegheny’s business segments are as follows:  

Merchant Generation Segment  

The principal companies and operations in Allegheny’s Merchant Generation segment include the following:  
   

   

Regulated Operations Segment  

The principal companies and operations in Allegheny’s Regulated Operations segment include the following:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

The Regulated Operations segment includes the operations of the Virginia distribution business, which is expected to be sold following 
the completion of applicable regulatory proceedings, as described in consolidated financial statement Note 3, “Assets Held for Sale.”  

All of Allegheny’s generation facilities are located within the PJM market. To facilitate the economic dispatch of generation, AE Supply 
and Monongahela sell power into the competitive wholesale energy market operated by PJM and purchase power from the PJM market to meet 
their obligations to supply power. See “Business” for more information regarding Allegheny’s business and the segments and subsidiaries 
discussed above.  
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•   AE Supply owns, operates and manages electric generation facilities. AE Supply also purchases and sells energy and energy-related 

commodities. AE Supply markets its electric generation capacity to various customers and markets, including supplying certain 
obligations of West Penn and Potomac Edison.  

  

•   AGC is owned approximately 59% by AE Supply and approximately 41% by Monongahela. AGC’s sole asset is a 40% undivided 
interest in the Bath County, Virginia pumped-storage hydroelectric generation facility and its connecting transmission facilities. All 
of AGC’s revenues are derived from sales of its 1,109 MW share of generation capacity from the Bath County generation facility to 
AE Supply and Monongahela. AGC provides its share of the power generated by the Bath County generation facility to AE Supply 
and Monongahela in proportion to their ownership interests. Monongahela’s ownership interest in AGC is reflected as noncontrolling 
interest within the Merchant Generation segment and as an equity investment within the Regulated Operations segment.  

  
•   The Distribution Companies include Monongahela, Potomac Edison and West Penn. Each of the Distribution Companies is a public 

utility company and does business under the trade name Allegheny Power. Allegheny Power’s principal business is the operation of 
electric public utility systems.  

  
•   Monongahela operates an electric T&D business and also owns and operates electric generation facilities in northern West 

Virginia.  
  •   Potomac Edison operates an electric T&D business in portions of West Virginia, Maryland and Virginia.  
  •   West Penn operates an electric T&D business in southwestern, south-central and northern Pennsylvania.  
  •   TrAIL Company was formed in 2006 to develop, construct and operate transmission expansion projects, including the TrAIL Project. 

  
•   PATH, LLC was formed in 2007 by Allegheny and a subsidiary of American Electric Power Company, Inc. (“AEP”) to develop, 

construct and operate the PATH Project. PATH, LLC is a series limited liability company. The “West Virginia Series” is owned 
equally by Allegheny and a subsidiary of AEP. The “Allegheny Series”  is 100% owned by Allegheny.  
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Shared Services  

AESC is a service company for AE that employs substantially all of the Allegheny personnel who provide services to AE and its 
subsidiaries, including AE Supply, AGC, the Distribution Companies, TrAIL Company, PATH, LLC and their respective subsidiaries. These 
companies reimburse AESC at cost for services provided to them by AESC’s employees. AESC had 4,383 employees as of December 31, 
2009.  

Business Challenges  

Allegheny faces a number of risks in its generation business, including electricity and capacity price risk, fuel supply and price risk, 
generating plant performance and evolving environmental and other regulations and requirements.  

Allegheny has executed and continues to enter into contracts for energy sales and fuel supply purchase at varying prices and duration 
within established policies and guidelines. Allegheny’s future profitability will be affected by prevailing market conditions and the extent and 
the prices at which it has entered into intermediate or long-term power sales and fuel purchase agreements.  

Allegheny manages the risks described above through various means including risk management programs that are designed to monitor 
and measure exposure to earnings and cash flow volatility related to changes in energy and fuel prices, counterparty credit quality and the 
operating performance of its generating units.  

A significant challenge that Allegheny faces in its regulated operations business is to maintain high quality customer service and 
reliability in a cost-effective manner. Allegheny’s regulated operations are rate-regulated and are subject to regulatory risk with respect to costs 
that may be recovered and investment returns that may be collected through customer rates in each of its operating jurisdictions. As discussed 
in consolidated financial statement Note 6, “Regulatory Assets and Liabilities,” there are a number of ongoing regulatory matters that may 
affect Allegheny’s recovery of its costs. See “Risk Factors” for additional information regarding these and other risks that Allegheny faces in 
its business.  

The ongoing effects of the economic recession made 2009 a challenging year for Allegheny. Significantly lower market prices for 
electricity in 2009 reduced realized revenues from the sale of unhedged generation output and, at times, caused Allegheny’s coal-fired plants to 
be placed in reserve status when they were otherwise available to generate power. The reduced demand caused by economic conditions also 
affected Allegheny’s regulated operations, with decreases in the demand for electricity in all customer categories, especially in the industrial 
sector.  

While the effects of the economy adversely impacted Allegheny in 2009, Allegheny:  
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•   achieved the best safety performance in recent years in its delivery business and continued to improve safety performance in its 

generation business;  
  •   completed its scrubber construction projects at Fort Martin and Hatfield’s Ferry on time and under budget;  
  •   succeeded in controlling operation and maintenance costs;  

  
•   refinanced $843 million of indebtedness, obtained additional liquidity, extended debt maturities and securitized the remaining Fort 

Martin scrubber costs;  

  
•   moved forward with the construction of its TrAIL transmission expansion project, which remains on schedule for a June 2011 in-

service date;  

  
•   settled in both West Virginia and Virginia on its requests for fuel and purchase power cost recovery and filed a base rate case in West 

Virginia, for which an agreed-upon procedural schedule sets evidentiary hearings in early April 2010;  
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Allegheny plans to continue its focus on the following areas in 2010:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

In addition, Allegheny will devote significant attention to matters relating to the proposed merger with FirstEnergy, including efforts to 
manage certain of the risks described in “Risk Factors.”  

Liquidity  

Allegheny relies on access to the financial markets as a source of liquidity. Allegheny strengthened its liquidity position and significantly 
reduced its intermediate term refinancing risk in 2009, during which it refinanced and extended the maturities of approximately $843 million of 
debt that had been scheduled to mature in 2011 and 2012. In addition, AE Supply entered into a new $1 billion revolving credit facility that 
matures in 2012, which replaced its previous $400 million revolving credit facility that was scheduled to mature in 2011, and Monongahela 
entered into a new $110 million senior unsecured revolving credit facility that matures in 2012. In December 2009, MP Environmental Funding 
LLC and PE Environmental Funding LLC issued $64.4 million and $21.5 million of senior secured environmental control bonds, respectively. 
Proceeds from the bonds represent restricted funds and will be used to fund certain costs to construct and install Scrubbers at Fort Martin, as 
well as related financing costs. In addition, on January 25, 2010, TrAIL Company issued $450 million of senior unsecured notes due in 2015 
and also entered into a new $350 million senior unsecured revolving credit facility with a three-year maturity. TrAIL Company used the net 
proceeds from the sale of the notes, together with funds from its new credit facility, to repay all amounts outstanding under the $550 million 
senior unsecured credit facility that it entered into in 2008.  
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  •   launched several energy efficiency and conservation programs in Maryland and Pennsylvania; and  

  
•   held four auctions to procure power to serve Pennsylvania customers for the period after rate caps expire at the end of 2010, such that 

its Pennsylvania utility now has two-thirds of 2011 residential power under contract.  

  •   maintaining its investment grade credit ratings and strengthening its financial condition and liquidity position;  
  •   controlling costs and spending throughout the organization while maintaining high levels of customer satisfaction;  
  •   continuing progress on transmission expansion projects;  
  •   resolving its West Virginia base rate case successfully;  
  •   developing and implementing energy efficiency and conservation programs;  
  •   managing the transition to market-based rates in Pennsylvania;  
  •   maintaining a culture that emphasizes the importance of safety throughout its organization; and  
  •   monitoring potential environmental legislation and regulations.  
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  

As described in consolidated financial statement Note 12, “Segment Information,” Allegheny changed the composition of its segments 
during the fourth quarter of 2009, consistent with changes made to the internal reporting used by its chief operating decision maker to regularly 
assess the performance of the business. All disclosures relating to Allegheny’s segments for 2008 and 2007 have been reclassified to conform 
to the 2009 presentations. Earnings attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc. by segment for the years ended December 31 were as follows:  
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(In millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Earnings by Segment:           

Merchant Generation     $ 234.0    $ 324.3    $ 294.0 
Regulated Operations       157.9      70.2      117.2 
Elimination of intercompany transactions       0.9      0.9      1.0 

                     

Consolidated net income attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc.     $ 392.8    $ 395.4    $ 412.2 
                     

Basic earnings per share     $ 2.32    $ 2.35    $ 2.48 
Diluted earnings per share     $ 2.31    $ 2.33    $ 2.43 
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Summary of Operating Results  

Financial results for each segment were as follows:  
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(In millions)    Merchant  
Generation   

  Regulated 
Operations   

  
Eliminations   

  Allegheny  
Consolidated   2009          

Operating revenues     $ 1,608.6      $ 3,051.2      $ (1,233.0 )    $ 3,426.8    
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Operating expenses:           

Fuel       675.5        211.1        —          886.6    
Purchased power and transmission       26.4        1,702.8        (1,227.2 )      502.0    
Deferred energy costs, net       —          (64.4 )      —          (64.4 )  
Operations and maintenance       247.0        445.9        (5.8 )      687.1    
Depreciation and amortization       106.8        177.1        (1.8 )      282.1    
Taxes other than income taxes       47.2        166.4        —          213.6    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total operating expenses       1,102.9        2,638.9        (1,234.8 )      2,507.0    
Operating income       505.7        412.3        1.8        919.8    
Other income (expense), net       1.0        17.1        (11.1 )      7.0    
Interest expense       134.9        157.4        (1.2 )      291.1    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Income before income taxes       371.8        272.0        (8.1 )      635.7    
Income tax expense       128.8        112.8        —          241.6    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net income       243.0        159.2        (8.1 )      394.1    
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests       (9.0 )      (1.3 )      9.0        (1.3 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net income attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc.     $ 234.0      $ 157.9      $ 0.9      $ 392.8    
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

2008                          

Operating revenues     $ 1,792.9      $ 2,855.3      $ (1,262.3 )    $ 3,385.9    
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Operating expenses:           

Fuel       793.4        287.5        —          1,080.9    
Purchased power and transmission       30.3        1,622.3        (1,257.0 )      395.6    
Deferred energy costs, net       —          (63.7 )      —          (63.7 )  
Operations and maintenance       222.1        458.0        (5.3 )      674.8    
Depreciation and amortization       94.1        181.9        (2.1 )      273.9    
Taxes other than income taxes       47.6        167.3        —          214.9    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total operating expenses       1,187.5        2,653.3        (1,264.4 )      2,576.4    
Operating income       605.4        202.0        2.1        809.5    
Other income (expense), net       7.8        28.6        (14.1 )      22.3    
Interest expense       99.7        135.6        (3.4 )      231.9    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Income before income taxes       513.5        95.0        (8.6 )      599.9    
Income tax expense       179.7        24.4        —          204.1    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net income       333.8        70.6        (8.6 )      395.8    
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests       (9.5 )      (0.4 )      9.5        (0.4 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net income attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc.     $ 324.3      $ 70.2      $ 0.9      $ 395.4    
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 1157 of 9808



Table of Contents  

   
67  

(In millions)    Merchant  
Generation   

  Regulated 
Operations   

  
Eliminations   

  Allegheny  
Consolidated   2007          

Operating revenues     $ 1,625.9      $ 2,855.3      $ (1,174.2 )    $ 3,307.0    
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Operating expenses:           

Fuel       661.7        269.1        —          930.8    
Purchased power and transmission       33.5        1,527.8        (1,168.1 )      393.2    
Deferred energy costs, net       —          (10.1 )      —          (10.1 )  
Operations and maintenance       243.9        449.2        (6.1 )      687.0    
Depreciation and amortization       89.7        189.6        (2.3 )      277.0    
Taxes other than income taxes       49.8        162.0        —          211.8    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total operating expenses       1,078.6        2,587.6        (1,176.5 )      2,489.7    
Operating income       547.3        267.7        2.3        817.3    
Other income (expense), net       24.0        31.4        (18.6 )      36.8    
Interest expense       86.9        107.7        (7.3 )      187.3    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Income before income taxes       484.4        191.4        (9.0 )      666.8    
Income tax expense       177.3        73.5        —          250.8    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net income       307.1        117.9        (9.0 )      416.0    
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests       (13.1 )      (0.7 )      10.0        (3.8 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net income attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc.     $ 294.0      $ 117.2      $ 1.0      $ 412.2    
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MERCHANT GENERATION SEGMENT  

The following is a summary of certain statistical information relating to the Merchant Generation segment that is regularly reviewed by 
its management:  
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    2009     2008     2007     
2009/2008 
Change     

2008/2007 
Change   

Market prices:            

Round-the-clock energy price ($/MWh, PJM Western 
Hub)    $ 38.75      $ 69.81      $ 56.92      (44.5 )%    22.6 %  

Round-the-clock energy price ($/MWh, PJM AD Hub)    $ 32.98      $ 53.19      $ 45.18      (38.0 )%    17.7 %  
Natural gas price—Henry Hub NYMEX ($/MMBtu)    $ 3.92      $ 8.84      $ 6.94      (55.7 )%    27.4 %  

Allegheny Operating statistics:            

Realized energy price ($/MWh) (a)    $ 36.06      $ 55.56      $ 47.92      (35.1 )%    15.9 %  

Supercritical Coal Units:            

kWhs generated (in millions) (b)      22,375        29,380        28,727      (23.8 )%    2.3 %  
Equivalent Availability Factor (EAF) (c)      79.9 %      87.6 %      83.1 %    (7.7 )%    4.5 %  
Net Capacity Factor (NCF) (d)      57.8 %      75.6 %      74.2 %    (17.8 )%    1.4 %  
Station O&M (in millions) (e):            

Base and operations    $ 82.6      $ 77.5      $ 77.0      6.6 %    0.6 %  
Special maintenance      55.5        27.3        57.8      103.3 %    (52.8 )%  

      
  

      
  

      
  

    

Total Station O&M    $ 138.1      $ 104.8      $ 134.8      31.8 %    (22.3 )%  
      

  

      

  

      

  

    

All Generating Units:            

kWhs generated (in millions) (b)      26,004        34,464        34,912      (24.5 )%    (1.3 )%  
EAF (c)      82.3 %      87.9 %      84.0 %    (5.6 )%    3.9 %  
NCF (d)      41.3 %      54.9 %      55.5 %    (13.6 )%    (0.6 )%  
Station O&M (in millions):            

Base and operations    $ 123.5      $ 116.4      $ 114.3      6.1 %    1.8 %  
Special maintenance      62.3        40.8        66.3      52.7 %    (38.5 )%  

      
  

      
  

      
  

    

Total Station O&M    $ 185.8      $ 157.2      $ 180.6      18.2 %    (13.0 )%  
      

  

      

  

      

  

    

  
(a) Represents the weighted average actual price received at the generation facility for power sold into PJM by Allegheny’s Merchant 

Generation plants. 
(b) Excludes kWhs consumed by pumping at the Bath County, Virginia hydroelectric station. 
(c) EAF represents the average available generating capacity expressed as a percentage of total generating capacity. This measure is 

commonly less than 100% primarily due to planned and unplanned outages and derates. 
(d) NCF is a measure of actual net electricity generated compared to the amount of electricity that could have been generated at maximum 

operating capacity. This measure is less than 100% due to periods during which generating capacity is not available as a result of planned 
and unplanned outages, as well as periods during which generating capacity is available but is not dispatched because of the availability 
in the market of lower cost generation in amounts sufficient to meet demand. 

(e) Station O&M includes base, operations and special maintenance costs. Base and operations costs consist of normal recurring expenses 
related to the ongoing operation of the generation facilities. Special maintenance costs include costs associated with outage-related 
maintenance and projects that relate to the generation facilities. 
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Forward prices at December 31, 2009 for certain commodities in Allegheny’s region were as follows:  
   

The performance of Allegheny’s Merchant Generation segment is significantly impacted by changes in prices for power and for 
commodities that underlie the generation of electric power, such as coal and natural gas. Changes in such prices result from changes in supply 
and demand, fuel costs, market liquidity, weather, environmental regulation and other factors. Market prices for power and related commodities 
are volatile and difficult to predict. Decreased demand for power and lower prices for power significantly impacted Allegheny’s Merchant 
Generation segment during 2009. In lower power price environments, Allegheny generates less power because of the increased amount of time 
during which it is not economical to run its generating units. During 2009 Allegheny utilized the flexibility afforded in certain of its coal 
purchase contracts to cancel or defer coal deliveries.  

To manage exposure to market price changes, Allegheny sells and purchases physical energy at the wholesale level and enters into 
financial contracts within established risk management objectives and policies. The impacts of weak demand and low commodity prices on 
operating performance during 2009 were partially mitigated by power sale hedges, including Allegheny’s PLR contracts and financial hedges. 
The following table shows the percentages of Allegheny’s estimated future power sales and coal purchases that were hedged as of 
December 31, 2009:  
   

Selected financial results for the Merchant Generation segment for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:  
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   Forward Market Prices (a) 
   2010    2011    2012 

Round-the-clock energy price—PJM Western Hub ($/MWh)     $ 48.02    $ 49.55    $ 50.39 
Round-the-clock energy price—PJM AD Hub ($/MWh)     $ 39.02    $ 41.44    $ 43.62 
Natural gas price—Henry Hub NYMEX ($/MMBtu)     $ 5.79    $ 6.33    $ 6.53 
  
(a) Based on average prices for the calendar year. 

  
   Year Ending December 31,   
   2010     2011     2012   

Percentage of expected coal-fired generation sales hedged     82 %    30 %    4 %  
Percentage of expected coal purchases hedged     97 %    66 %    60 %  

Merchant Generation  
(In millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Operating revenues     $ 1,608.6    $ 1,792.9    $ 1,625.9 
Operating income     $ 505.7    $ 605.4    $ 547.3 
Income before income taxes     $ 371.8    $ 513.5    $ 484.4 
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Operating Revenues  

Merchant Generation operating revenues were as follows:  
   

PJM Energy Revenue  

PJM Energy Revenue represents the sale of all power produced by our Merchant Generation fleet. PJM Revenue decreased $976.6 
million in 2009 compared to 2008, resulting from significantly lower demand for electricity and lower natural gas and power prices. The 
segment’s generation output was approximately 24.5% lower in 2009 compared to 2008 and its supercritical plant capacity factor, representing 
the MWhs actually generated compared to the amount of electricity that could have been generated at maximum operating capacity, dropped to 
57.8% in 2009 compared to 75.6% in the prior year.  

PJM Energy Revenue was higher in 2008 compared to 2007, primarily due to an increase in the market price of power, partially offset by 
a decrease in MWhs generated.  

PJM Capacity Revenue  

PJM capacity revenue increased $161.0 million and $138.6 million in 2009 and 2008, respectively, resulting from increased capacity 
prices under the PJM RPM auction process.  

Power Sale Revenue—Affiliated Contracts  

The Merchant Generation segment (AE Supply) sold West Penn the power to meet most of its customers’ needs and sold Potomac Edison 
the power to meet a portion of its Maryland and most of its Virginia customers’ needs under power sales contracts.  

Affiliated power sale revenue decreased $11.9 million in 2009 compared to 2008 primarily due to:  
   

   

Affiliated power sale revenue increased $86.8 million in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due to:  
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(In millions)    2009     2008     2007   

PJM energy revenue (all generation)     $ 936.5      $ 1,913.1      $ 1,669.0    
       

  
      

  
      

  

PJM capacity revenue       356.2        195.2        56.6    
       

  
      

  
      

  

Power hedge revenue, net:         

Power sale revenue—affiliated contracts       1,198.7        1,210.6        1,123.8    
Power sale revenue—nonaffiliated contracts       73.6        77.9        64.6    
Power purchased from PJM to serve contracts       (1,177.6 )      (1,626.7 )      (1,334.6 )  
Realized gains (losses) on financial hedges       118.8        (25.6 )      (3.5 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Power hedge revenue, net       213.5        (363.8 )      (149.7 )  

Other, including unrealized gains (losses) on hedge instruments       102.4        48.4        50.0    
       

  
      

  
      

  

Total operating revenues     $ 1,608.6      $ 1,792.9      $ 1,625.9    
       

  

      

  

      

  

  
•   a $28.8 million decrease in Maryland due to the residential customers going to market on January 1, 2009 and AE Supply winning a 

portion of the load contracts and a $17.1 million decrease in Virginia due primarily to lower demand,  

  
•   partially offset by a $34.1 million increase in revenues in Pennsylvania due primarily to higher generation rates charged to 

Pennsylvania customers, which are passed on to AE Supply under the terms of the power supply contract between West Penn and 
AE Supply.  

  
•   a $62.7 million increase due to new power sales agreements between AE Supply and Potomac Edison at market-based rates to serve 

certain of Potomac Edison’s customers in Virginia, the first of which was effective July 1, 2007 and  
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Power Purchased From PJM to Serve Contracts  

Power purchased from PJM to serve the Merchant Generation segment’s power sale contracts decreased $449.1 million in 2009 compared 
to 2008 primarily due to a decrease in market prices as well as decreased customer load, partially offset by an increase in capacity costs.  

Power purchased from PJM to serve the Merchant Generation segment’s power sale contracts increased $292.1 million in 2008 compared 
to 2007 due to an increase in the market price of power, partially offset by decreased customer load.  

Realized Gains (Losses) on Financial Hedges  

Realized gains (losses) on financial hedges increased by $144.4 million in 2009 compared to 2008 due to an increase in margin on the 
hedges due to a decrease in market prices.  

Realized gains (losses) on financial hedges decreased by $22.1 million in 2008 compared to 2007 due to a decrease in margin on the 
hedges due to an increase in market prices.  

Other Revenues  

Other revenues increased $54.0 million for 2009 compared to 2008 primarily due to unrealized gains on FTRs.  

Operating Expenses  

Fuel:   Fuel expense represents the cost of coal, natural gas, oil, lime and other materials consumed in the generation of power, as well as 
emission allowances, fuel handling and residual disposal costs. Fuel expense was as follows:  
   

Fuel expense decreased $117.9 million in 2009 compared to 2008, primarily due to a $107.7 million decrease in coal expense, resulting 
from a 27.1% decrease in tons of coal consumed at Allegheny’s merchant coal-fired generation facilities, partially offset by a 14.7% increase in 
the average cost of coal per ton.  

Fuel expense increased $131.7 million in 2008 compared to 2007, primarily due to a $131.8 million increase in coal expense resulting 
from a 19.5% increase in the average cost of coal per ton and a 4.6% increase in tons of coal consumed at Allegheny’s merchant coal-fired 
generation facilities.  

Purchased Power and Transmission:   Purchased power and transmission expenses were as follows:  
   

Purchased power and transmission expense decreased $3.9 million in 2009 compared to 2008, primarily due to a $10.6 million gain on 
the effective settlement of power purchase agreements in connection with the purchase of certain hydroelectric generation facilities, partially 
offset by costs relating to a hedge strategy associated with a transportation agreement between AE Supply and Kern River Gas Transmission 
Company. See consolidated financial statement Note 14, “Purchase of Hydroelectric Generation Facilities,” for additional information.  
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•   a $56.4 million increase, primarily due to higher generation rates charged to Pennsylvania customers, which are passed on to AE 

Supply under the terms of the power supply contract between West Penn and AE Supply,  
  •   partially offset by a $32.3 million decrease related to lower sales volumes for Potomac Edison’s customers in Maryland.  

(In millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Fuel     $ 675.5    $ 793.4    $ 661.7 

(In millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Purchased power and transmission     $ 26.4    $ 30.3    $ 33.5 
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Purchased power and transmission expense decreased $3.2 million in 2008 compared to 2007, primarily due to sales of excess coal and 
natural gas purchased for generation in 2007.  

Operations and Maintenance:   Operations and maintenance expenses include salaries and wages, employee benefits, materials and 
supplies, contract work, outside services and other expenses. Operations and maintenance expenses were as follows:  
   

Operations and maintenance expenses increased $24.9 million in 2009 compared to 2008, primarily due to an increase in costs resulting 
from the timing of plant maintenance, partially offset by a $6.7 million credit to operations and maintenance expense relating to the purchase of 
certain hydroelectric generation facilities. See consolidated financial statement Note 14, “Purchase of Hydroelectric Generation Facilities,” for 
additional information.  

Operations and maintenance expenses decreased $21.8 million in 2008 compared to 2007, primarily due to decreased costs resulting from 
the timing of plant maintenance.  

Depreciation and Amortization:   Depreciation and amortization expenses were as follows:  
   

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased $12.7 million in 2009 compared to 2008, primarily due to Scrubber equipment at the 
Hatfield’s Ferry generating facility, which was placed into service during 2009.  

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased $4.4 million in 2008 compared to 2007, primarily due to increased depreciation 
resulting from net property, plant and equipment additions.  

Taxes Other than Income Taxes:   Taxes other than income taxes primarily include business and occupation tax, payroll taxes and 
property taxes. Taxes other than income taxes were as follows:  
   

Taxes other than income taxes decreased $2.2 million in 2008 compared to 2007, primarily due to a tax refund.  

Other Income (Expense), net  

Other income (expense), net was as follows:  
   

Other income (expense), net decreased $6.8 million in 2009 compared to 2008, primarily due to lower interest income resulting from 
decreased average investments at lower rates.  

Other income (expense), net decreased $16.2 million in 2008 compared to 2007, primarily due to an $8.4 million gain relating to an 
exchange transaction involving real estate in La Paz, Arizona that was recorded during 2007, as well as lower interest income resulting from 
lower average investment balances at lower interest rates.  
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(In millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Operations and maintenance     $ 247.0    $ 222.1    $ 243.9 

(In millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Depreciation and amortization     $ 106.8    $ 94.1    $ 89.7 

(In millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Taxes other than income taxes     $ 47.2    $ 47.6    $ 49.8 

(In millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Other income (expense), net     $ 1.0    $ 7.8    $ 24.0 
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Interest Expense  

Interest expense was as follows:  
   

Interest expense increased $35.2 million in 2009 compared to 2008, primarily due to costs associated with AE Supply’s September 2009 
and October 2009 purchases of outstanding medium-term notes.  

Interest expense increased $12.8 million in 2008 compared to 2007, primarily due to the reversal of $54.7 million of accrued interest 
resulting from the settlement of Allegheny’s litigation with Merrill Lynch, which was recorded during 2007, partially offset by lower average 
debt outstanding at lower interest rates and increased capitalized interest resulting from capital projects that were partially funded using cash 
from operations. See consolidated financial statement Note 24, “Acquisition of Noncontrolling Interest in AE Supply,” for additional 
information regarding the settlement with Merrill Lynch.  

See consolidated financial statement Note 8, “Capitalization and Debt,” for additional information.  

Income Tax Expense  

The effective tax rate for the twelve months ended December 31, 2009 was 34.6%. Income tax expense for the twelve months ended 
December 31, 2009 was lower than income tax expense calculated at the federal statutory tax rate of 35%, primarily due to an adjustment to the 
Pennsylvania net operating loss carryforward deferred tax asset resulting from a Pennsylvania tax law change, which decreased the rate by 
3.0% and the ratemaking effects of depreciation differences and investment tax credits, which reduced the rate by 0.2%. This decrease was 
partially offset by state taxes, which increased the rate by 2.8%.  

The effective tax rate for the twelve months ended December 31, 2008 was 35.0%. Changes in tax reserves related to uncertain tax 
positions and audit settlements increased the effective rate by 0.9%. This increase was offset by state income taxes, permanent items, and the 
rate-making effects of depreciation differences and the investment tax credit, which decreased the rate by 0.9%.  

The effective tax rate for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007 was 36.6%. Income tax expense for the twelve months ended 
December 31, 2007 was higher than income tax expense calculated at the federal statutory tax rate of 35%, primarily due to state taxes, which 
increased the rate by 1.0% and increases in tax reserves related to uncertain tax positions and audit settlements, which increased the rate by 
0.6%.  

REGULATED OPERATIONS SEGMENT  

Selected financial results for the Regulated Operations segment for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:  
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(In millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Interest expense     $ 134.9    $ 99.7    $ 86.9 

Regulated Operations  
(In millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Operating revenues     $ 3,051.2    $ 2,855.3    $ 2,855.3 
Operating income     $ 412.3    $ 202.0    $ 267.7 
Income before income taxes     $ 272.0    $ 95.0    $ 191.4 
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The performance of Allegheny’s Regulated Operations segment is significantly impacted by customer demand for electricity, regulatory 
ratemaking actions and the progress of transmission expansion projects. Retail electricity sales were as follows:  
   

The decreases in retail electricity sales shown in the table above are due largely to significant decreases in industrial demand relating to 
the weak economic climate and, to a lesser degree, decreases in residential demand. These trends continued through December 31, 2009, and 
future retail electricity sales will continue to be affected by economic conditions, load fluctuations, conservation measures and weather.  

In addition to retail electricity sales, management monitors the performance of the Regulated Operations segment based in part on certain 
statistical information including the following:  
   

During 2008, Potomac Edison’s Virginia distribution operations reported significant losses due to increased costs of purchased power that 
could not be passed on to its customers. As a result of ratemaking decisions, Potomac Edison began to recover the majority of its actual 
purchased power costs in Virginia beginning January 1, 2009, and this resulted in increased pre-tax earnings of $98.3 million in 2009 compared 
to the prior year.  

Capital expenditures on Allegheny’s PATH, TrAIL and other expansion transmission projects are continuing. Accumulated expenditures 
for these projects were $828.9 million at December 31, 2009 and $244.8 million at December 31, 2008. As discussed in consolidated financial 
statement Note 5, “Transmission Expansion,” increased capital spending on these projects directly impacts earnings. Income before income tax 
relating to transmission expansion increased $35.9 million in 2009 compared to the prior year, and net income, excluding the amount of income 
attributable to our joint venture partner’s noncontrolling interest in PATH, increased $20.7 million in 2009 compared to the prior year.  
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     2009    2008    2007    
2009/2008 
Change     

2008/2007 
Change   

Retail electricity sales (million kWhs)     42,040    44,192    44,901    (4.9 )%    (1.6 )%  

       Normal    2009    2008    2007    
2009/2008 
Change     

2008/2007 
Change   

Revenue per megawatt-hour MWh sold (a)     N/A    $ 72.80    $ 61.14    $ 60.44    19.1 %    1.2 %  
O&M per MWh sold (b)     N/A    $ 10.27    $ 10.16    $ 9.89    1.1 %    2.7 %  
HDD (c)     5,516      5,225      5,324      5,144    (1.9 )%    3.5 %  
CDD (c)     811      816      772      1,032    5.7 %    (25.2 )%  
kWhs generated (million kWhs) (d)     N/A      7,526      12,137      13,323    (38.0 )%    (8.9 )%  
  
(a) This measure is calculated by dividing total revenues from retail sales of electricity by retail electricity sales. 
(b) This measure is calculated by dividing total O&M, excluding O&M related to transmission expansion, which is recovered in formula 

rates, by retail electricity sales. 
(c) Heating degree-days (“HDD”) and cooling degree-days (“CDD”). The operations of the Distribution Companies are weather sensitive. 

Weather conditions directly influence the volume of electricity delivered by the Distribution Companies, representing one of several 
factors that impact the volume of electricity delivered. Accordingly, deviations in weather from normal levels can affect Allegheny’s 
financial performance. Degree-day data is used to estimate amounts of energy required to maintain comfortable indoor temperature levels 
based on each day’s average temperature. HDD is the measure of the variation in the weather based on the extent to which the average 
daily temperature falls below 65° Fahrenheit, and CDD is the measure of the variation in the weather based on the extent to which the 
average daily temperature rises above 65° Fahrenheit. Each degree of temperature above 65° Fahrenheit is counted as one cooling degree-
day, and each degree of temperature below 65° Fahrenheit is counted as one heating degree-day. HDD and CDD are most likely to impact 
the usage of Allegheny’s residential and commercial customers. Industrial customers are less weather sensitive. 

(d) Represents kWhs generated by Monongahela’s regulated generation facilities. 
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Operating Revenues  

Regulated Operation revenues were as follows:  
   

Total operating revenues increased $195.9 million in 2009 compared to 2008, primarily due to a $358.3 million increase in retail electric 
revenues, partially offset by a $171.0 million decrease in transmission services and bulk power revenues.  

Retail Electric  

Retail electric revenues increased $358.3 million in 2009 compared to 2008, primarily due to:  
   

   

   

   

These increases were partially offset by:  
   

   

Transmission Services and Bulk Power  

Transmission services and bulk power revenues decreased $171.0 million in 2009 compared to 2008, primarily due to:  
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(In millions)    2009     2008     2007   

Retail electric:         

Generation and ancillary     $ 2,280.0      $ 1,902.7      $ 1,891.2    
Transmission       118.6        124.2        123.8    
Distribution       661.7        675.1        699.0    

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total retail electric       3,060.3        2,702.0        2,714.0    

Transmission services and bulk power:         

PJM revenue, net       (198.8 )      (34.2 )      (5.4 )  
Warrior Run generation revenue       52.7        86.0        52.7    
Transmission and other       100.1        73.2        74.7    

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total transmission services and bulk power       (46.0 )      125.0        122.0    

Other       36.9        28.3        19.3    
       

  
      

  
      

  

Total operating revenues     $ 3,051.2      $ 2,855.3      $ 2,855.3    
       

  

      

  

      

  

  
•   a $173.1 million increase in Pennsylvania operating revenues resulting from higher generation rates charged to Pennsylvania 

customers,  
  •   a $149.4 million increase primarily due to an ENEC-related rate increase in West Virginia that went into effect on January 1, 2009,  

  
•   a $118.4 million increase in Maryland generation revenues primarily resulting from market-based generation pricing for residential 

customers effective January 1, 2009 and  
  •   a $98.3 million increase due to higher rates under ratemaking settlements in Virginia.  

  •   a $102.0 million decrease in retail revenue related to reduced customer demand and  
  •   a $38.5 million decrease due to the expiration of an earnings benefit related to stranded cost recovery in Pennsylvania.  

  •   a $164.6 million decrease in PJM revenue, net, and  

  
•   a $33.3 million decrease in revenues from Warrior Run generation primarily resulting from the timing of maintenance outages at the 

facility,  
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Monongahela sells the power that it generates from its West Virginia jurisdictional assets into the PJM market and purchases from the 
PJM market the power necessary to meet its West Virginia jurisdictional customer load and its contractual obligations, which include supplying 
power to serve Potomac Edison’s West Virginia load. PJM revenue, net, represents the revenues from PJM sales less the costs of PJM 
purchases relating to West Virginia assets and load.  

Revenues from generation sold into PJM were lower, primarily due to significantly lower demand and a decrease in the market price of 
power. Power purchased from PJM decreased due to a decrease in the market price of power and decreased customer demand.  

PJM revenue, net decreased $28.8 million in 2008 compared to 2007, primarily due to an increase in power purchased from PJM at 
higher prices to serve Monongahela’s power supply agreements.  

Revenues from Warrior Run generation increased $33.3 million in 2008 compared to 2007, primarily resulting from the timing of 
maintenance outages at the facility.  

Operating Expenses  

Fuel:    Fuel expense represents the cost of coal, natural gas, oil, lime and other materials consumed in the generation of power, as well as 
emission allowances, fuel handling and residual disposal costs. Fuel expense was as follows:  
   

Fuel expense decreased $76.4 million in 2009 compared to 2008, primarily due to a $65.3 million decrease in coal expense and an $8.5 
million decrease in emission allowance expense. The decrease in coal expense was due to a 39.1% decrease in tons of coal consumed at 
Allegheny’s regulated coal-fired generation facilities, partially offset by a 22.2% increase in the average cost of coal per ton.  

Fuel expense increased $18.4 million in 2008 compared to 2007, primarily due to a $22.2 million increase in coal expense, partially offset 
by a $6.4 million decrease in emission allowance expense. The increase in coal expense was due to an 18.6% increase in the cost of coal per 
ton, partially offset by a 7.6% decrease in tons of coal consumed at Allegheny’s regulated coal-fired generation facilities.  

Purchased Power and Transmission:   Purchased power and transmission expense represents power purchased from AE Supply and 
third-party suppliers, including purchases from qualifying facilities under PURPA. Purchased power and transmission expense was as follows:  
   

Purchased power and transmission expense increased $80.5 million in 2009 compared to 2008, primarily due to:  
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•   partially offset by a $26.9 million increase in transmission and other revenues as a result of increased recoverable expenses and 

returns on investment that are related to transmission expansion.  

(In millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Fuel     $ 211.1    $ 287.5    $ 269.1 

(In millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Purchased power and transmission     $ 1,702.8    $ 1,622.3    $ 1,527.8 

  
•   a $97.7 million increase, primarily due to higher rates paid under the terms of market-based power purchase contracts to supply 

Maryland residential customers effective January 1, 2009, partially offset a reduction in power purchased resulting from reduced 
customer demand and  
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These increases were partially offset by:  
   

   

   

Purchased power and transmission expense increased $94.5 million in 2008 compared to 2007, primarily due to:  
   

   

   

Deferred Energy Costs, net:   Deferred energy costs, net represent an adjustment of actual costs incurred during the period for amounts 
that are expected to be charged or credited to customers in rates in a future period under a regulatory mechanism. The components of deferred 
energy costs were as follows:  
   

AES Warrior Run PURPA Generation.   To satisfy certain of its obligations under PURPA, Potomac Edison entered into a long-term 
contract beginning July 1, 2000 to purchase capacity and energy from the AES Warrior Run PURPA generation facility through the beginning 
of 2030. Potomac Edison is authorized by the Maryland PSC to recover all contract costs from the AES Warrior Run PURPA generation 
facility, net of any revenues received from the sale of AES Warrior Run output into the wholesale energy market, by means of a retail revenue 
surcharge. Any under-recovery or over-recovery of net costs is being deferred pending subsequent recovery from, or return to, customers 
through adjustments to this surcharge.  

ENEC Costs.   Under the annual ENEC method of recovering net power supply costs in West Virginia, including fuel costs, purchased 
power costs and other related expenses, net of related revenue and interest earnings on the Fort Martin Scrubber project escrow fund, 
Monongahela and Potomac Edison track actual costs and revenues for under and/or over recoveries, and file requests for revised ENEC rates on 
an annual basis. Any under and/or over recovery of costs, net of related revenues, is deferred, for subsequent recovery or refund, as a regulatory 
asset or regulatory liability with the corresponding impact on the Consolidated Statements of Income reflected in “Deferred energy costs, net.”  
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•   an $84.1 million increase due to higher generation rates paid under the terms of a power supply agreement between West Penn and 

AE Supply, partially offset by a reduction in power purchased resulting from reduced customer demand.  

  •   a $50.0 million decrease related to the expiration of an intercompany market rate adjustment in Pennsylvania,  

  
•   a $15.2 million decrease in purchased power from PURPA facilities, primarily resulting from the timing of maintenance outages at 

the Warrior Run PURPA generation facility and  

  
•   a $15.0 million decrease primarily due to lower rates paid under the terms of market-based power purchase contracts to supply 

Virginia residential customers.  

  
•   a $65.8 million increase due to higher generation rates charged to Pennsylvania customers, which are contractually passed on to AE 

Supply under the terms of a power supply agreement between West Penn and AE Supply and  

  
•   a $62.7 million increase due to a new power sales agreement in Virginia between AE Supply and Potomac Edison at market-based 

rates (see consolidated financial statement Note 4, “Rates and Regulation,”  for additional information),  

  
•   partially offset by a $21.7 million decrease due to the expiration in May 2007 of a fixed price supply agreement to serve 

Monongahela’s former Ohio service territory.  

(In millions)    2009     2008     2007   

AES Warrior Run PURPA generation     $ (15.3 )    $ 9.3      $ (2.4 )  
ENEC related costs       (49.9 )      (71.7 )      (7.5 )  
Market-based generation and other costs       0.8        (1.3 )      (0.2 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Deferred energy costs, net     $ (64.4 )    $ (63.7 )    $ (10.1 )  
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Market-based Generation and Other Costs.   Potomac Edison is authorized by the Maryland PSC to recover the costs of the generation 
component of power sold to certain residential, commercial and industrial customers that did not choose a third-party alternative generation 
provider. A regulatory asset or liability is recorded on Potomac Edison’s balance sheet for any under-recovery or over-recovery of the 
generation component of costs charged to these customers. In addition, under an order of the Virginia SCC, Potomac Edison was granted a rate 
adjustment to recover a portion of its increased purchased power costs. The order directed Potomac Edison to defer any under-or over-recovery 
of purchased power costs approved.  

Operations and Maintenance:   Operations and maintenance expenses primarily include salaries and wages, employee benefits, materials 
and supplies, contract work, outside services and other expenses. Operations and maintenance expenses were as follows:  
   

Operations and maintenance expenses decreased $12.1 million in 2009 compared to 2008, primarily due to decreased costs associated 
with the timing of plant maintenance.  

Operations and maintenance expenses increased $8.8 million in 2008 compared to 2007, primarily due to an $8.8 million increase in 
right-of-way vegetation expense resulting from increased maintenance activities and storm activity and a $5.1 million increase in compensation 
and benefits expense, partially offset by decreased costs resulting from the timing of plant maintenance.  

Depreciation and Amortization:   Depreciation and amortization expenses were as follows:  
   

Depreciation and amortization expenses decreased $4.8 million in 2009 compared to 2008, primarily due to an $8.2 million decrease in 
amortization related to regulatory assets, partially offset by a $3.5 million increase in depreciation expense resulting from the Fort Martin 
Scrubbers, which were placed into service during the fourth quarter of 2009.  

Depreciation and amortization expenses decreased $7.7 million in 2008 compared to 2007, primarily due to a 2007 rate order by the West 
Virginia PSC that extended the depreciable lives of regulated generating assets effective May 2007.  

Taxes Other Than Income Taxes :  Taxes other than income taxes primarily includes business and occupation taxes, payroll taxes, gross 
receipts taxes and property taxes. Taxes other than income taxes were as follows:  
   

Taxes other than income taxes increased $5.3 million in 2008 compared to 2007, primarily due to an increase in gross receipts tax, 
resulting from an increase in Pennsylvania taxable regulated utility revenues and an increased Pennsylvania tax rate.  
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(In millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Operations and maintenance     $ 445.9    $ 458.0    $ 449.2 

(In millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Depreciation and amortization     $ 177.1    $ 181.9    $ 189.6 

(In millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Taxes other than income taxes     $ 166.4    $ 167.3    $ 162.0 
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Other Income (Expense), net  

Other income (expense), net was as follows:  
   

Other income (expense), net decreased $11.5 million in 2009 compared to 2008, primarily due to decreased interest income on 
investments resulting from lower investment balances and interest rates.  

Other income (expense), net decreased $2.8 million in 2008 compared to 2007, primarily due to decreased interest income on investments 
resulting from lower investment balances and interest rates.  

Interest Expense  

Interest expense was as follows:  
   

Interest expense increased $21.8 million in 2009 compared to 2008, primarily due to Monongahela’s December 2008 issuance of $300 
million of first mortgage bonds and borrowings under TrAIL Company’s credit facility. See consolidated financial statement Note 8, 
“Capitalization and Debt,” for additional information.  

Interest expense increased $27.9 million in 2008 compared to 2007, primarily due to the December 2007 issuance of $275 million of first 
mortgage bonds by West Penn, the April 2007 issuance of environmental control bonds by Potomac Edison and the December 2008 issuance of 
$300 million of first mortgage bonds by Monongahela. See consolidated financial statement Note 8, “Capitalization and Debt,” for additional 
information.  

Income Tax Expense  

The effective tax rate for the twelve months ended December 31, 2009 was 41.5%. Income tax expense for the twelve months ended 
December 31, 2009 was higher than income tax expense calculated at the federal statutory tax rate of 35% primarily due to state taxes, which 
increased the rate by 5.0%, the segment’s share of consolidated income tax expense, which increased the rate by 2.5%, and changes in tax 
reserves related to uncertain tax positions and audit settlements, which increased the rate by 0.9%. These increases were partially offset by 
permanent differences and the ratemaking effects of investment tax credits and depreciation differences, which decreased the rate by 1.9%.  

The effective tax rate for the twelve months ended December 31, 2008 was 25.7%. Income tax expense for the twelve months ended 
December 31, 2008 was lower than income tax expense calculated at the federal statutory tax rate of 35%, primarily due to adjustments to 
reserves for uncertain tax positions that decreased the rate by 9.4%, permanent differences, which decreased the rate by 7.9% and the segment’s 
share of consolidated tax savings, which decreased the rate by 2.0%. These deductions were partially offset by state taxes, which increased the 
rate by 5.8%, and the ratemaking effects of investment tax credits and depreciation differences, which increased the rate by 4.2%.  

The effective tax rate for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007 was 38.5%. Income tax expense for the twelve months ended 
December 31, 2007 was higher than income tax expense calculated at the federal statutory tax rate of 35%, primarily due to state taxes, which 
increased the rate by 3.1%, the ratemaking effects of depreciation differences, which increased the rate by 2.2%, and changes in tax reserves 
related to uncertain tax  
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(In millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Other income (expense), net     $ 17.1    $ 28.6    $ 31.4 

(In millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Interest expense     $ 157.4    $ 135.6    $ 107.7 
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positions and audit settlements, which increased the rate by 1.8%. These increases were partially offset by permanent differences, which 
decreased the rate by 1.4%, the ratemaking effects of investment tax credits, which decreased the rate by 1.0% and the segment’s share of 
consolidated tax savings, which decreased the rate 1.2%.  

Transmission Expansion  

The Regulated Operations segment includes operations relating to transmission expansion projects, which includes TrAIL Company and 
PATH, LLC. The results of operations and selected balance sheet information related to transmission expansion were as follows:  
   

   

TrAIL Company and PATH, LLC are subject to regulation of rates by FERC for amounts billed through PJM. FERC has approved the 
use of a formula rate methodology for recovery of all prudently incurred operations and maintenance expenses, a return on debt and equity on 
all capital expenditures in connection with TrAIL and PATH based on a hypothetical 50% debt, 50% equity capital structure, until the 
transmission facilities are placed into service as well as an income tax allowance. The actual capital structure will be reflected in the formula 
rate once the transmission facilities are placed into service. TrAIL Company and PATH, LLC recognize revenue based on allowable costs 
incurred and return earned. Therefore, revenues and operating income are expected to increase as the projects move forward from the planning 
and approval stages through development and construction. See consolidated financial statement Note 5, “Transmission Expansion” and 
consolidated financial statement Note 4, “Rates and Regulation” for more information regarding TrAIL and PATH.  
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     Year Ended December 31,   
(In millions)    2009     2008     2007   
Results of operations:         

Operating revenues     $ 80.5      $ 34.5      $ 7.9    
       

  
      

  
      

  

Operations and maintenance       15.2        9.9        5.5    
Depreciation and amortization       4.2        3.4        0.6    
Taxes other than income taxes       1.9        1.1        (0.1 )  
Other       —          0.1        —      

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total operating expenses       21.3        14.5        6.0    
       

  
      

  
      

  

Operating income       59.2        20.0        1.9    
Other income (expense), net       2.4        1.3        2.0    
Interest expense, net of capitalized interest       7.3        2.9        0.8    

       
  

      
  

      
  

Income before income taxes       54.3        18.4        3.1    
Income tax expense       21.4        7.2        0.8    

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net income       32.9        11.2        2.3    
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest       (1.4 )      (0.4 )      —      

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net income attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc.     $ 31.5      $ 10.8      $ 2.3    
       

  

      

  

      

  

     At December 31, 
(In millions)    2009    2008 

Balance sheet information:        

Property, plant and equipment, net     $ 825.3    $ 243.3 
Total assets     $ 922.5    $ 307.9 
Long-term debt     $ 455.0    $ 90.0 
Stockholders’  equity     $ 209.8    $ 142.9 
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FINANCIAL CONDITION—LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES   

To meet cash needs for operating expenses, the payment of interest, pension contributions, retirement of debt and construction programs, 
Allegheny has historically used internally generated funds (net cash provided by operations less common dividends) and external financings, 
including the sale of common and preferred stock, debt instruments and lease arrangements.  

Allegheny manages excess cash through its internal money pool. The money pool provides funds to certain AE subsidiaries at the lower 
of the Federal Reserve’s previous day federal funds effective interest rate, or the Federal Reserve’s previous day seven day commercial paper 
rate, less four basis points. The minimum interest rate charged to approved AE subsidiaries is zero percent. AE and AE Supply can only place 
money into the money pool. West Penn and Potomac Edison can either place money into, or borrow money from, the money pool. AGC can 
only borrow money from the money pool. Since December 2009, Monongahela may only invest money into the money pool and amounts 
invested by Monongahela may not be borrowed by any AE subsidiary.  

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, Allegheny had cash and cash equivalents of $286.6 million and $362.1 million, respectively, and 
current restricted funds of $25.9 million and $36.8 million, respectively. Current restricted funds at December 31, 2009 included $20.6 million 
of funds collected from West Virginia customers that will be used to service the ratepayer obligation bonds issued in connection with the 
construction of the Scrubbers at Fort Martin and $5.3 million of intangible transition charges collected from West Penn customers related to 
Pennsylvania transition costs. Current restricted funds at December 31, 2008 included $21.9 million of funds collected from West Virginia 
customers that will be used to service the ratepayer obligation bonds issued in connection with the construction of Scrubbers at Fort Martin and 
$14.9 million of intangible transition charges collected from West Penn customers related to Pennsylvania transition costs. In addition, at 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, Allegheny had long-term restricted funds of $60.2 million and $133.3 million, respectively. Long-term restricted 
funds at December 31, 2009 included $10.3 million of funds remaining from the $235 million Pennsylvania Development Financing Authority 
bond issued in connection with the construction and installation of Scrubbers at Hatfield’s Ferry generation facility, $49.6 million of funds 
relating to proceeds from the issuance of ratepayer obligation bonds in connection with the construction of the Scrubbers at Fort Martin and 
$0.3 of escrow funds related to the Scrubber construction projects. Long-term restricted funds at December 31, 2008 consisted of funds relating 
to proceeds from the issuance of ratepayer obligation bonds in connection with the construction of the Scrubbers at Fort Martin.  

See consolidated financial statement Note 8, “Capitalization and Debt,” for a listing of Allegheny’s debt by maturity date. In addition, 
AE, AE Supply and Monongahela each have in place revolving credit facilities. AE’s credit facility matures in 2011 and AE Supply’s and 
Monongahela’s credit facilities mature in 2012. At December 31, 2009, borrowing capacity under these credit facilities was as follows:  
   

In addition, at December 31, 2009, TrAIL Company had borrowings under its $550 senior unsecured credit facility in the amount of $455 
million. All amounts outstanding under the senior unsecured credit facility were repaid during January 2010 with proceeds from TrAIL 
Company’s January 25, 2010 issuance of unsecured notes and new senior unsecured revolving credit facility. See Note 8, “Capitalization and 
Debt” for additional information.  
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(In millions)    
Total  

Capacity    Borrowed    

Letters of 
Credit  
Issued    

Available  
Capacity 

AE Revolving Credit Facility     $ 376.0    $ —      $ 3.2    $ 372.8 
AE Supply Revolving Facility       1,000.0      —        —        1,000.0 
Monongahela Revolving Credit Facility       110.0      —        —        110.0 

                            

Total     $ 1,486.0    $ —      $ 3.2    $ 1,482.8 
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Allegheny posts collateral with counterparties, including PJM, for certain transactions and transmission and transportation tariffs. 
Approximately $20.8 million and $33.4 million of cash collateral deposits were included in current assets at December 31, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively. Approximately $3.1 million and $0.2 million of cash collateral deposits were netted against derivative liabilities on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. If Allegheny’s credit ratings were to decline, it may be required to 
deposit additional cash or cash-equivalent collateral with its hedging counterparties. See consolidated financial statement Note 13, “Fair Value 
Measurements, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” for additional information regarding potential additional collateral that would 
have been required for derivative contracts in a net liability position at December 31, 2009. A downgrade of AE, AE Supply and the 
Distribution Companies at December 31, 2009 below Standard & Poor’s BB- or Moody’s Ba3, would have required Allegheny to post an 
additional $80 million of collateral to counterparties, including PJM, for both derivative and non-derivative contracts.  

Allegheny’s consolidated capital structure, excluding noncontrolling interest, as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, was as follows:  
   

January 2010 Debt Activity  

On January 25, 2010, TrAIL Company issued $450 million aggregate principal amount of 4.0% senior unsecured notes due in 2015 and 
also entered into a new $350 million senior unsecured revolving credit facility with a three-year maturity. Borrowings under the new facility 
will bear interest that is calculated based on the London Interbank Offered Rate, plus a margin based on TrAIL Company’s senior unsecured 
credit rating. TrAIL Company used the net proceeds from the sale of the notes, together with funds from its new credit facility, to repay all 
amounts outstanding under the $550 million senior unsecured credit facility that it entered into in 2008.  

During January 2010, Monongahela repaid its $110 million 7.36% medium-term notes.  
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(In millions) 
   2009    2008 
   Amount    %    Amount    % 

Long-term debt     $ 4,557.8    59.4    $ 4,209.8    59.6 
Common equity       3,113.2    40.6      2,850.8    40.4 

                        

Total     $ 7,671.0    100.0    $ 7,060.6    100.0 
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2009 Debt Activity  

Borrowings and principal repayments on debt during 2009 were as follows:  
   

On July 6, 2009, the Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority issued $235 million of 7.0% tax-exempt bonds that 
mature in 2039 and loaned the proceeds from that issuance to AE Supply to finance a portion of the cost of constructing and installing 
Scrubbers at its Hatfield’s Ferry generation facility. AE Supply capitalized $2.4 million in debt issuance costs associated with this transaction.  

On September 4, 2009, AE Supply repurchased $97.5 million and $146.8 million, respectively, of its 7.80% notes due 2011 and its 8.25% 
notes due 2012 pursuant to a cash tender offer, at an aggregate premium of $18.1 million. AE Supply expensed the $18.1 million premium, 
$0.7 million in unamortized debt costs, and $0.6 million in fees associated with the tender offer during the three months ended September 30, 
2009.  

On September 24, 2009, AE Supply entered into a new $1 billion senior unsecured revolving credit facility with a three-year maturity. 
The new revolving credit facility replaced AE Supply’s previous $400 million revolving credit facility, which was scheduled to mature in May 
2011. Loans under the new facility bear interest that is calculated based on the London Interbank Offered Rate, plus a margin based on AE 
Supply’s senior unsecured credit rating. AE Supply capitalized $22.3 million in debt costs related to this facility.  

On October 1, 2009, AE Supply issued $600 million aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes, consisting of $350 million of 
5.75% notes due 2019 and $250 million of 6.75% notes due 2039. AE Supply used a portion of the net proceeds from the sale of these notes to 
repay in full its existing $447 million term loan on October 2, 2009. AE Supply capitalized $5.3 million in debt issuance costs associated with 
this new debt issuance and expensed $0.6 million of unamortized debt costs associated with the extinguished term loan.  

On October 21, 2009, AE Supply used the remaining proceeds of its senior unsecured note offering to repurchase approximately $152 
million aggregate principal amount of its 7.80% Medium Term Notes due 2011 pursuant to a cash tender offer at an aggregate premium of 
$12.7 million. AE Supply expensed the $12.7 million premium, $0.3 million in unamortized debt costs, and $0.4 million in fees related to this 
tender offer.  
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(In millions)    Issuances    Repayments 

AE:        

AE Revolving Credit Facility     $ 120.0    $ 120.0 
AE Supply:        

AE Supply Credit Facility-Revolving Loan (a)       120.0      120.0 
AE Supply Credit Facility-Term Loan (a)       —        447.0 
Exempt Facilities Revenue Bonds       235.0      —   
Medium-Term Notes       600.0      396.3 

TrAIL Company:        

TrAIL Company Credit Facility-Term Loan       365.0      —   
West Penn:        

Transition Bonds       —        79.8 
Monongahela:        

Environmental Control Bonds       64.4      10.6 
Potomac Edison:        

Environmental Control Bonds       21.5      3.5 
              

Consolidated Total     $ 1,525.9    $ 1,177.2 
              

  
(a) Represents debt activity under AE Supply’s previous credit facility, which was replaced with a new credit facility during September 

2009. 
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On December 18, 2009, Monongahela entered into a new $110 million senior unsecured revolving credit facility with a three-year 
maturity. Loans under the new facility generally bear interest that is calculated based on the London Interbank Offered Rate, plus a margin 
based on Monongahela’s senior unsecured credit rating. Monongahela capitalized approximately $1.4 million in debt costs related to this 
facility.  

On December 23, 2009, MP Environmental Funding LLC, an indirect subsidiary of Monongahela, and PE Environmental Funding LLC, 
an indirect subsidiary of Potomac Edison, issued $64.4 million and $21.5 million, respectively, of Senior Secured Ratepayer Obligation Charge 
Environmental Control Bonds, Series B. These bonds securitize the right to collect an environmental control surcharge that Monongahela and 
Potomac Edison impose on their retail customers in West Virginia. The bonds were issued with an interest rate of 5.1% and mature in January 
2031. Net proceeds from the sale of the bonds are restricted funds and are being used to fund certain costs incurred in connection with the 
construction and installation of the Scrubbers at Fort Martin. Monongahela and Potomac Edison capitalized $1.9 million and $0.7 million, 
respectively, in debt issuance costs associated with this transaction.  

2008 Debt Activity  

Issuances of indebtedness and repayments of principal on indebtedness, during 2008 were as follows:  
   

On August 15, 2008, TrAIL Company entered into a $550 million senior secured credit facility with a seven-year maturity. The facility 
included a $530 million construction loan and a $20 million revolving facility, both with an initial borrowing rate equal to the London 
Interbank Offered Rate plus 1.875 percent. Borrowings under this facility were repaid in January 2010.  

On December 15, 2008, Monongahela issued $300 million aggregate principal amount of 7.95% First Mortgage Bonds that mature in 
2013. Proceeds from the First Mortgage Bonds were used to repay short-term intercompany debt, to finance certain capital expenditures, 
including a portion of the costs to install Scrubbers at Fort Martin, and for working capital needs and other general corporate purposes.  
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(In millions)    Issuances    Repayments 

AE:        

AE Revolving Credit Facility     $ 14.1    $ 14.1 
AE Supply:        

AE Supply Credit Facility-Term Loan (b)       —        125.0 
AE Supply Credit Facility-Revolving Loan (b)       250.0      250.0 

TrAIL Company:        

Short-Term Promissory Note       —        10.0 
TrAIL Company Credit Facility-Term Loan       70.0      —   
TrAIL Company Credit Facility-Revolving Loan       40.0      20.0 

West Penn:        

Transition Bonds (a)       2.8      78.3 
Monongahela:        

First Mortgage Bonds       300.0      —   
Environmental Control Bonds       —        14.9 

Potomac Edison:        

Environmental Control Bonds       —        4.9 
              

Consolidated Total     $ 676.9    $ 517.2 
              

  
(a) The issuance amounts represent interest that was accrued and added to the principal amount of certain bonds. 
(b) Represents debt activity under AE Supply’s previous credit facility, which was replaced with a new credit facility during September 

2009. 
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Dividends  

During 2009 and 2008 AE paid the following dividends on its common stock:  
   

Future dividends will be declared at the discretion of the Board of Directors and will depend upon available earnings, cash flows and 
other relevant factors. As described in consolidated financial statement Note 15, “Dividend Restrictions”, AE’s Revolving Credit Facility 
places a limit on quarterly cash dividends based on net income in the four preceding quarters. Additionally, under the terms of its proposed 
merger with FirstEnergy, AE is prohibited from increasing its quarterly cash dividend.  

Construction and Capital Requirements  

Allegheny estimates that its cash-based capital expenditures will approximate $1,081 million in 2010 and $696 million in 2011, including 
amounts relating to transmission expansion projects. See “Business—Capital Expenditures” for additional capital expenditure detail. 
Additional information regarding the TrAIL and PATH transmission expansion projects follows.  

TrAIL.   Cost estimates for Allegheny’s portion of TrAIL are approximately $850 million, excluding expenditures for other related 
transmission projects. Allegheny estimates that its capital expenditures for TrAIL will be approximately $250 million and $50 million for 2010 
and 2011, respectively. As discussed above in “Subsequent Event—Debt”, in January 2010, TrAIL Company issued $450 million aggregate 
principal amount of senior unsecured notes and also entered into a new $350 million senior unsecured revolving credit facility.  

PATH.   PJM is in the process of preparing its comprehensive 2010 Regional Transmission Expansion Plan, which will identify an in-
service date for PATH. Allegheny’s share of total project costs for PATH is expected to be approximately $1.2 billion, and AEP’s share of total 
project costs for PATH is expected to be approximately $0.6 billion. Allegheny anticipates funding its capital expenditures related to PATH 
with future external debt financings and cash from operations.  

Other Matters Concerning Liquidity and Capital Requirements  

Allegheny makes cash contributions to its qualified pension plan to meet the minimum funding requirements of employee benefit and tax 
laws and may include additional discretionary contributions to increase the funded level of the plan. Allegheny has not yet determined the 
amount of future contributions, but may contribute up to $80 million to its pension plan for the year 2010. The amount of future contributions 
to the plan will depend on the funded status of the plan, asset performance and other factors. Allegheny currently anticipates that it will 
contribute $12 million to $14 million during 2010 to fund postretirement benefits other than pensions.  

Allegheny has various obligations and commitments to make future cash payments under debt instruments, lease arrangements, fuel and 
transportation agreements and other contracts. The table below summarizes estimated contractual obligations by period as of December 31, 
2009, excluding expected contributions for pension and postretirement benefits other than pensions, contingent liabilities and certain 
contractual commitments that are accounted for under fair value accounting.  
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Payment Date    Record Date    Dividend per Share 

December 28, 2009     December 14, 2009    $ 0.15 
September 28, 2009     September 14, 2009    $ 0.15 
June 22, 2009     June 8, 2009    $ 0.15 
March 23, 2009     March 9, 2009    $ 0.15 
December 29, 2008     December 15, 2008    $ 0.15 
September 29, 2008     September 15, 2008    $ 0.15 
June 23, 2008     June 9, 2008    $ 0.15 
March 24, 2008     March 10, 2008    $ 0.15 
December 17, 2007     December 3, 2007    $ 0.15 
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements  

Allegheny has no off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a current or future material effect on its 
financial position, revenues, expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.  

Cash Flows  

Operating Activities  

Allegheny’s cash flows from operating activities result primarily from the generation, sale and delivery of electricity. Future cash flows 
will be affected by the economy, weather, customer choice, future regulatory proceedings and future demand and market prices for power, as 
well as Allegheny’s ability to produce and supply its customers with power at competitive prices. Cash flows from operating activities were as 
follows:  
   

The non-cash items included in income in 2009 primarily consisted of depreciation and amortization of $282.1 million and deferred 
income taxes and investment tax credit, net of $235.3 million, partially offset by deferred energy costs, net of $64.4 million.  

The non-cash items included in income in 2008 primarily consisted of depreciation and amortization of $273.9 million and deferred 
income taxes of $156.2 million. Changes in certain assets and liabilities primarily consisted, in part, of a change in regulatory liabilities of 
$60.4 million, primarily relating to Allegheny receiving  
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments (In millions)    2010    2011-2012    2013-2014    Thereafter    Total 

Debt (a)     $ 139.5    $ 769.4    $ 651.3    $ 2,997.6    $ 4,557.8 
Interest on debt (b)       269.2      487.0      378.2      1,618.2      2,752.6 
Interest rate swap obligations       6.1      2.1      —        —        8.2 
Capital lease obligations       10.7      15.0      8.7      2.7      37.1 
Operating lease obligations       6.6      11.4      10.9      8.6      37.5 
PURPA purchased power (c)       274.3      556.0      577.9      3,926.8      5,335.0 
Fuel purchase and transportation commitments       941.8      1,804.8      1,426.7      1,815.6      5,988.9 
Uncertain tax positions       3.8      119.2      7.8      —        130.8 
EDS contract services (d)       25.6      46.8      —        —        72.4 

                                   

Total     $ 1,677.6    $ 3,811.7    $ 3,061.5    $ 10,369.5    $ 18,920.3 
                                   

  
(a) Does not include unamortized debt expense, discounts, premiums and payments made and debt issued subsequent to December 31, 2009. 
(b) Amounts were based on interest rates as of December 31, 2009 and do not reflect any debt or interest rate changes subsequent to 

December 31, 2009. 
(c) Amounts were calculated based on expected PURPA purchased power prices at December 31, 2009 without giving effect to possible 

price changes that could occur as a result of any future CO emissions regulation or legislation.  
(d) Amounts represent Allegheny’s expected cash payments for certain information technology services under a contract that expires on 

December 31, 2012. 

(In millions)    2009     2008     2007   

Net income     $ 394.1      $ 395.8      $ 415.3    
Non-cash items included in income       457.0        460.4        541.1    
Contributions to pension and OPEB plans       (48.6 )      (49.3 )      (50.0 )  
Changes in certain assets and liabilities       (2.9 )      54.5        48.7    

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net cash provided by operating activities     $ 799.6      $ 861.4      $ 955.1    
       

  

      

  

      

  

2 
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payments from its customers in advance of providing service, in order to mitigate the impact of the transition to market-based generation rates, 
the advanced payments are being credited to the customers. Changes in certain assets and liabilities also included a change in regulatory assets 
of $51.3 million, primarily resulting from the recovery of previously deferred and earned revenue related to West Penn restructuring; a change 
in accrued taxes of $43.1 million, primarily as a result of timing differences associated with the payment of certain tax obligations; and a 
reduction in collateral deposits of $23.1 million, primarily due to reduced collateral requirements with various counterparties to Allegheny’s 
power contracts. These amounts were partially offset by $62.9 million in changes in receivables and payables resulting from normal working 
capital activity and an increase in materials, supplies and fuel of $62.8 million, primarily as a result of increased fuel inventory levels and 
higher prices.  

The non-cash items included in income in 2007 primarily consisted of depreciation and amortization of $277.0 million and deferred 
income taxes of $260.7 million. Changes in certain assets and liabilities primarily consisted of $30.2 million in changes in receivables and 
payables resulting from normal working capital activity.  

Investing Activities  

Cash flows from investing activities were as follows:  
   

Cash flows used in investing activities in 2009 were $1,084.8 million and primarily consisted of $1,166.2 million of capital expenditures 
partially offset by an $84.1 million decrease in restricted funds, primarily due to the use of restricted funds associated with the Fort Martin 
Scrubber project.  

Cash flows used in investing activities in 2008 were $822.3 million and primarily consisted of $994.1 million of capital expenditures and 
$50.0 million relating to the acquisition of Merrill Lynch’s noncontrolling interest in AE Supply, partially offset by a $224.4 million decrease 
in restricted funds, primarily due to the use of restricted funds associated with the Fort Martin Scrubber project.  

Cash flows used in investing activities in 2007 were $1,231.4 million and primarily consisted of $848.4 million of capital expenditures 
and a $381.5 million increase in restricted funds primarily as a result of the receipt and investment of the proceeds from environmental control 
bonds issued to finance the construction of Scrubbers at Fort Martin.  
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(In millions)    2009     2008     2007   

Capital expenditures     $ (1,166.2 )    $ (994.1 )    $ (848.4 )  
Purchase of hydroelectric business       (2.0 )      —          —      
Proceeds from asset sales       3.0        1.1        1.8    
Purchase of Merrill Lynch interest in subsidiary       —          (50.0 )      —      
Decrease (increase) in other restricted funds       0.3        10.7        (34.5 )  
Restricted funds used (provided) for Fort Martin construction       83.8        213.7        (347.0 )  
Other investments       (3.7 )      (3.7 )      (3.3 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net cash used in investing activities     $ (1,084.8 )    $ (822.3 )    $ (1,231.4 )  
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Financing Activities  

Cash flows from financing activities were as follows:  
   

Cash flows provided by financing activities in 2009 were $209.7 million and primarily included $1,508.3 million (net of $14.8 million 
related to debt issuance costs other than the costs associated with the AE Supply revolving credit facility refinancing of $22.2 million) in 
proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt, including borrowings of $605.0 million under AE’s and AE Supply’s revolving credit facilities 
and TrAIL Company’s senior secured credit facility as well as the issuance by AE subsidiaries of $920.8 million in the aggregate of medium 
term notes, sinking fund bonds and revenue bonds. These amounts were partially offset by $1,177.2 million in various debt repayments and 
$101.7 million of cash dividends paid on common stock.  

Cash flows provided by financing activities in 2008 were $64.2 million and primarily included $647.6 million (net of $12.3 million 
related to original issue discounts and debt issuance costs) in proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt, including borrowings of $360.0 
million under AE Supply’s revolving credit facility and TrAIL Company’s senior secured credit facility as well as the issuance of $300.0 
million of 7.95% First Mortgage Bonds, partially offset by $493.1 million in various debt repayments and $101.1 million of cash dividends 
paid on common stock.  

Cash flows provided by financing activities in 2007 were $421.0 million and primarily included $936.9 million (net of $12.9 million 
related to original issue discounts and debt issuance costs) in proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt, consisting of the issuance of $459.3 
million of environmental control bonds, $215.5 million of tax-exempt pollution control refunding bonds and $275.0 million of 5.95% First 
Mortgage Bonds. Partially offsetting these amounts were $502.2 million in various debt repayments.  

AE Common Stock  

AE issued 0.2 million and 2.1 million shares of common stock in 2009 and 2008, respectively, primarily in connection with stock option 
exercises and the settlement of stock units. There were no shares of common stock repurchased in 2009 or 2008.  

Recent Accounting Pronouncements  

See consolidated financial statement Note 2, “Recently Adopted and Recently Issued Accounting Standards,” for information on recent 
accounting pronouncements affecting Allegheny.  
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(In millions)    2009     2008     2007   

Issuance of long-term debt     $ 1,508.3      $ 647.6      $ 936.9    
Repayment of long-term debt       (1,177.2 )      (493.1 )      (502.2 )  
Costs associated with the AE Supply revolving credit facility refinancing       (22.2 )      —          —      
Issuance (repayment) of note payable       —          (10.0 )      10.0    
Equity contribution to PATH, LLC by a joint venture partner       8.7        4.5        —      
Payments on capital lease obligations       (8.5 )      (9.0 )      —      
Redemption of preferred stock of subsidiary       —          —          (24.0 )  
Redemption premium and dividend on preferred stock of Monongahela       —          —          (1.8 )  
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options       2.3        25.3        26.4    
Cash dividends paid on common stock       (101.7 )      (101.1 )      (25.0 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net cash provided by financing activities     $ 209.7      $ 64.2      $ 420.3    
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Credit Ratings  

The following table lists Allegheny’s credit ratings, as of March 1, 2010:  
   

MARKET RISK INFORMATION  

Allegheny is exposed to market risks associated with changes in commodity prices and interest rates as well as credit risk. The 
commodity price risk exposure results from market fluctuations in the price and transportation costs of electricity, coal, natural gas and other 
energy-related commodities. The interest rate risk exposure results from changes in interest rates related to variable-rate debt and debt that is 
maturing and will be refinanced. Allegheny has a program designed to systematically identify, measure, evaluate and actively manage and 
assess market risks.  

Allegheny has a Corporate Risk Policy adopted by its Board of Directors and compliance with this policy is monitored by a Risk 
Management Committee, which is chaired by its Chief Executive Officer or his designee and is composed of senior management. An 
independent risk management group within Allegheny also measures and monitors the risk exposures to ensure compliance with the policy and 
to ensure that the policy is periodically reviewed.  

Commodity Price Risk  

Allegheny has commodity price risk to the extent that the amount of energy it generates and contracts to purchase differs from the amount 
of energy it has contracted to sell. Allegheny is also exposed to market risks associated with changes in commodity prices resulting from 
changes in supply and demand, fuel costs, market liquidity, weather, environmental regulation and other factors.  

To manage its exposure to market price changes relating to its energy related assets, liabilities and other contractual arrangements, 
Allegheny sells and purchases physical energy at the wholesale and retail level and  
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     Moody’s    S & P    Fitch   

Outlook     Stable    Stable    Stable    
AE:           

Corporate Credit Rating     Not Rated    BBB-   BBB-(a)  
Senior Unsecured Debt     Ba1    BB+    BBB-   
AE Supply:           

Senior Secured Debt     Baa2    BBB    BBB    
Senior Unsecured Debt     Baa3    BBB-   BBB-   
Monongahela:           

First Mortgage Bonds     Baa1    BBB+    BBB+    
Senior Unsecured Debt     Baa3    BBB-   BBB-   
Environmental Control Bonds     Aaa    AAA    AAA    
Potomac Edison:           

First Mortgage Bonds     Baa1    BBB+    BBB+    
Environmental Control Bonds     Aaa    AAA    AAA    
West Penn:           

Transition Bonds     Aaa    AAA    AAA    
First Mortgage Bonds     Baa1    BBB+    BBB+    
Senior Unsecured Debt     Baa3    BBB-   BBB-   
TrAIL:           

Senior Unsecured Debt     Baa2    BBB-   BBB    
AGC:           

Senior Unsecured Debt     Baa3    BBB-   BBB-   
  
(a) Issuer Default Rating 
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enters into financial exchange-traded and over the counter derivative contracts. See consolidated financial statement Note 13, “Fair Value 
Measurements, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” for information regarding Allegheny’s derivative positions held at 
December 31, 2009.  

In general, increases in forward market prices for power have a positive impact, and decreases in forward market prices have a negative 
impact, on Allegheny’s owned and contracted generation positions that have not been hedged. As of December 31, 2009, the percentage of 
expected coal-fired generation hedged was approximately 82%, 30%, 4% and 1% for 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively. These 
percentages represent the estimated amount of equivalent sales divided by the amount of energy purchases contracted and estimated to be 
generated by our coal plants in such periods.  

Allegheny measures the sensitivity of the portfolio to potential changes in market prices using high-level sensitivity analysis and Value at 
Risk (See Derivative Market Risk section).  

Allegheny performed a high-level sensitivity analysis of the impact of changes in power and coal prices on its future pre-tax income. The 
estimated market price exposure for Allegheny’s coal-fired generation portfolio associated with a $10 per MWh decrease in energy prices 
based on December 31, 2009 market conditions and hedged position would be a decrease in pre-tax income of approximately $62 million, $243 
million and $329 million for 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively. The estimated market price exposure for Allegheny’s coal-fired generation 
portfolio associated with a $10 per ton increase in coal prices based on December 31, 2009 market conditions and hedged position would be a 
decrease in pre-tax income of approximately $5 million, $48 million and $56 million for 2010, 2011, and 2012, respectively. These power and 
coal price sensitivities were estimated by individually adjusting power price assumptions and coal price assumptions, respectively, while in 
each case holding all other variables constant. Actual results could differ based on changes in load volumes, plant performance, dispatch 
changes, basis changes relative to PJM Western Hub power prices, among other factors.  

To the extent Allegheny does not hedge against commodity price volatility, its consolidated results of operations, cash flows and 
consolidated financial position may be affected either favorably or unfavorably by a shift in the forward price curves and spot commodity 
prices.  

Allegheny enters into certain contracts for the purchase and sale of electricity. Certain of these contracts are recorded at their fair value 
and are an economic hedge for the generation facilities. For accounting purposes, the generation facilities are recorded at historical cost less 
depreciation. As a result, Allegheny’s results of operations and financial position can be favorably or unfavorably affected by a change in 
forward market prices.  

Of its commodity-driven risks, Allegheny is primarily exposed to risks associated with the wholesale and retail electricity markets, 
including generation, coal and other fuel procurement, power marketing and the purchase and sale of electricity. Allegheny’s wholesale and 
retail activities principally consist of bilateral forward contracts for the purchase and sale of electricity. The majority of these contracts 
represent commitments to purchase or sell electricity at fixed prices in the future. These forward contracts can require either physical or 
financial settlement.  

Derivative Market Risk  

Derivatives that are not designated as part of a cash flow hedge relationship or as normal purchase normal sale (“NPNS”) contracts are 
reported in revenues on a mark-to-market basis.  

Allegheny and AE Supply measure their market risk exposure to mark-to-market derivative contracts other than FTRs using value at risk 
model (“VaR”). VaR is a statistical model that measures the variability of value and predicts the risk of loss based on historical market price 
and volatility data over a given period of time. The quantification of market risk using VaR provides a consistent measure of risk across diverse 
energy markets and products with different risk factors to set the overall corporate risk tolerance, determine risk targets and monitor  
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positions. Allegheny and AE Supply calculate VaR using the Monte-Carlo technique by simulating thousands of scenarios sampling from the 
probability distribution of uncertain market variables. In addition to VaR, Allegheny and AE Supply routinely perform stress and scenario 
analyses to measure extreme losses due to exceptional events. FTRs are excluded from Allegheny’s calculation of VaR due to the absence of 
liquid spot and forward markets.  

AE Supply calculated the VaR of a 1-day holding period at a 95% confidence level using the full term of all remaining wholesale energy 
market positions that are accounted for on a marked-to-market basis. These wholesale energy market positions consist of derivatives in power, 
emissions and natural gas excluding FTRs. The FTRs are excluded from the VaR measurement as they are generally considered as the 
economic hedges that serve Allegheny’s load obligation. As of December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, this calculation yielded a VaR of 
approximately $1 million and $3 million, respectively. This VaR decrease is primarily due to the positions roll-off in the existing transactions 
being accounted for on a mark-to-market basis as described in consolidated financial statement Note 13 “Fair Value Measurements, Derivative 
Instruments and Hedging Activities.”  

The value of FTRs generally represents an economic hedge of future congestion charges incurred to serve Allegheny’s load obligations. 
The related load obligations, however, are not reflected in Allegheny’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. As a result, the timing of recognition of 
gains or losses on FTRs will differ from the timing of power purchases, including incurred congestion charges. The fair value of FTRs has been 
determined using an internal model based on data from PJM annual and monthly FTR auctions. These monthly auction results can change 
significantly over time and may differ from the final settlement amounts. As described in consolidated financial statement Note 13 “Fair Value 
Measurements, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” Allegheny recorded $33.2 million in unrealized gains attributable to FTRs 
during the twelve months ended December 31, 2009.  

Interest Rate Risk  

At December 31, 2009, AE did not have any debt subject to variable interest except for $455 million of variable rate debt relating to the 
TrAIL project, which is provided a return for recovery of the estimated cost of debt, compared to $537.0 million of outstanding debt subject to 
variable interest rates at December 31, 2008. See consolidated financial statement Note 8, “Capitalization and Debt” for additional information 
regarding Allegheny debt.  

Credit Risk  

Credit risk is defined as the risk that a counterparty to a transaction will be unable to fulfill its contractual obligations. Allegheny 
evaluates the credit standing of a prospective counterparty based on the prospective counterparty’s financial condition. Where deemed 
necessary, Allegheny may impose specified collateral requirements and use standardized agreements that facilitate netting of cash flows. 
Allegheny monitors the financial conditions of existing counterparties on an ongoing basis. Allegheny’s independent risk management group 
oversees credit risk.  

Allegheny engages in various energy transacting activities. The counterparties to these transactions generally include electric and natural 
gas utilities, independent power producers, energy marketers and commercial and industrial customers. In the event the counterparties do not 
fulfill their obligations, Allegheny may incur a loss to close out a position.  

Allegheny has a concentration of counterparties in the electric and natural gas utility industries. This concentration of counterparties may 
affect Allegheny’s overall exposure to credit risk, either positively or negatively, because these counterparties may be similarly affected by 
changes in economic or other conditions.  

Allegheny is dependent on coal for much of its electric generation capacity. Allegheny has coal supply contracts in place that partially 
mitigate its exposure to negative fluctuations in coal prices. However, Allegheny  
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can provide no assurance that the counterparties to these agreements will fulfill their obligations to supply coal. The suppliers under these 
agreements may, as a general matter, experience financial, legal or technical problems that inhibit their ability to fulfill their obligations. 
Among other circumstances, the prevailing constrained credit markets and overall negative economic conditions may affect the ability of 
Allegheny’s suppliers to access the capital markets and maintain adequate liquidity to sustain their respective businesses. Various industry and 
operational factors, including increased costs, transportation constraints, safety issues and operational difficulties may have negative effects on 
coal supplier performance. During periods of rising coal prices, the factors impacting supplier performance could have a more pronounced 
financial impact. Furthermore, the suppliers under these agreements may not be required to supply coal to Allegheny under certain 
circumstances, such as in the event of a natural disaster. If Allegheny is unable to obtain its coal requirements under these contracts, it may be 
required to purchase coal at higher prices. In addition, although these agreements generally contain specified prices, they also provide for price 
adjustments related to changes in specified cost indices, as well as specific events, such as changes in regulations affecting the coal industry. 
Changes in the supply and price of coal could have a material adverse effect on Allegheny’s business, results of operations, cash flow and 
financial condition.  

As of December 31, 2009, Allegheny’s commodity hedges are comprised primarily of derivatives that will expire through May 2013.  

Allegheny currently is involved in a number of capital intensive projects, including the TrAIL Project, the PATH Project and Act 129 
related projects in Pennsylvania. Allegheny has contracted, or expects to contract, with specialized vendors to acquire some of the necessary 
materials and construction related services in order to complete these projects. As such, Allegheny is exposed to the risk that these contractors 
may not perform as required under their contracts. Should this occur, Allegheny may be forced to find alternate arrangements, which may cause 
delay and/or increased costs. Furthermore, Allegheny can provide no assurance that it would be able to make such alternate arrangements on 
terms acceptable to it or at all.  

Allegheny also may be subject to credit risk through its participation in PJM, to the extent that PJM socializes counterparty defaults 
across PJM members.  

Wholesale Credit Risk  

Allegheny measures wholesale credit risk as the replacement cost for derivatives in power and natural gas excluding FTRs (both mark-to-
market and accrual) adjusted for amounts owed to or due from counterparties for settled transactions. The replacement cost of open positions 
represents unrealized gains, net of any unrealized losses, where we have a legally enforceable right of setoff. Allegheny monitors and manages 
the credit risk of our wholesale marketing, risk management, and energy transacting operation through credit policies and procedures which 
include an established credit approval process, daily monitoring of counterparty credit limits, the use of credit mitigation measures such as 
margin, collateral, and the use of master netting agreements.  

Retail Credit Risk  

Allegheny is exposed to retail credit risk through our competitive electricity activities, which serve commercial and industrial companies. 
Retail credit risk results when customers default on their contractual obligations or fail to pay for service rendered. This risk represents the loss 
that may be incurred due to the nonpayment of customer accounts receivable balances, as well as the loss from the resale of energy previously 
committed to serve customers.  

Retail credit risk is managed through established credit approval policies, monitoring customer exposures, and the use of credit mitigation 
measures such as deposits in the form of letters of credit, security bonds, and cash or prepayment arrangements.  

Retail credit quality is dependent on the economy and the ability of our customers to manage through unfavorable economic cycles and 
other market changes. If the business environment were to be negatively affected by changes in economic or other market conditions, our retail 
credit risk may be adversely impacted.  
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As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the credit portfolio of our wholesale and retail marketing, risk management, and energy transacting 
operation had the following public credit ratings:  
   

A portion of our total wholesale and retail credit risk is related to transactions that are recorded in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. 
These transactions primarily consist of open positions from our wholesale marketing, retail marketing, risk management, and energy 
transacting operations that are accounted for using derivative accounting, as well as amounts owed by wholesale counterparties for transactions 
that settled but have not yet been paid. The following table highlights the credit quality and exposures related to these activities, excluding 
FTRs, at December 31, 2009:  
   

Due to the possibility of extreme volatility in the prices of energy commodities and derivatives, the market value of contractual positions 
with individual counterparties could exceed established credit limits or collateral provided by those counterparties. If such a counterparty were 
then to fail to perform its obligations under its contract (for example, by failing to deliver the electricity our wholesale marketing, risk 
management, and energy transacting operation had contracted for), we could incur a loss that could have a material impact on our financial 
results.  

APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to apply accounting policies and make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. The areas described in this section 
require significant judgment in the application of accounting policy or in making estimates and assumptions in matters that are uncertain and 
that may change in subsequent periods. Further discussion of the application of these accounting policies can be found in the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements.  

Revenues and Receivables:   Revenues from the sale of electricity to customers are recognized in the period that the electricity is 
delivered and consumed by customers, including an estimate for unbilled revenues. Energy billings to individual customers are based on meter 
readings, which are performed periodically on a systematic basis. At the end of each month, the amount of energy delivered to each customer is 
estimated based in part on the most recent reading of the customer’s meter, and the Distribution Companies recognize unbilled revenues that 
reflect these estimates. The unbilled revenue estimates are based on daily generation, purchases of electricity, estimated customer usage by 
customer type, weather effects, electric line losses and the most recent consumer rates. A provision for uncollectible accounts is recorded as a 
component of operations and maintenance expense.  
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       2009     2008   
Rating:       

Investment Grade (a)     78 %    91 %  
Non-Investment Grade     2 %    —      
Non-Rated     20 %    9 %  

  
(a) Includes counterparties with an investment grade rating by at least one of the major credit rating agencies. If split rating exists, the lower 

rating is used. 

(Dollar amounts in millions)    
Total Exposure  

Before Collateral    Collateral    Net Exposure    

Number of  
Counterparties 
With Greater  
than 10% of  
Net Exposure    

Net Exposure of 
Counterparties 
With Greater  
Than 10% of  
Net Exposure   

Rating:                 

Investment grade     $ 22.3    $ 13.2    $ 35.5    2    69.6 %  
Non-investment grade       1.0      —        1.0    —      —      
Not rated       9.2      —        9.2    —      —      

                             

Total     $ 32.5    $ 13.2    $ 45.7    2    54.0 %  
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Derivative Contracts:   Derivative contracts are recorded in Allegheny’s Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value with changes in the 
fair value of the derivative contract included in revenues or expenses on the Consolidated Statements of Income unless the derivative falls 
within the “normal purchases and normal sales” scope exception or is designated as a cash flow hedge for accounting purposes. The normal 
purchases and normal sales scope exception requires, among other things, physical delivery in quantities expected to be used or sold over a 
reasonable period in the normal course of business. Contracts that are designated as normal purchases and normal sales are accounted for under 
accrual accounting and, therefore, are not recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. For certain transactions that are designed to hedge the 
cash flows of a forecasted transaction, the effective portion of the hedge is recorded as a separate component of stockholders’ equity under the 
caption “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” and subsequently reclassified into earnings when the forecasted transaction is completed or 
settled. Changes in the value of any ineffective portion of the hedge are immediately recognized in earnings.  

Fair values for exchange-traded instruments, principally futures, are based on actively quoted market prices. Fair values are subject to 
change in the near term and reflect management’s best estimate based on various factors. In establishing the fair value of commodity contracts 
that do not have quoted prices, such as physical contracts, FTRs and swaps, management uses available market data and pricing models to 
estimate fair values. Estimating the fair values of instruments that do not have quoted market prices requires management’s judgment in 
determining amounts that could reasonably be expected to be received from, or paid to, a third party in settlement of the instruments. These 
amounts could be materially different from amounts that might be realized in an actual sale transaction.  

Allegheny has netting agreements with various counterparties. These agreements provide the right to set off amounts due from or to the 
counterparty. In cases in which these netting agreements are in place, Allegheny records the fair value of derivative assets and liabilities and of 
accounts receivable and accounts payable with each counterparty on a net basis. In addition, FTR assets and obligations are recorded on a net 
basis. Cash flows associated with derivative contracts are recorded in cash flows from operating activities. See consolidated financial statement 
Note 13, “Fair Value Measurements, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” for additional details regarding energy transaction 
activities.  

Regulatory Accounting:   The Distribution Companies, TrAIL Company and PATH, LLC are subject to regulations that set the rates that 
they are permitted to charge customers. These rates are based on costs that the applicable regulatory agencies determine that the Distribution 
Companies, TrAIL Company and PATH, LLC are permitted to recover. At times, regulators permit the future recovery through rates of 
incurred costs that would otherwise be charged to expense by an unregulated company. At times, regulators may also allow the collection of 
amounts in rates for costs expected to be incurred in the future or may require that amounts collected be set aside for a specific purpose or be 
credited or refunded to customers in the future. This ratemaking process often results in the recording of regulatory assets and liabilities based 
on estimated future cash inflows and outflows under regulatory guidelines and orders. Allegheny regularly reviews its regulatory assets and 
liabilities, including the estimates and assumptions on the basis of which they have been recorded and related regulatory interpretations.  

Depreciation:   Depreciation expense is determined generally on a straight-line group method over the estimated service lives of 
depreciable assets for unregulated operations. For regulated utility operations, depreciation expense is determined using a straight-line group 
method in accordance with currently enacted regulatory rates. Under the straight-line group method, plant components are categorized as 
“retirement units” or “minor items of property.” As retirement units are replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalized and the original 
component is retired. Replacements of minor items of property are expensed as maintenance.  

Long-Lived Assets:   Allegheny’s Consolidated Balance Sheets include significant long-lived assets that are not subject to recovery under 
cost of service based ratemaking. Allegheny’s long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not  
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be recoverable through operations. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value as determined by the use of quoted market prices, 
appraisals or other valuation techniques, such as expected discounted future cash flows and market-value-to-earnings comparisons, an 
impairment loss is recognized, and the asset is written down to its fair value.  

Excess of Cost Over Net Assets Acquired (Goodwill):   Recorded goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually, and more frequently 
upon indication of possible impairment. The first phase of a goodwill impairment test involves comparison of reporting unit fair value to the 
carrying value of the reporting unit that has been assigned goodwill. All of Allegheny’s goodwill is recorded in its Merchant Generation 
reporting unit. This impairment testing requires the use of estimates, assumptions and other inputs to determine the fair value of the Merchant 
Generation reporting unit using both a discounted cash flow approach and a market-based valuation approach. These estimates, assumptions 
and other inputs involve the use of judgment, and changes in these inputs can significantly impact the estimated reporting unit fair value. No 
impairment of goodwill was recorded during any of the years presented.  

Income Taxes:   Allegheny is subject to income taxes in the United States and in various state jurisdictions. Significant judgment is 
required in evaluating tax positions and determining the provisions for income taxes. Allegheny establishes reserves for tax-related 
uncertainties based on estimates of whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes will be due. Allegheny adjusts these reserves in light of 
changing facts and circumstances, such as the outcome of tax audits.  

Stock-Based Compensation:   GAAP requires measurement of compensation cost for all stock-based awards at fair value on the date of 
grant and recognition of compensation cost over the service period for the awards expected to vest. The determination of grant date fair value 
requires the use of judgment based on historical information as well as future expectations. In addition, the estimates of stock-based awards that 
will ultimately vest requires judgment, and actual results or updated estimates may differ from current estimates. See consolidated financial 
statement Note 10, “Stock-Based Compensation,” for additional information.  

Accounting for Pensions and Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions:   There are a number of significant estimates and 
assumptions involved in determining Allegheny’s pension and other postretirement benefit (“OPEB”) obligations and costs each period, such 
as employee demographics, discount rates, expected rates of return on plan assets, estimated rates of future compensation increases, medical 
inflation and the fair value of plan assets. Changes made to provisions for pension or other postretirement benefit plans may also affect current 
and future pension and OPEB costs. Allegheny believes that its assumptions are supported by historical data and reasonable projections, and its 
projections are reviewed annually with an outside actuarial firm. See consolidated financial statement Note 11, “Pension Benefits and 
Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” for additional information concerning these assumptions.  

Allegheny determines its discount rate assumptions through the use of a cash flow matching process in which the timing and amount of 
estimated benefit cash flows for each benefit plan are matched with an interest rate curve applicable to the returns of high quality corporate 
bonds over the expected benefit payment period to determine an overall effective discount rate. The interest rate curve used in this process is 
based primarily on the Citigroup Pension Discount Curve and the Citigroup Above Median Pension Discount Curve.  
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Allegheny’s general approach for determining the overall expected long-term rate of return on plan assets considers historical and 
expected future asset returns, the current and future targeted asset mix of the plan assets, historical and future expected real rates of return for 
equities and fixed income securities and historical and expected inflation statistics. The following table shows the effect that a one percentage 
point increase or decrease in the discount rate on plan assets for 2009 would have on Allegheny’s pension and OPEB obligations and costs:  
   

Contingencies:   Allegheny regularly reviews and assesses the likelihood of losses relating to environmental, legal and other 
contingencies and accrues a liability for matters for which it believes that a loss is probable if the probable loss can be estimated. See 
consolidated financial statement Note 25, “Commitments and Contingencies,” for additional information.  
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(In millions)    
1-Percentage-Point 

Increase     
1-Percentage-Point 

Decrease 

Change in the discount rate:       

Pension and OPEB obligation     $ (160.2 )    $ 195.0 
Net periodic pension and OPEB cost     $ (11.4 )    $ 15.5 

Change in expected rate of return on plan assets:       

Net periodic pension and OPEB cost     $ (10.0 )    $ 10.0 
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ITEM 7A.    QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK  

The information required by Item 7A relating to market risk is included in Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations.  
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ITEM 8.    FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA  
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ALLEGHENY ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME  
   

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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(In millions, except per share amounts) 
   Year ended December 31,   
   2009     2008     2007   

Operating revenues     $ 3,426.8      $ 3,385.9      $ 3,307.0    
       

  
      

  
      

  

Operating expenses:         

Fuel       886.6        1,080.9        930.8    
Purchased power and transmission       502.0        395.6        393.2    
Deferred energy costs, net       (64.4 )      (63.7 )      (10.1 )  
Operations and maintenance       687.1        674.8        687.0    
Depreciation and amortization       282.1        273.9        277.0    
Taxes other than income taxes       213.6        214.9        211.8    

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total operating expenses       2,507.0        2,576.4        2,489.7    
       

  
      

  
      

  

Operating income       919.8        809.5        817.3    
Other income (expense), net       7.0        22.3        36.8    
Interest expense       291.1        231.9        187.3    

       
  

      
  

      
  

Income before income taxes       635.7        599.9        666.8    
Income tax expense       241.6        204.1        250.8    

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net income       394.1        395.8        416.0    
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests       (1.3 )      (0.4 )      (3.8 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net income attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc.     $ 392.8      $ 395.4      $ 412.2    
       

  

      

  

      

  

Earnings per share attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc.:         

Basic     $ 2.32      $ 2.35      $ 2.48    
Diluted     $ 2.31      $ 2.33      $ 2.43    

Average shares outstanding:         

Basic       169.5        168.5        166.0    
Diluted       170.0        170.0        169.5    

Dividends per share     $ 0.60      $ 0.60      $ 0.15    
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ALLEGHENY ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
   

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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(In millions) 
   Year ended December 31,   
   2009     2008     2007   

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:         

Net income     $ 394.1      $ 395.8      $ 416.0    
Adjustments for non-cash items included in income:         

Depreciation and amortization       282.1        273.9        277.0    
Amortization of debt related costs       15.4        10.9        10.1    
Amortization of power sale liability related to Ohio sale       —          —          (10.5 )  
Amortization of Pennsylvania transition assets and liabilities       (17.5 )      (8.1 )      2.2    
Gain associated with the acquisition of assets       (17.3 )      —          —      
Provision for uncollectible accounts       16.4        16.5        17.3    
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credit, net       235.3        156.2        260.7    
Deferred energy costs, net       (64.4 )      (63.7 )      (10.1 )  
Unrealized gains on derivative contracts, net       (23.4 )      (18.8 )      (3.2 )  
Employee benefit expenses       55.7        45.2        46.7    
Contributions to pension and OPEB plans       (48.6 )      (49.3 )      (50.0 )  
Deferred revenue-Fort Martin scrubber project       11.0        10.8        18.3    
Deferred revenue-Virginia       (28.3 )      28.3        —      
Uncollected transmission revenue       (16.0 )      (8.1 )      —      
Accrued interest reversal-Merrill Lynch settlement       —          —          (54.7 )  
Other, net       8.0        17.3        (12.7 )  

Changes in certain assets and liabilities:         

Accounts receivable, net       (42.9 )      (26.2 )      (31.7 )  
Materials, supplies and fuel       (75.2 )      (62.8 )      (4.5 )  
Collateral deposits       37.7        23.1        (6.7 )  
Accounts payable       29.5        (36.7 )      61.9    
Accrued taxes       (29.2 )      43.1        (10.5 )  
Regulatory assets and liabilities       32.9        111.7        17.6    
Assets and liabilities related to the sale of ACC fiber       21.3        —          —      
Other operating assets and liabilities       23.0        2.3        22.6    

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net cash provided by operating activities       799.6        861.4        955.8    
       

  
      

  
      

  

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:         

Capital expenditures       (1,166.2 )      (994.1 )      (848.4 )  
Purchase of hydroelectric business       (2.0 )      —          —      
Proceeds from asset sales       3.0        1.1        1.8    
Purchase of Merrill Lynch interest in subsidiary       —          (50.0 )      —      
Decrease (increase) in other restricted funds       0.3        10.7        (34.5 )  
Restricted funds used (provided) for Fort Martin construction       83.8        213.7        (347.0 )  
Other investments       (3.7 )      (3.7 )      (3.3 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net cash used in investing activities       (1,084.8 )      (822.3 )      (1,231.4 )  
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ALLEGHENY ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)  
   

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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(In millions) 
   Year ended December 31,   
   2009     2008     2007   

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:         

Issuance of long-term debt       1,508.3        647.6        936.9    
Repayment of long-term debt       (1,177.2 )      (493.1 )      (502.2 )  
Costs associated with the AE Supply revolving credit facility refinancing       (22.2 )      —          —      
Issuance (repayment) of note payable       —          (10.0 )      10.0    
Equity contribution to PATH, LLC by a joint venture partner       8.7        4.5        —      
Payments on capital lease obligations       (8.5 )      (9.0 )      —      
Redemption of preferred stock of Monongahela       —          —          (24.0 )  
Redemption premium and dividend on preferred stock of Monongahela       —          —          (1.8 )  
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options       2.3        25.3        26.4    
Cash dividends paid on common stock       (101.7 )      (101.1 )      (25.0 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net cash provided by financing activities       209.7        64.2        420.3    
       

  
      

  
      

  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents       (75.5 )      103.3        144.7    
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period       362.1        258.8        114.1    

       
  

      
  

      
  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period     $ 286.6      $ 362.1      $ 258.8    
       

  

      

  

      

  

Supplemental Cash Flow Information:         

Cash paid during the year for interest (net of amounts capitalized)     $ 264.8      $ 228.2      $ 209.6    
Cash paid (received) during the year for income taxes, net     $ 41.3      $ 10.8      $ (0.7 )  
Accounts payable at December 31 relating to capital expenditures     $ 132.5      $ 91.8      $ 101.4    
Non-cash investing activity relating to hydroelectric business combination     $ 17.3      $ —        $ —      
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(In millions) 
   As of December 31,   
   2009     2008   

ASSETS       

Current Assets:       

Cash and cash equivalents     $ 286.6      $ 362.1    
Accounts receivable:       

Customer       188.2        188.3    
Unbilled utility revenue       116.4        122.7    
Wholesale and other       64.4        61.5    
Allowance for uncollectible accounts       (14.0 )      (13.3 )  

Materials and supplies       110.6        115.1    
Fuel       206.4        128.2    
Deferred income taxes       81.5        69.6    
Prepaid taxes       48.4        44.8    
Collateral deposits       20.8        33.4    
Derivative assets       4.6        113.1    
Restricted funds       25.9        36.8    
Regulatory assets       132.7        158.8    
Assets held for sale       32.4        —      
Other       40.4        74.6    

       
  

      
  

Total current assets       1,345.3        1,495.7    
       

  
      

  

Property, Plant and Equipment:       

Generation       7,469.4        6,107.3    
Transmission       1,313.2        1,179.5    
Distribution       3,784.4        3,944.7    
Other       440.7        455.0    
Accumulated depreciation       (5,104.9 )      (4,994.1 )  

       
  

      
  

Subtotal       7,902.8        6,692.4    
Construction work in progress       800.6        1,309.8    
Property, plant and equipment held for sale, net       253.7        —      

       
  

      
  

Total property, plant and equipment, net       8,957.1        8,002.2    
       

  
      

  

Other Noncurrent Assets:       

Regulatory assets       717.3        687.7    
Goodwill       367.3        367.3    
Restricted funds       60.2        133.3    
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates       26.7        28.0    
Derivative assets       —          9.8    
Other       115.2        87.0    

       
  

      
  

Total other noncurrent assets       1,286.7        1,313.1    
       

  
      

  

Total Assets     $ 11,589.1      $ 10,811.0    
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(In millions, except share amounts) 
   As of December 31,   
   2009     2008   

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY       

Current Liabilities:       

Long-term debt due within one year     $ 140.8      $ 93.9    
Accounts payable       411.4        368.0    
Accrued taxes       87.3        119.4    
Payable to PJM for FTRs       31.7        110.8    
Derivative liabilities       24.4        22.2    
Regulatory liabilities       37.4        69.2    
Accrued interest       68.3        58.1    
Security deposits       51.0        46.2    
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale       10.1        —      
Other       123.2        115.8    

       
  

      
  

Total current liabilities       985.6        1,003.6    
       

  
      

  

Long-term Debt       4,417.0        4,115.9    
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities:       

Derivative liabilities       6.7        11.9    
Income taxes payable       85.7        75.7    
Investment tax credit       61.6        65.8    
Deferred income taxes       1,501.3        1,277.4    
Regulatory liabilities       461.2        528.9    
Pension and other postretirement employee benefit plan liabilities       597.4        578.4    
Adverse power purchase commitment       114.4        132.3    
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale       53.1        —      
Other       177.0        165.4    

       
  

      
  

Total deferred credits and other liabilities       3,058.4        2,835.8    
       

  
      

  

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 25)       

Equity:       

Common stock-$1.25 par value per share, 260 million shares authorized and 169,620,917 and 
169,413,887 shares issued at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively       212.0        211.8    

Other paid-in capital       1,970.2        1,952.5    
Retained earnings       1,022.7        731.6    
Treasury stock at cost- 51,313 and 49,493 shares at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively       (1.8 )      (1.8 )  
Accumulated other comprehensive loss       (89.9 )      (43.3 )  

       
  

      
  

Total Allegheny Energy, Inc. common stockholders’  equity       3,113.2        2,850.8    
Noncontrolling interest       14.9        4.9    

       
  

      
  

Total equity       3,128.1        2,855.7    
       

  
      

  

Total Liabilities and Equity     $ 11,589.1      $ 10,811.0    
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(In millions, except shares)   
Shares  

outstanding   

Common 
 

stock   

Other  
paid-in 
capital     

Retained 
 

earnings     

Treasury 
 

stock     

Accumulated  
other  

comprehensive 
 

loss     

Total  
Allegheny  

Energy, Inc. 
common  

stockholders’
 

equity     

Noncontrolling 
 

interests     
Total  
equity     

Comprehensive 
 

income   
Balance at December 31, 2006    165,360,415   $ 206.8   $ 1,907.9      $ 74.7      $ (1.8 )    $ (107.2 )    $ 2,080.4      $ 34.7      $ 2,115.1      
Net income    —       —       —          412.2        —          —          412.2        3.8        416.0      $ 416.0    
Defined benefit pension and other 

benefit plans:                      
Net gain during the period, net of 

tax of $10.6    —       —       —          —          —          15.7        15.7        —          15.7        15.7    
Amortization, net of tax of $2.4    —       —       —          —          —          3.5        3.5        —          3.5        3.5    

Cash flow hedges, net of tax of $2.9    —       —       —          —          —          (4.5 )      (4.5 )      —          (4.5 )      (4.5 )  
Effects of West Virginia Rate Order:                      

Establishment of regulatory asset 
related to pension obligation, 
net of tax of $35.7    —       —       —          —          —          52.3        52.3          52.3        52.3    

Adjustment related to 2005 SO 
allowance sale, net of tax of 
$5.8    —       —       (8.3 )      —          —          —          (8.3 )      —          (8.3 )    

Asset swap    —       —       —          —          —          —          —          (0.7 )      (0.7 )   
                        

  

Comprehensive income                        483.0    
Comprehensive income attributable 

to noncontrolling interests                        (3.8 )  
                        

  

Comprehensive income attributable 
to Allegheny Energy, Inc.                      $ 479.2    

                        

  

Adoption of FIN 48    —       —       —          (17.7 )      —          —          (17.7 )      —          (17.7 )    
Redemption of preferred stock of 

Monongahela    —       —       —          —          —          —          —          (24.0 )      (24.0 )    
Premium on redemption of preferred 

stock of Monongahela    —       —       (1.1 )      —          —          —          (1.1 )      —          (1.1 )    
Dividends on preferred stock of 

Monongahela    —       —       —          —          —          —          —          (0.7 )      (0.7 )    
Dividends on common stock    —       —       —          (25.0 )      —          —          (25.0 )      —          (25.0 )    
Stock-based compensation expense:                      

Stock units    —       —       2.4        —          —          —          2.4        —          2.4      
Non-employee director stock 

awards    18,300     —       0.9        —          —          —          0.9        —          0.9      
Stock options    —       —       7.0        —          —          —          7.0        —          7.0      

Exercise of stock options    1,445,969     1.8     24.6        —          —          —          26.4          26.4      
Settlement of stock units    373,395     0.5     (9.3 )      —          —          —          (8.8 )      —          (8.8 )    
Settlement of performance shares    25,497     —       —          —          —          —          —          —          —        
Other    —       —       —          —          —          —          —          0.1        0.1      

                
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

  

Balance at December 31, 2007    167,223,576   $ 209.1   $ 1,924.1      $ 444.2      $ (1.8 )    $ (40.2 )    $ 2,535.4      $ 13.2      $ 2,548.6      
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(In millions, except shares)   
Shares  

outstanding   

Common 
 

stock   

Other  
paid-in 
capital     

Retained 
 

earnings     

Treasury 
 

stock     

Accumulated  
other  

comprehensive 
 

loss     

Total  
Allegheny  

Energy, Inc. 
common  

stockholders’
 

equity     

Noncontrolling 
 

interests     
Total  
equity     

Comprehensive 
 

income   
Balance at December 31, 2007    167,223,576   $ 209.1   $ 1,924.1      $ 444.2      $ (1.8 )    $ (40.2 )    $ 2,535.4      $ 13.2      $ 2,548.6      
Net income    —       —       —          395.4        —          —          395.4        0.4        395.8      $ 395.8    
Defined benefit pension and other 

benefit plans:                      
Net loss during the period, net of 

tax of $26.9    —       —       —          —          —          (39.5 )      (39.5 )      —          (39.5 )      (39.5 )  
Amortization, net of tax of $1.1                1.7        1.7          1.7        1.7    

Cash flow hedges, net of tax of $20.5   —       —       —          —          —          32.4        32.4        —          32.4        32.4    
                        

  

Comprehensive income                        390.4    
Comprehensive income attributable 

to noncontrolling interests                        (0.4 )  
                        

  

Comprehensive income attributable 
to Allegheny Energy, Inc.                      $ 390.0    

                        

  

Purchase of noncontrolling interest in 
AE Supply    —       —       —          —          —          —          —          (13.2 )      (13.2 )    

Equity contribution to PATH, LLC 
by the joint venture partner    —       —       —          —          —          —          —          4.5        4.5      

Adoption of measurement date 
provisions for pension and other 
benefit plans:                      

Service cost, interest cost and 
expected return on plan assets, 
net of tax of $3.0    —       —       —          (4.4 )      —          —          (4.4 )      —          (4.4 )    

Amortizations:                      
Net actuarial loss, net of tax of $0.7    —       —       —          (1.0 )      —          1.0        —          —          —        
Net transition obligation, net of tax of 

$0.6    —       —       —          (0.9 )      —          0.9        —          —          —        
Net prior service cost, net of tax of 

$0.3    —       —       —          (0.5 )      —          0.5        —          —          —        
Dividends on common stock    —       —       —          (101.1 )      —          —          (101.1 )      —          (101.1 )    
Stock-based compensation expense:                      

Stock units    —       —       0.6        —          —          —          0.6        —          0.6      
Non-employee director stock 

awards    20,869       1.1          —          —          1.1        —          1.1      
Stock options    —       —       9.3        —          —          —          9.3        —          9.3      
Performance shares    —       —       2.9        —          —          —          2.9        —          2.9      

Exercise of stock options    1,849,316     2.3     23.0        —          —          —          25.3        —          25.3      
Settlement of stock units    270,633     0.4     (8.5 )      —          —          —          (8.1 )      —          (8.1 )    
Dividends on stock units    —       —       —          (0.1 )      —          —          (0.1 )      —          (0.1 )    
Other                (0.1 )      (0.1 )        (0.1 )    

                
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

  

Balance at December 31, 2008    169,364,394   $ 211.8   $ 1,952.5      $ 731.6      $ (1.8 )    $ (43.3 )    $ 2,850.8      $ 4.9      $ 2,855.7      
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(In millions, except shares)   
Shares  

outstanding     

Common 
 

stock   

Other  
paid-in 
capital   

Retained 
 

earnings     

Treasury 
 

stock     

Accumulated  
other  

comprehensive 
 

loss     

Total  
Allegheny  

Energy, Inc. 
common  

stockholders’
 

equity     

Noncontrolling 
 

interest   
Total  
equity     

Comprehensive 
 

income   
Balance at December 31, 2008    169,364,394      $ 211.8   $ 1,952.5   $ 731.6      $ (1.8 )    $ (43.3 )    $ 2,850.8      $ 4.9   $ 2,855.7      
Net income    —          —       —       392.8        —          —          392.8        1.3     394.1      $ 394.1    
Defined benefit pension and other 

benefit plans:                      
Net loss during the period, net of 

tax of $3.1    —          —       —       —          —          (5.3 )      (5.3 )      —       (5.3 )      (5.3 )  
Amortization, net of tax of $2.1    —          —       —       —          —          3.5        3.5        —       3.5        3.5    

Cash flow hedges, net of tax of $28.5    —          —       —       —          —          (44.8 )      (44.8 )      —       (44.8 )      (44.8 )  
                        

  

Comprehensive income                        347.5    
Comprehensive income attributable 

to noncontrolling interest                        (1.3 )  
                        

  

Comprehensive income attributable 
to Allegheny Energy, Inc.                      $ 346.2    

                        

  

Equity contribution to PATH, LLC 
by the joint venture partner    —          —       —       —          —          —          —          8.7     8.7      

Dividends on common stock    —          —       —       (101.7 )      —          —          (101.7 )      —       (101.7 )    
Stock-based compensation expense:                      

Non-employee director stock 
awards    21,907          0.9       —          —          0.9        —       0.9      

Stock options    —          —       7.4     —          —          —          7.4        —       7.4      
Performance shares    —          —       7.2     —          —          —          7.2        —       7.2      
Restricted shares    17,850        —       0.1     —          —          —          0.1        —       0.1      

Exercise of stock options    163,700        0.2     2.1     —          —          —          2.3        —       2.3      
Settlement of stock units    3,573        —       —       —          —          —          —          —       —        
Treasury stock    (1,820 )      —       —       —          —          —          —          —       —        

    
  

                  
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

            
  

  

Balance at December 31, 2009    169,569,604      $ 212.0   $ 1,970.2   $ 1,022.7      $ (1.8 )    $ (89.9 )    $ 3,113.2      $ 14.9   $ 3,128.1      
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NOTE 1:  BUSINESS, BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

Merger Agreement  

On February 10, 2010, Allegheny Energy, Inc. (“AE”), FirstEnergy Corp. (“FirstEnergy”), and Element Merger Sub, Inc., a direct 
wholly-owned subsidiary of FirstEnergy (“Merger Sub”), entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”). See Note 
27, “Subsequent Event – Merger Agreement” for additional information.  

Business Description  

Allegheny Energy, Inc. (“AE” and, together with its subsidiaries, “Allegheny”) is an integrated energy business that owns and operates 
electric generation facilities and delivers electric services to customers in Pennsylvania, West Virginia, Maryland and Virginia. Allegheny 
manages its operations through two business segments: Merchant Generation and Regulated Operations. These business segments are also 
referred to as reportable segments.  

The Merchant Generation segment includes Allegheny’s unregulated electric generation operations including Allegheny Energy Supply 
Company, LLC (“AE Supply”), and AE Supply’s interest in Allegheny Generating Company (“AGC”). AE Supply owns, operates and controls 
electric generation capacity and supplies and trades energy and energy-related commodities. AGC owns and sells generation capacity to AE 
Supply and Monongahela, which own approximately 59% and 41% of AGC, respectively. The Merchant Generation segment is subject to 
federal and state regulation but, unlike the Regulated Operations segment, is not generally subject to state regulation of rates.  

The Regulated Operations segment consists of Allegheny’s regulated operations including the operations of Monongahela Power 
Company (“Monongahela”), The Potomac Edison Company (“Potomac Edison”) and West Penn Power Company (“West Penn”), Trans-
Allegheny Interstate Line Company (“TrAIL Company”) and Potomac-Appalachian Transmission Highline, LLC (“PATH, LLC”). The 
Distribution Companies (Potomac Edison, West Penn and Monongahela) primarily operate electric transmission and distribution (“T&D”) 
systems in Pennsylvania, West Virginia, Maryland and Virginia. Monongahela also owns and operates electric generation facilities in West 
Virginia and has an ownership interest in AGC. The Distribution Companies are subject to federal and state regulation, including regulation of 
rates. TrAIL Company was formed in 2006 to construct transmission expansion projects, including the Trans-Allegheny Interstate Line 
(“TrAIL”), a 500 kV transmission line to extend from southwestern Pennsylvania through West Virginia and into northern Virginia. PATH, 
LLC, which is a series limited liability company, was formed in 2007 with a subsidiary of American Electric Power Company, Inc. (“AEP”) to 
construct the Potomac-Appalachian Transmission Highline (“PATH”), a high-voltage transmission line that is proposed to extend across West 
Virginia and into Maryland. TrAIL Company and PATH, LLC are subject to the regulation of rates by the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (the “FERC”).  

Allegheny Energy Service Corporation (“AESC”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of AE that employs substantially all of Allegheny’s 
personnel. As of December 31, 2009, AESC employed 4,383 employees, 1,223 of whom were subject to collective bargaining arrangements.  

Basis of Presentation  

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of AE and its subsidiaries, as well as certain variable interest 
entities (See Note 23, “Variable Interest Entities,” for additional information). These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting  
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principles, or GAAP. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Events occurring 
subsequent to the date of the balance sheet have been evaluated for potential recognition or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements 
through the date of filing with the SEC.  

Reclassifications  

As described in Note 12, “Segment Information,” Allegheny changed the composition of its reportable segments during 2009. Segment 
disclosures for 2008 and 2007 have been reclassified to conform to the 2009 presentation. Certain additional amounts in previously issued 
financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation, including the retrospective application of the provisions of 
SFAS No.160 (ASC Topic 810) as described in Note 2, “Recently Adopted and Recently Issued Accounting Standards.”  

Use of Estimates  

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. These estimates include, but are not limited to, inventory valuation, 
allowance for doubtful accounts, goodwill, intangible and long-lived asset impairment, unbilled electricity revenue, valuation of derivative and 
energy contracts, asset retirement obligations, the effects of regulation, long-lived asset recovery, the effects of contingencies and certain 
assumptions made in accounting for pension and postretirement benefits. The estimates and assumptions used are based upon management’s 
evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the financial statements. Actual results could ultimately differ from those 
estimates.  

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities  

Under cost-based regulation, regulated utility enterprises generally are permitted to recover their operating expenses and earn a 
reasonable return on their utility investment.  

Allegheny accounts for its regulated utility operations under regulated industry specific accounting provisions. The economic effects of 
regulation can result in a regulated company deferring costs or revenues that have been, or are expected to be, allowed in the rate-setting 
process in a period different from the period in which the costs, revenues or other comprehensive income would be recognized by an 
unregulated enterprise. Accordingly, Allegheny records assets and liabilities that result from the regulated rate-making process that would not 
be recorded under GAAP for non-regulated entities. These regulatory assets and liabilities are classified in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as 
current and non-current “Regulatory assets” and “Regulatory liabilities.” Allegheny periodically evaluates the applicability of regulated 
industry specific accounting provisions and considers factors such as regulatory changes and the impact of competition. If regulated industry 
specific accounting provisions would no longer apply to some portion of Allegheny’s operations, Allegheny would eliminate the related 
regulatory assets and liabilities and record the impact as an extraordinary item in the statement of income. See Note 6, “Regulatory Assets and 
Liabilities,” for additional information.  

Revenues and Receivables  

Revenues from the sale of generation are recorded in the period in which the electricity is delivered.  

PJM Interconnection, LLC (“PJM”) is a regional transmission organization that operates a competitive wholesale energy market. To 
facilitate the economic dispatch of Allegheny’s generation, AE Supply and Monongahela sell most of the power that they generate into the 
PJM market and purchase from the PJM market most of the power needed to meet their contractual obligations to supply power. PJM power 
purchases and sales are reported on a net basis.  
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Revenues from the sale of electricity to customers of the regulated utility subsidiaries are recognized in the period that the electricity is 
delivered and consumed by customers, including an estimate for unbilled revenues. Energy billings to individual customers are based on meter 
readings, which are performed periodically on a systematic basis. At the end of each month, the amount of energy delivered to each customer is 
estimated based in part on the most recent reading of the customer’s meter, and the Distribution Companies recognize unbilled revenues that 
reflect these estimates. The unbilled revenue estimates are based on daily generation, purchases of electricity, estimated customer usage by 
customer type, weather effects, electric line losses and the most recent consumer rates.  

A provision for uncollectible accounts is recorded as a component of operations and maintenance expense.  

Fair Value Measurements, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities  

Derivative contracts are recorded in Allegheny’s Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. Changes in the fair value of the derivative 
contract are included in revenues or expenses on the Consolidated Statements of Income unless the derivative falls within the “normal 
purchases and normal sales” scope exception or is designated as a cash flow hedge for accounting purposes. The normal purchases and normal 
sales scope exception requires, among other things, physical delivery in quantities expected to be used or sold over a reasonable period in the 
normal course of business. Contracts that are designated as normal purchases and normal sales are accounted for under accrual accounting and, 
therefore, are not recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. For certain transactions that are designed to hedge the cash flows of a forecasted 
transaction and that are designated in a hedging relationship, the effective portion of the changes in fair value of the derivative contract is 
recorded as a separate component of equity under the caption “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” and subsequently reclassified into 
earnings when the forecasted transaction is settled and impacts earnings. The ineffective portion of the hedge is immediately recognized in 
earnings.  

Fair values for exchange-traded instruments, principally futures, are based on actively quoted market prices. Fair values are subject to 
change in the near term and reflect management’s best estimate based on various factors. In establishing the fair value of commodity contracts 
that do not have quoted prices, such as physical contracts, financial transmission rights (“FTRs”) and swaps, management uses available 
market data and pricing models to estimate fair values. Estimating the fair values of instruments that do not have quoted market prices requires 
management’s judgment in determining amounts that could reasonably be expected to be received from, or paid to, a third party in settlement 
of the instruments. These amounts could be materially different from amounts that might be realized in an actual sale transaction.  

Allegheny has netting agreements with various counterparties. These agreements provide the right to set off amounts due from or to the 
counterparty. In cases in which these netting agreements are in place, Allegheny records the fair value of derivative assets, liabilities and cash 
collateral and accounts receivable and accounts payable with each counterparty on a net basis. Cash flows associated with derivative contracts 
are recorded in cash flows from operating activities. See Note 13, “Fair Value Measurements, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” 
for additional details regarding energy transacting activities.  
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Deferred Energy Costs  

Deferred energy costs represent the deferral of certain energy costs from the period in which they were incurred to the period in which 
such costs are recovered in rates. Allegheny records deferred energy costs relating to the following items:  

Expanded Net Energy Cost (“ENEC”)  

In May 2007, the Public Service Commission of West Virginia (the “West Virginia PSC”) issued an order that re-established an annual 
ENEC method of recovering net power supply costs, including fuel costs, purchased power costs, including purchased power costs associated 
with the Grant Town PURPA generation facility and other related expenses, net of related revenue and interest earnings on the Fort Martin 
Scrubber project escrow fund. Under the ENEC, actual costs and revenues are tracked for under and/or over recoveries, and revised ENEC rate 
filings are made on an annual basis. Any under and/or over recovery of costs, net of related revenues, is deferred, for subsequent recovery or 
refund, as a regulatory asset or regulatory liability, with the corresponding impact on the Consolidated Statements of Income reflected within 
“Deferred energy costs, net.” See Note 4, “Rates and Regulation,” and Note 6, “Regulatory Assets and Liabilities,” for additional information.  

Market-based Generation Costs  

Potomac Edison is authorized by the Public Service Commission of Maryland (the “Maryland PSC”) to recover the costs of the 
generation component of power sold to certain residential, commercial and industrial customers who did not choose a third-party alternative 
generation provider. A regulatory asset or liability is recorded on Potomac Edison’s balance sheet for any under-recovery or over-recovery of 
the generation component of costs charged to these customers. In addition, under an order of the Virginia State Corporation Commission (the 
“Virginia SCC”), Potomac Edison was granted a rate adjustment to recover a portion of its increased purchased power costs. The order directed 
Potomac Edison to defer any under- or over-recovery of purchased power costs approved.  

AES Warrior Run PURPA Generation Facility  

To satisfy certain of its obligations under the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978 (“PURPA”), Potomac Edison entered into a 
long-term contract beginning July 1, 2000 to purchase capacity and energy from the AES Warrior Run PURPA generation facility through the 
beginning of 2030. Potomac Edison is authorized by the Maryland PSC to recover all contract costs from the AES Warrior Run PURPA 
generation facility, net of any revenues received from the sale of AES Warrior Run output into the wholesale energy market, by means of a 
retail revenue surcharge (the “AES Warrior Run Surcharge”). Any under-recovery or over-recovery of net costs is being deferred pending 
subsequent recovery from, or return to, customers through adjustments to the AES Warrior Run Surcharge.  

Grant Town PURPA Generation Facility  

Monongahela acquires energy from the Grant Town PURPA generation facility in West Virginia. The West Virginia PSC approved an 
amendment to the Electric Energy Purchase Agreement between Monongahela and American Bituminous Power Partners, L.P., the owners of 
the Grant Town PURPA generation facility, in April 2006. The amendment provided for an increase in the price of energy that Monongahela is 
acquiring until 2017. The West Virginia PSC authorized Monongahela to institute a temporary surcharge designed to recover the increase in 
costs from West Virginia customers, as well as a deferred accounting mechanism by which actual aggregate amounts of the incremental cost 
increase were tracked and reconciled by comparison to the aggregate  
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amounts recovered from West Virginia customers through the temporary surcharge. As a result of the West Virginia Rate Order, beginning in 
2007, these costs are included in the ENEC. See Note 4, “Rates and Regulation” for additional information.  

Debt Issuance Costs  

Costs incurred to issue debt are recorded as deferred charges on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. These costs are amortized over the term 
of the related debt instrument primarily using the effective interest method.  

Common Services and Intercompany Transactions  

Common Services .  Substantially all of Allegheny’s personnel are employed by AESC, which performs services at cost for other 
Allegheny entities and makes payments on behalf of Allegheny entities. Each entity is responsible for its share of the cost of services provided 
by AESC and payments made by AESC on behalf of the entities.  

Income Taxes . AE and its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax return. Federal income tax expense (benefit) and tax assets 
and liabilities are allocated among AE and its subsidiaries generally in proportion to the taxable income of each participant, except that no 
subsidiary pays tax in excess of its separate return income tax liability.  

Allegheny Money Pool .  Allegheny manages excess cash through its internal money pool. The money pool provides funds to approved 
AE subsidiaries at the lower of the Federal Reserve’s previous day federal funds effective interest rate, or the Federal Reserve’s previous day 
seven day commercial paper rate, less four basis points. The minimum interest rate charged to approved AE subsidiaries is zero percent. AE 
and AE Supply can only place money into the money pool. West Penn and Potomac Edison can either place money into, or borrow money 
from, the money pool. AGC can only borrow money from the money pool. Beginning in December 2009, Monongahela can only invest money 
into the money pool, and amounts invested by Monongahela may not be borrowed by any other AE subsidiary.  

Power Sales and Purchases .  AE Supply provides power to Potomac Edison and West Penn to satisfy a portion of the power necessary to 
meet their respective retail load. AE Supply and Monongahela purchase all of AGC’s capacity in the Bath County generation facility under a 
“cost-of-service formula” wholesale rate schedule approved by FERC on a proportionate basis, based on their respective equity ownership of 
AGC.  

Leases .  West Penn and Monongahela own property, including buildings and software that they lease primarily to AESC for its use in 
providing services to AE and its affiliates.  

Long-Lived Assets  

Property, Plant and Equipment  

Property, plant and equipment (“property”) is recorded at original cost. This cost includes direct labor, materials and indirect costs, such 
as operation, maintenance and depreciation of transportation and construction equipment, taxes, postretirement benefits and other benefits 
related to employees to the extent they are engaged in construction. In addition, property subject to rate regulation includes an allowance for 
funds used during construction on property for which construction work in progress is not included in rate base. Property not subject to rate 
regulation includes capitalized interest during the construction period.  
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Upon retirement of property of the Distribution Companies, no gain or loss is generally recognized and the original cost of the property 
less salvage is charged to accumulated depreciation. The cost of removal of regulated property is charged to the related regulatory liability or 
regulatory asset, and the cost of removal of unregulated property, for which no asset retirement obligation (“ARO”) has been recorded, is 
expensed as incurred.  

Allegheny capitalizes the cost of software developed for internal use. These costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected 
useful life of the software.  

Depreciation and Maintenance  

Depreciation expense is determined generally on a straight-line group method over the estimated service lives of depreciable assets for 
unregulated operations. For regulated utility operations, depreciation expense is determined using a straight-line group method in accordance 
with currently enacted regulatory rates. Under the straight-line group method, plant components are categorized as “retirement units” or “minor 
items of property.” As retirement units are replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalized and the original component is retired. 
Replacements of minor items of property are expensed as maintenance. Depreciation expense was approximately 2.3% of average depreciable 
property in 2009, 2008 and 2007. Estimated service lives for generation, T&D and other property at December 31, 2009 were as follows:  
   

The cost of repairs, maintenance including planned major maintenance activities, and minor replacements of property are charged to 
maintenance expense as incurred.  

Capitalized Interest and Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (“AFUDC”)  

For non-regulated companies, Allegheny capitalizes interest costs associated with construction activities. The average interest 
capitalization rates in 2009, 2008, and 2007 were 6.0%, 6.6% and 7.0%, respectively. Allegheny capitalized $25.9 million, $34.6 million, and 
$20.0 million of interest during 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  

AFUDC is a component of the construction of Property, Plant and Equipment defined in the applicable regulatory uniform system of 
accounts as representing “the net cost for the period of construction of borrowed funds used for construction purposes and a reasonable rate on 
other funds when so used.” AFUDC is capitalized in those instances in which the related construction work in progress is not included in rate 
base in the rate setting process and is reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Income as a reduction to Interest expense and Other income 
(expense), net to the extent it relates to borrowed funds and other funds used in construction,  
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     Years 

Generation property:     

Steam scrubbers and equipment     43-65 
Steam generator units     45-80 
Internal combustion units     40-44 
Hydroelectric dams and facilities     50-152 

Transmission and distribution property:     

Electric equipment     10-100 
Easements     70-100 

Other property:     

Office buildings and improvements     42-60 
General office and other equipment     10-25 
Vehicles and transportation     7-25 
Computers, software and information systems     5-20 
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respectively. Rates used by the regulated subsidiaries in computing AFUDC in 2009, 2008 and 2007 averaged 7.3%, 7.2% and 7.6%, 
respectively. Allegheny recorded AFUDC of $8.3 million in 2009 and $6.6 million in 2008 and 2007, of which $5.0 million, $3.7 million and 
$2.7 million was reflected in “Other income (expense), net” and $3.3 million, $2.9 million and $3.9 million was reflected as a reduction to 
“Interest expense” in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  

Asset Impairment  

Allegheny’s long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount of an asset may not be recoverable through operations. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the expected undiscounted future 
cash flows to be generated by the asset, an impairment loss is recognized, and the asset is written down to its fair value. Allegheny did not 
record any impairment charges during 2009 and 2008.  

Asset Retirement Obligations and Cost of Removal  

A liability for the fair value of an asset retirement obligation (“ARO”) is recognized in the period in which it is incurred if it can be 
reasonably estimated, with the offsetting associated asset retirement costs capitalized as a part of the carrying amount of the long-lived assets. 
The asset retirement cost is subsequently charged to expense over its useful life. Changes in the ARO resulting from the passage of time are 
recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the liability and as accretion expense. Changes resulting from revisions to the timing or 
amount of the original estimate of cash flows are recognized as an increase or decrease in the asset retirement cost and ARO. When settled, 
actual ARO costs are charged against the recorded liability.  

In addition, the Distribution Companies recover cost of removal (“COR”) for property, plant and equipment in their rates. In some 
jurisdictions, the recovery is provided prior to the time of asset retirement, in which case, the amounts collected are recorded as a regulatory 
liability. In other jurisdictions, the amounts are recovered only after being incurred, in which case, the amounts incurred are recorded as a 
regulatory asset until recovered. When incurred, COR costs are charged to the regulatory asset or liability.  

Goodwill and Intangible Assets  

Goodwill represents the acquisition cost of a business combination in excess of fair value of tangible and intangible assets acquired, less 
liabilities assumed. Recorded goodwill is not amortized, but is tested for impairment at least annually. Other intangible assets with finite lives 
are amortized over their useful lives and tested for impairment when events or circumstances warrant. See Note 18, “Goodwill and Intangible 
Assets” for additional information.  

Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates  

Investments in unconsolidated affiliates are typically accounted for under the equity method of accounting. The income or loss on such 
investments is recorded in “Other income (expense), net” in the Consolidated Statements of Income. Investments in unconsolidated affiliates of 
$26.7 million and $28.0 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, primarily consisted of Allegheny’s investment, through AE 
Supply, in Buchanan Generation LLC.  

Cash Equivalents  

For purposes of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and Consolidated Balance Sheets, investments in money market funds and 
highly liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less are considered to be the equivalent of cash.  
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Restricted Funds  

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, Allegheny had current restricted funds of $25.9 million and $36.8 million, respectively. Current 
restricted funds at December 31, 2009 included $20.6 million of funds collected from West Virginia customers that will be used to service the 
environmental control bonds in connection with the construction of the Scrubbers at Fort Martin and $5.3 million of intangible transition 
charges collected from West Penn customers related to Pennsylvania transition costs. Current restricted funds at December 31, 2008 included 
$21.9 million of funds collected from West Virginia customers that will be used to service the environmental control bonds in connection with 
the construction of Scrubbers at Fort Martin and $14.9 million of intangible transition charges collected from West Penn customers related to 
Pennsylvania transition costs. In addition, at December 31, 2009 and 2008, Allegheny had long-term restricted funds of $60.2 million and 
$133.3 million, respectively. Long-term restricted funds at December 31, 2009 included $10.3 million of funds remaining from the $235 
million Pennsylvania Development Financing Authority bond issued in connection with the construction and installation of Scrubbers at 
Hatfield’s Ferry generation facility, $49.6 million of funds relating to proceeds from the issuance of ratepayer obligation bonds in connection 
with the construction of the Scrubbers at Fort Martin and $0.3 of escrow funds related to the Scrubber construction projects. Long-term 
restricted funds at December 31, 2008 consisted of funds relating to proceeds from the issuance of ratepayer obligation bonds in connection 
with the construction of the Scrubbers at Fort Martin.  

Collateral Deposits  

Allegheny posts collateral with counterparties, including PJM, for certain transactions and transmission and transportation tariffs. 
Approximately $20.8 million and $33.4 million of cash collateral deposits were included in current assets at December 31, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively. Approximately $3.1 million and $0.2 million of cash collateral deposits were netted against derivative liabilities on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.  

In addition, approximately $27.5 million of counterparty collateral deposits are netted against derivative assets on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets at December 31, 2009.  

Inventory  

Allegheny records materials, supplies and fuel inventory, including emission allowances, using the average cost method.  

Income Taxes  

Allegheny computes income taxes under the liability method. Deferred income tax balances are generally determined based on the 
difference between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect in the years in which the 
differences are expected to reverse. Tax benefits are recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not that a tax position 
will be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities based on the technical merits of the position. Such tax positions are measured as the 
largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the tax authority, assuming full 
knowledge of the position and all relevant facts.  

Deferred income tax assets have also been recorded on the tax effects of net operating losses that are more likely than not to be realized 
through future operations and through the reversal of existing temporary differences. Allegheny has deferred investment tax credits associated 
with its regulated business and assets previously held by its regulated business. These investment tax credits are amortized to income on a 
straight-line basis over the life of the assets. See Note 7, “Income Taxes” for additional information.  
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Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities  

Allegheny records taxes collected from customers, which are directly imposed on a transaction with that customer, on a net basis. That is, 
in instances in which Allegheny acts as a collection agent for a taxing authority by collecting taxes that are the responsibility of the customer, 
Allegheny records the amount collected as a liability and relieves such liability upon remittance to the taxing authority without impacting 
revenues or expenses.  

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits  

Allegheny sponsors a noncontributory, defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all employees, including officers. Benefits are 
based on each employee’s years-of-service and compensation. Allegheny also maintains a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for 
executive officers and other senior executives. Allegheny also provides partially contributory medical and life insurance plans for eligible 
retirees and dependents. Medical benefits, which make up the largest component of the plans, have retiree premiums based upon an age and 
years-of-service vesting schedule, include other plan provisions that limit future benefits and take into account certain collective bargaining 
arrangements.  

Pension and other postretirement benefit expense is determined by an actuarial valuation, based on assumptions that are evaluated 
annually.  

See Note 11, “Pension Benefits and Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions” for additional information.  

Stock-Based Compensation  

Share-based payments are generally measured at fair value on the date of grant and are expensed over the requisite service period. For 
options, Allegheny is entitled to income tax deductions in an amount equal to the fair value of shares on the date of the option exercise less the 
option exercise price. To the extent that the income tax deduction exceeds the cumulative compensation expense recorded for book purposes, 
the tax effect of the excess (referred to as a windfall tax benefit) is recorded as a credit to stockholders’ equity when the tax benefit is realized. 
See Note 10, “Stock-Based Compensation” for additional information.  

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss  

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss, included in the shareholders’ equity section of the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets, were as follows:  
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(In millions)    

December 31, 
 

2009     

December 31, 
 

2008   

Cash flow hedges and other, net of tax of $(10.7) million and $17.8 million, respectively     $ (16.8 )    $ 28.1    
Net unrecognized pension and other benefit plan costs, net of tax of $(49.7) million and $(48.7) 

million, respectively       (73.1 )      (71.4 )  
       

  
      

  

Total     $ (89.9 )    $ (43.3 )  
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NOTE 2:  RECENTLY ADOPTED AND RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOU NTING STANDARDS  

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued authoritative guidance that replaced the previous hierarchy of 
GAAP and established the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“FASB Codification”) as the single source of authoritative U.S. GAAP 
recognized by the FASB to be applied to the financial statements of nongovernmental entities for periods ending after September 15, 2009. 
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) rules and interpretive releases are also sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. This 
guidance modifies the GAAP hierarchy to include only two levels of GAAP: authoritative and nonauthoritative. The FASB Codification was 
not intended to change or alter existing GAAP, and Allegheny’s adoption of this guidance did not impact its results of operations, cash flows or 
financial position.  

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities  

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 167, “Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R)” (“SFAS 167”). SFAS 167 amends 
FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2003), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities—an interpretation of ARB No. 51,” (“FIN 
46(R)”), (FASB Codification Topic 805) including: a modified definition of primary beneficiary to include the power to direct the most 
significant activities of the variable interest entity; a requirement to perform an analysis to determine whether an enterprise’s variable interests 
give it a controlling financial interest in a variable interest entity; a requirement to perform ongoing assessments of whether an enterprise is the 
primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity; and enhanced disclosures with more transparent information about an enterprise’s involvement 
in a variable interest entity. Although it has not yet completed its analysis, Allegheny expects to deconsolidate PATH-WV from its financial 
statements effective January 1, 2010. See Note 23, “Variable Interest Entities” for additional information relating to variable interest entities.  

Subsequent Events  

On June 16, 2009, Allegheny adopted SFAS No. 165, “Subsequent Events” (“SFAS 165”), (FASB Codification Topic 810). SFAS 165 
establishes general standards of accounting for, and disclosure of, events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements 
are issued. Specifically, SFAS 165 sets forth the period after the balance sheet date during which management of a reporting entity should 
evaluate events or transactions that may occur for potential recognition or disclosure in the financial statements, the circumstances under which 
an entity should recognize events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date in its financial statements, and the disclosures that an 
entity should make about events or transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date. Its adoption had no effect on Allegheny’s financial 
statements.  

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures  

On January 1, 2009, Allegheny adopted FSP FAS No. 157-2, “ Effective Date of FASB Statement 157 ” (“FSP FAS 157-2”), (FASB 
Codification Topic 820), which permitted a one-year deferral of the application of SFAS 157 for all non-financial assets and non-financial 
liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). 
Allegheny adopted SFAS 157, effective January 1, 2008 for financial assets and liabilities, and deferred application of SFAS 157 for non-
financial assets and liabilities that are not recognized at fair value on a recurring basis until January 1, 2009. The application of SFAS 157 to 
non-financial assets and liabilities effective January 1, 2009 did not have a material impact on Allegheny’s results of operations or financial 
position.  

On April 1, 2009, Allegheny adopted FSP FAS 157-4, “ Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for the Asset or 
Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly, ” (“FSP FAS 157-4”), (FASB Codification Topic 
820). FSP FAS 157-4 provides additional  
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guidance for estimating fair value in accordance with issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” when the volume and level of activity 
for the asset or liability have significantly decreased and includes guidance for identifying circumstances that indicate a transaction is not 
orderly. The adoption of FSP FAS 157-4 had no impact on Allegheny’s financial statements.  

On December 31, 2009, Allegheny adopted the FASB’s ASU on “Investments in Certain Entities that Calculated Net Asset Value per 
Share.” The ASU provides a practical method for the fair value measurement of certain investments that do not have a readily determinable 
fair value. The adoption affected the fair value measurement of certain of Allegheny’s pension plan investments, but did not have material 
impact on Allegheny’s results of operations or financial position.  

Derivative Instrument and Hedging Disclosures  

On January 1, 2009, Allegheny adopted SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities-an 
amendment of FASB Statement No. 133” (“SFAS 161”), (FASB Codification Topic 815). SFAS 161 requires entities to provide qualitative 
disclosures about the objectives and strategies for using derivatives, quantitative data about the fair value of derivative contracts and the gains 
and losses on derivative contracts, and details of credit-risk-related contingent features in their hedged positions. SFAS 161 also requires 
disclosure of the location of the derivative contracts and their related gains and losses in an entity’s financial statements. Allegheny’s adoption 
of SFAS 161 affected Allegheny’s derivative disclosures but did not impact Allegheny’s results of operations or financial position.  

Noncontrolling Interests  

On January 1, 2009, Allegheny adopted SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements-an amendment 
of ARB No. 51” (“SFAS 160”), (FASB Codification Topic 810). SFAS 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards for the non-
controlling interest in a subsidiary (formerly “minority interest”) and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. It also amends certain 
consolidation procedures for consistency with SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), “Business Combinations.” Under SFAS 160, non-controlling 
interests are reported in the consolidated statement of financial position as a separate component within equity, and consolidated net income 
and consolidated comprehensive income are adjusted to include amounts attributable to the noncontrolling interests, for all periods presented. 
Allegheny’s adoption of SFAS 160 affected its financial statement presentation but did not materially affect Allegheny’s results of operations 
or financial position.  

Postretirement Benefit Plan Asset Disclosures  

In December 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 132(R)-1, “Employers’ Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets” (“FSP 
FAS 132(R)-1”), (FASB Codification Topic 710). This pronouncement amends SFAS No. 132 to require disclosure of the fair value of 
categories of plan assets based on the types of assets held in the plan, disclosures about the nature and amounts of concentrations of risk within 
categories of plan assets, and disclosures about the fair value measurement inputs, similar to SFAS 157. FSP FAS 132(R)-1 became effective 
for Allegheny beginning with disclosures as of December 31, 2009 and affected Allegheny’s financial statement disclosure but did not impact 
Allegheny’s results of operations or financial position.  

NOTE 3:   ASSETS HELD FOR SALE  

On May 4, 2009, Potomac Edison signed definitive agreements to sell its electric distribution operations in Virginia (“VA Distribution 
Business”) to Rappahannock Electric Cooperative and Shenandoah Valley Electric Cooperative (the “Cooperatives”). The agreements are 
subject to state regulatory approval in Virginia and West  
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Virginia, as well as federal approval and certain third-party consents. Under the terms of the agreements, Potomac Edison will transfer its 
Virginia distribution assets and certain related liabilities to the Cooperatives in exchange for cash proceeds of approximately $340 million, 
subject to adjustment for changes in assets and liabilities through the closing date. As part of their agreement, Allegheny will purchase certain 
West Virginia distribution operations from Shenandoah Valley Electric Cooperative for approximately $15 million. The sale is subject to 
regulatory approval by the Virginia State Corporate Commission (the “Virginia SCC”). Evidentiary hearings regarding this matter before the 
Virginia SCC are scheduled to begin on March 2, 2010. On January 29, 2010, consultants retained by the Staff of the Virginia SCC filed 
testimony analyzing the transaction, asserting that current Virginia customers of Potomac Edison would pay $370 million more in rates over 
nine years if the Cooperatives were to serve those customers. Potomac Edison and the Cooperatives filed rebuttal testimony on February 12, 
2010. The VA Distribution Business is included in the Regulated Operations segment.  

For periods after May 4, 2009, assets and liabilities relating to the VA Distribution Business are classified as “held for sale” in 
Allegheny’s consolidated balance sheets, and depreciation expense on those assets ceased. Assets held for sale and liabilities associated with 
assets held for sale at December 31, 2009 were as follows:  
   

NOTE 4:   RATES AND REGULATION  

Pennsylvania  

Rates.   Rate caps on transmission services in Pennsylvania expired on December 31, 2005. Distribution rate caps were also scheduled to 
expire on December 31, 2005 and generation rate caps were scheduled to expire on December 31, 2008. By order entered May 11, 2005, the 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (the “Pennsylvania PUC”) approved an extension of generation rate caps for West Penn customers 
from 2008 to 2010 and provided for increases in generation rates in 2007, 2009 and 2010, in addition to previously approved rate  
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(In millions)    Amounts   
Current Assets:     

Accounts receivable     $ 31.2    
Materials and supplies       0.7    
Regulatory assets       0.5    

       
  

Total current assets       32.4    
Property, Plant and Equipment:     

Distribution property, plant and equipment       344.9    
Accumulated depreciation       (91.2 )  

       
  

Property, plant and equipment, net       253.7    
       

  

Total assets held for sale     $ 286.1    
       

  

Current Liabilities:     

Customer deposits     $ 5.5    
Regulatory liabilities       3.7    
Other       0.9    

       
  

Total current liabilities       10.1    
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities:     

Regulatory liabilities       51.8    
Other       1.3    

       
  

Total deferred credits and other liabilities       53.1    
       

  

Total liabilities associated with assets held for sale     $ 63.2    
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cap increases for 2006 and 2008. The order also extended distribution rate caps from 2005 to 2007, with an additional rate cap in place for 2009 
at the rate in effect on January 1, 2009. The intent of this transition plan is to gradually move generation rates closer to market prices. T&D 
rates for all customers are subject to traditional regulated utility ratemaking (i.e., cost-based rates).  

Advanced Metering and Demand Side Management Initiatives .  In October 2008, Pennsylvania adopted Act 129, which includes a 
number of measures relating to conservation, demand-side management and power procurement processes. Act 129 requires each electric 
distribution company (“EDC”) with more than 100,000 customers to adopt a plan, approved by the Pennsylvania PUC, to reduce, by May 31, 
2011, electric consumption by at least one percent of its expected consumption for June 1, 2009 through May 31, 2010. By May 31, 2013, the 
total annual weather-normalized consumption is to be reduced by a minimum of three percent, and peak demand is to be reduced by a 
minimum of four and one-half percent of the EDC’s annual system peak demand. Act 129 also:  
   

   

West Penn expects to incur significant capital expenditures in 2010 and beyond to comply with these requirements.  

Act 129 also requires EDCs to obtain energy through a prudent mix of contracts, with an emphasis on competitive procurement. The Act 
includes a “grandfather” provision for West Penn’s procurement and rate mitigation plan, which was previously approved by the Pennsylvania 
PUC.  

On June 30, 2009 West Penn filed its Energy Efficiency and Conservation Plan containing 22 programs to meet its Act 129 demand and 
consumption reduction obligations. The proposed programs cover most energy-consuming devices of residential, commercial and industrial 
customers. The Plan also proposes a reconcilable surcharge mechanism to obtain full and current cost recovery of the Plan costs as provided in 
Act 129. The Plan projected an aggregated cost of the energy efficiency measures in the amount of approximately $94.3 million through mid-
2013. A hearing concerning West Penn’s Energy Efficiency and Conservation Plan was held August 19, 2009. The Pennsylvania PUC 
approved West Penn’s Energy Efficiency and Conservation Plan, in large part, by Opinion and Order entered October 23, 2009. The 
Pennsylvania PUC also approved West Penn’s proposal to recover its Energy Efficiency and Conservation Plan costs on a full and current basis 
via an automatic surcharge to customers’ bills, subject to an annual reconciliation mechanism.  

The Pennsylvania PUC declined to approve West Penn’s proposed distributed generation program and West Penn’s proposed contract 
demand response program and encouraged West Penn to submit revisions to both programs. On December 21, 2009, West Penn filed an 
Amended Energy Efficiency and Conservation Plan as previously directed by the Pennsylvania PUC in which it added a new customer 
resources demand response program intended to replace the previously proposed distributed generation and contract demand programs. The 
Pennsylvania PUC reviewed Allegheny’s amended plan at its public meeting on February 11, 2010 and ordered Allegheny to file an amended 
plan within 60 days to include additional detail on the costs associated with the previously approved customer load response program and the 
new customer resources demand response program.  

On August 14, 2009, West Penn filed its Smart Meter Technology Procurement and Installation Plan. The Plan, as originally proposed, 
would provide for extensive deployment of smart meter infrastructure with replacement of all of West Penn’s approximately 725,000 meters by 
the end of 2014. To support two-way communications with the new meters West Penn proposes to build a new and secure telecommunications  
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•   directed the Pennsylvania PUC to adopt an energy conservation and efficiency program to require EDCs to develop and file, by 

July 1, 2009, plans to reduce energy demand and consumption; and  
  •   required EDCs to file a plan for “smart meter”  technology procurement and installation in August 2009.  
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network. To support time of use and real time pricing as required by Act 129, West Penn proposes to purchase and install a new customer 
information system. A hearing on West Penn’s smart meter Plan was held on November 8, 2009. On December 18, 2009, West Penn filed a 
motion to reopen the evidentiary record to submit an alternative smart meter plan proposing, among other things, a less rapid deployment of 
smart meters. On January 13, 2010, the Pennsylvania PUC granted the motion to reopen the record and remanded the proceeding to the ALJ. 
The Pennsylvania PUC also waived the late January 2010 deadline by which the ALJ’s recommended decision would have been required. On 
January 26, 2010, the ALJ set a hearing and briefing schedule for the reopened record, with a target deadline for the ALJ’s recommended 
decision of April 23, 2010.  

West Penn estimates that the total cost of implementing smart metering infrastructure as proposed in the Plan as originally filed would be 
approximately $620 million; however, West Penn’s actual cost to implement smart meter infrastructure may vary from that estimate as a result 
of changes in its procurement and installation plan as ultimately approved by the Pennsylvania PUC and the timing on that approval among 
other factors. In accordance with Act 129, West Penn’s Plan requests a cost recovery surcharge for the full and current recovery of these 
expenditures from customers.  

West Virginia  

Rates.   Rates in West Virginia are subject to traditional regulated utility ratemaking (i.e., cost-based rates).  

Rate Case.   On August 13, 2009, Monongahela and Potomac Edison filed with the West Virginia PSC a request to increase retail rates by 
approximately $122.1 million annually, effective June 10, 2010. On January 12, 2010, Monongahela and Potomac Edison filed supplemental 
testimony discussing a tax treatment change that would result in a revenue requirement that is approximately $7.7 million lower than the 
requirement included in the original filing. In addition, in December 2009, subsidiaries of Monongahela and Potomac Edison completed a 
securitization transaction to finance certain costs associated with the installation of Scrubbers at the Fort Martin generating facility, which costs 
would otherwise have been included in the request for rate recovery. Consequently, Monongahela and Potomac Edison now are requesting to 
increase retail rates by approximately $106 million, rather than $122.1 million, annually. An evidentiary hearing on this matter is scheduled to 
begin on April 5, 2010.  

Annual Adjustment of Fuel and Purchased Power Cost Rates.   On September 1, 2009, Monongahela and Potomac Edison filed their 
annual fuel adjustment request with the West Virginia PSC, requesting a rate increase of $143.2 million to reflect increases in their unrecovered 
balances of fuel and purchased power costs that have accrued through June 2009 and projected increases through June 2010. The new rates 
were submitted pursuant to the schedule for annual fuel and purchased power cost reviews. On December 2, 2009, the parties to the proceeding 
filed a Joint Stipulation, providing that Monongahela and Potomac Edison would receive an increase of $118 million, effective January 1, 
2010, plus deferred recovery of an additional $23.1 million effective January 1, 2011, with carrying charges of 6% on the deferred amount. 
This amount, as well as interest on the deferral, will be included in the company’s third-quarter 2010 fuel and purchased power filing for 
recovery in 2011. The West Virginia PSC approved the Joint Stipulation on December 29, 2009.  

Maryland  

Rates.   In 1999, Maryland adopted electric industry restructuring legislation, which gave Potomac Edison’s Maryland retail electric 
customers the right to choose their electricity generation supplier. In 2000, Potomac Edison transferred its Maryland generation assets to AE 
Supply but remained obligated to provide standard offer generation service, or “SOS,” at capped rates to residential and non-residential 
customers for various periods. The longest such period, for residential customers, expired on December 31, 2008. As discussed below, Potomac 
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Edison has implemented a rate stabilization plan to transition customers from capped generation rates to rates based on market prices. T&D 
rates for all customers are subject to traditional regulated utility ratemaking (i.e., cost-based rates).  

Rate Stabilization Plan.   In December 2006, Potomac Edison proposed a rate stabilization and market transition plan (the “Transition 
Plan”) for its Maryland residential customers, in accordance with a bill passed by the Maryland legislature in 2006. The Maryland Public 
Service Commission (the “Maryland PSC”) approved the Transition Plan on March 30, 2007. The Transition Plan provides for a gradual 
transition of Potomac Edison’s residential customers from capped generation rates to market-based generation rates, while at the same time 
preserving for customers the benefit of rate caps.  

Under the Transition Plan, Potomac Edison’s customers who did not opt out of the Transition Plan began paying a non-bypassable 
surcharge (the “Rate Stabilization Surcharge”) in June 2007, which resulted in an overall rate increase of approximately 15%, after taking into 
account the expiration of a prior customer choice rate credit with the initiation of the new surcharge. On January 1, 2008, the surcharge 
increased residential rates an additional 15%.  

Beginning January 1, 2009, coincident with the expiration of the residential generation rate cap and implementation of market-based 
generation pricing, the Rate Stabilization Surcharge converted from a charge to a credit on customers’ bills. Funds collected through the Rate 
Stabilization Surcharge during 2007 and 2008, plus interest, are being returned to customers as a credit on their electric bills, thereby reducing 
the impact of the rate cap expiration. The credit will continue, with adjustments, to maintain rate stability until approximately December 31, 
2010.  

The Rate Stabilization Surcharge was recorded as a regulatory liability as it was billed to customers. In addition, interest on amounts 
collected from customers is recognized as a component of the regulatory liability for future refund to customers. This interest is recorded as 
interest expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income. As amounts are returned to customers, these customer credits are being charged 
directly to the regulatory liability.  

Advanced Metering and Demand Side Management Initiatives.   On June 8, 2007, the Maryland PSC established a new case to consider 
advanced meters and demand side management programs. The Staff of the Maryland PSC filed its report on these matters on July 6, 2007. On 
September 28, 2007, the Maryland PSC issued an order in this case that required the utilities to file detailed plans for how they will meet a 
proposal-“EmPOWER Maryland”-that electric usage in Maryland be reduced by 15% by 2015. The Maryland legislature in 2008 adopted a 
statute codifying the EmPOWER Maryland goals and setting a deadline of September 1, 2008 for the utilities to file comprehensive plans for 
attempting to achieve those goals. Potomac Edison filed its proposals on August 29, 2008, asking the Maryland PSC to approve seven 
programs for residential customers, five programs for commercial, industrial, and governmental customers, a customer education program, and 
a pilot deployment of Advanced Utility Infrastructure (“AUI”) that Allegheny has previously been testing in West Virginia.  

On December 31, 2008, the Maryland PSC issued an order approving some of Potomac Edison’s programs and directing that others be 
redesigned. Potomac Edison filed its revised programs on March 31, 2009, with new cost and benefit information. The Maryland PSC 
approved the programs on August 6, 2009, and approved cost recovery for the programs on October 6, 2009. Expenditures are expected to be 
approximately $101 million and are expected to be recovered over the next five to ten years, pending Maryland PSC approval. Meanwhile, the 
AUI pilot is being examined on a separate track and is currently under discussion with the Staff of the Maryland PSC.  
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Virginia  

Rates.   Until July 1, 2007, Potomac Edison had a power purchase agreement with AE Supply to provide Potomac Edison with the power 
necessary to serve its retail customers in Virginia at rates that were consistent with generation rate caps in effect pursuant to the Virginia 
Electric Utility Restructuring Act of 1999 (the “Restructuring Act”). Effective with the expiration of that power purchase agreement on July 1, 
2007, Potomac Edison began to purchase the power necessary to serve its Virginia customers through the wholesale market at market prices, 
through a competitive wholesale bidding process. In April 2007 and again in March 2008, Potomac Edison conducted a competitive bidding 
process to purchase power requirements from the wholesale market for its retail customer service in Virginia and AE Supply was the successful 
bidder with respect to a substantial portion of these requirements.  

The Restructuring Act initially capped generation rates until July 1, 2007. In 2004, it was amended to extend capped rates to 2010, but 
also provided that Virginia utilities that had divested their generation, such as Potomac Edison, could begin to recover purchased power costs 
on July 1, 2007. In 2007, the law was revised again to provide for generation rate caps to end on December 31, 2008. The market prices at 
which Potomac Edison has purchased power since the expiration in 2007 of its power purchase agreement with AE Supply were significantly 
higher than the capped generation rates initially set under the Restructuring Act.  

Although the Restructuring Act does provide for generation rate caps through December 31, 2008, it was amended to provide, among 
other things, that Virginia utilities, such as Potomac Edison, could begin to recover purchased power costs, such that the rates a utility would be 
permitted to charge Virginia customers beginning on July 1, 2007 would be based on the utility’s cost of purchased power.  

In an April 2007 filing with the Virginia SCC, Potomac Edison requested to adjust its fuel factor and to implement a rate stabilization 
plan, including an increase in retail rates of approximately $103 million to be phased in over three years beginning July 1, 2007, to offset the 
impact of increased purchased power costs. In June 2007, the Virginia SCC issued an order that denied Potomac Edison’s application and 
motion to establish interim rates, cancelled evidentiary hearings and dismissed the case, ruling that recovery was barred by a Memorandum of 
Understanding (the “MOU”) that Potomac Edison entered into with the Staff of the Virginia SCC in 2000 in connection with the transfer of its 
Virginia generating assets to AE Supply. Under the MOU, Potomac Edison agreed to forego fuel cost adjustments otherwise permitted under 
the Restructuring Act during the capped rate period, which, at the time that the MOU was entered into, was scheduled to expire as of July 1, 
2007.  

On December 20, 2007, the Virginia SCC granted Potomac Edison partial ($9.5 million) recovery of increased purchased power costs, 
following a second application by Potomac Edison for rate recovery of $42.3 million. On May 15, 2008, following a third application by 
Potomac Edison, the Virginia SCC issued an order allowing Potomac Edison to increase its rates effective July 1, 2008, on an interim basis 
subject to refund, to collect $73 million of purchased power costs. Revenues were recognized based on the method under which the rates were 
developed and not the amounts collected. As a result, a portion of the amounts collected from July 1, 2008 to December 31, 2008 was deferred 
as a regulatory liability and was recognized as revenue from January through June 2009.  

On July 18, 2008, the Virginia SCC issued an order finding that the rate making provisions of the MOU would expire on December 31, 
2008. On November 18, 2008, Potomac Edison filed with the Virginia SCC a comprehensive rate settlement agreed to with the Staff of the 
Virginia SCC, the Consumers Counsel of the Virginia Office of the Attorney General and a group of Potomac Edison’s industrial customers 
that transitions all customers to rates that allow for full recovery of purchased power costs no later than July 1, 2011. The Virginia  
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SCC held a hearing on the settlement on November 18, 2008 and approved it without alteration or condition on November 26, 2008. Key 
provisions of the settlement include:  
   

   

   

   

Potomac Edison successfully procured power in December 2008 to cover load for the settlement period through 2011, and AE Supply 
was the successful bidder with respect to a substantial portion of these requirements.  

On June 5, 2009, Potomac Edison filed a request for a transmission rate adjustment clause to collect $1.0 million of third-party 
transmission costs that it expects to incur between January 1, 2009 and August 31, 2010, as permitted by the settlement. Potomac Edison has 
proposed to recover this amount from its retail customers over the rate period from September 1, 2009 through August 31, 2010. The Virginia 
SCC approved recovery of all but an insignificant portion of this amount in an order issued on August 28, 2009.  

On May 15, 2009, the Virginia SCC issued an order concerning a request by Potomac Edison to recover purchased power costs to serve 
its Virginia customers. The Virginia SCC’s order granted an interim rate increase of approximately $19.4 million, subject to refund, effective 
July 1, 2009. In October 2009, Potomac Edison and the Staff of the Virginia SCC filed a joint stipulation, pursuant to which the rate increase 
would be reduced by $3.2 million to approximately $16.2 million. On October 30, 2009, the Virginia SCC issued an order that approved the 
joint stipulation.  

NOTE 5:  TRANSMISSION EXPANSION  

Trans-Allegheny Interstate Line  

In June 2006, the board of directors of PJM approved a new transmission line extending from southwestern Pennsylvania through West 
Virginia into northern Virginia, and designated Allegheny to build the Allegheny Power Zone (the “AP Zone”) portion of the line. PJM, which 
is a regional transmission operator, is responsible for the operation of, and reliability planning for, the transmission network in the PJM region 
and included the new line in its 2006 regional transmission expansion plan. In October 2006, Allegheny formed TrAIL Company as the entity 
responsible for financing, constructing, owning, operating and maintaining the new line, which is named the Trans-Allegheny Interstate Line, 
or “TrAIL.” TrAIL is a 500 kV high voltage line that currently is to extend from southwestern Pennsylvania through West Virginia to a point 
of interconnection with Virginia Electric and Power Company (“Dominion”) in northern Virginia. In addition, TrAIL Company and Dominion 
will jointly own an approximately 30-mile 500 kV line segment that Dominion will construct in Virginia. In addition to the TrAIL Line, other 
TrAIL Company projects include a new static volt-ampere reactive power compensator at the Black Oak substation, upgrades and/or 
replacements of transformers and/or buses at six other substations and the construction of a new transmission operations center to be located in 
West Virginia.  
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  •   the $73 million rate increase approved on a temporary basis on May 15, 2008 will remain in effect through June 30, 2009;  

  
•   for the period from July 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009, half of any further increase in purchased power costs for service to 

large non-residential customers will be forgone, up to $15 million;  
  •   for the period from July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2010, the total rate increase for all other customers will be capped at 15%; and  

  
•   during the period from July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2011, 100 MW of the power procured by Potomac Edison will be deemed for 

rate purposes to have been procured at the lesser of actual cost or $55 per MWh.  
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Potomac-Appalachian Transmission Highline  

In June 2007, the board of PJM directed the construction of PATH, a high-voltage transmission line project. In September 2007, 
Allegheny and AEP formed PATH, LLC to construct and operate PATH. PATH, LLC is a series limited liability company. The “West Virginia 
Series” (PATH-WV) is owned equally by Allegheny and a subsidiary of AEP. The “Allegheny Series” (PATH-Allegheny) is 100% owned by 
Allegheny. PATH will consist of a single 765 kV line from the AEP substation near St. Albans, West Virginia to a new substation near 
Kemptown, Maryland and include a new midpoint substation in West Virginia in the vicinity of eastern Grant County, northern Hardy County, 
or southern Hampshire County.  

PJM has confirmed that the reconfigured project addresses its reliability concerns, however in December 2009 PJM suggested that the 
project does not need to be in service in 2014 to resolve reliability problems on the electric grid, as previously expected. This data from PJM is 
preliminary and not sufficient to identify a specific in-service date for the project. PJM is in the process of preparing its comprehensive 2010 
Regional Transmission Expansion Plan, which will identify an in-service date for PATH.  

The accounts of PATH, LLC and its operating subsidiaries are included in Allegheny’s Consolidated Financial Statements. See Note 23, 
“Variable Interest Entities,” for additional information.  

Federal Regulation and Rate Matters  

TrAIL Project.   TrAIL Company earns its revenues through a FERC approved formula rate mechanism that provides for recovery of 
expenses and a return on investment. TrAIL Company’s formula tariff rate, which includes, among other things, an incentive return on equity 
for TrAIL and a static volt-ampere reactive power compensator at the Black Oak substation (the “Black Oak SVC”) is 12.7 percent and a return 
on equity is 11.7 percent for non-incentive projects.  

PATH Project.   PATH, LLC earns its revenues through a FERC approved formula rate mechanism that provides for recovery of 
expenses and a return on investment. PATH, LLC’s formula tariff rate includes, among other things, an incentive return on equity of 14.3 
percent.  

FERC set for hearing the cost of service formula rate granted in the February 29, 2008 order that are being used to calculate the annual 
revenue requirements for the project. In December 2008, PATH submitted to FERC a settlement of the formula rate and protocols with the 
active parties. FERC approval of the settlement is pending. Rehearing of the February 29, 2008 order with respect to a return on equity remains 
pending before the FERC.  

State Regulation Matters  

Pennsylvania  

By order entered on December 12, 2008, the Pennsylvania PUC authorized TrAIL Company to construct a 1.2 mile portion of the TrAIL 
Project in Pennsylvania from the proposed 502 Junction Substation in Greene County to the Pennsylvania-West Virginia state line. This portion 
of TrAIL will connect with portions of the TrAIL Project approved in West Virginia and Virginia. In the same order, the Pennsylvania PUC 
also approved an agreement entered into among TrAIL Company, West Penn and Greene County, Pennsylvania in which, among other 
provisions, TrAIL Company agreed to engage in a collaborative process to identify possible solutions to reliability problems in the Washington 
County, Pennsylvania area in lieu of the Prexy Facilities that had been a part of the original TrAIL proposal. In addition, West Penn agreed to 
release certain easements that would have been used by TrAIL Company for the Prexy Facilities, and Greene County agreed that the 
Pennsylvania PUC should authorize construction of the 1.2 mile portion of TrAIL from 502 Junction Substation to the Pennsylvania-West 
Virginia state line. An intervenor has initiated judicial review of the order by the  
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Commonwealth Court of Pennsylvania. A proposed settlement and an amendment to the application based on a consensus of participants in the 
collaborative process are pending before the Pennsylvania PUC for approval.  

West Virginia  

On May 15, 2009, PATH-WV, PATH-Allegheny and certain other related entities (the “PATH Entities”) filed an application with the 
West Virginia PSC for certificates of public convenience and necessity to construct portions of the PATH Project in West Virginia. The 
procedural schedule established by the West Virginia PSC provides for an evidentiary hearing in this case in February 2010 and a final 
commission decision by June 21, 2010. On October 28, 2009, the Staff of the West Virginia PSC filed a motion to dismiss the application on 
the basis that, because there was no application pending at that time before any regulatory agency for approval of the Maryland portion of the 
PATH Project, there is no identified eastern terminus of the project. Other parties filed similar motions or statements in support of the Staff 
motion. The PATH Entities filed responses in which they opposed the Staff motion but agreed to toll the statutory decision due date in West 
Virginia until February 24, 2011, if the West Virginia PSC extended its current procedural schedule in the manner proposed by the PATH 
Entities. The West Virginia PSC denied the motions to dismiss and established a revised procedural schedule providing for an evidentiary 
hearing commencing in October 2010 and a final commission decision by February 24, 2011. The PATH Entities expect to supplement their 
pre-filed testimony on June 29, 2010 to reflect a new in-service date for the PATH Project based on PJM’s 2010 Regional Transmission 
Expansion Plan analysis.  

Maryland  

On May 19, 2009, Potomac Edison on behalf of PATH-Allegheny filed an application with the Maryland PSC for a certificate of public 
convenience and necessity to construct portions of the PATH Project in Maryland. The Maryland PSC requested briefs on certain preliminary 
legal issues and heard oral argument on the issues. On September 9, 2009, the Maryland PSC issued an order determining that Potomac Edison 
could not file an application for a certificate of public convenience and necessity on behalf of PATH-Allegheny but could file such an 
application on behalf of itself and directed Potomac Edison to advise the Maryland PSC of its decision to file such an application within 30 
days. On October 9, 2009, Potomac Edison advised the Maryland PSC that it continued to consider its filing options, including whether to re-
file an application with the Maryland PSC, and intended to inform the Maryland PSC of its decision as soon as possible. On December 21, 
2009 the Potomac Edison Company, an Allegheny affiliate, submitted a new application to the Maryland Public Service Commission 
requesting authorization to construct the Maryland segment of the PATH Project. Potomac Edison has also agreed not to file an application 
with FERC pursuant to Section 216(b)(1) with the FPA prior to June 29, 2011 to construct the PATH Project in Maryland.  

Virginia  

On October 7, 2008, the Virginia SCC issued an order authorizing construction of the TrAIL project in Virginia, and on November 5, 
2009, the Virginia Supreme Court affirmed the Virginia SCC’s order.  

On May 19, 2009, PATH-VA filed an application with the Virginia SCC for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to construct 
portions of the PATH Project in Virginia. The Virginia SCC established a procedural schedule that provided for an evidentiary hearing 
commencing on January 19, 2010. On December 21, 2009, PATH-VA filed a motion (as amended on December 29, 2009) to withdraw its 
application on the basis that certain sensitivity analyses conducted by PJM as directed by the Hearing Examiner suggested that the PATH 
Project appears not to be needed in June 2014 as a result of a reduction in the scope and severity of observed NERC reliability violations. 
PATH-VA further stated that, consistent with PJM processes, the PATH Project will be considered by PJM in its 2010 RTEP analysis to 
determine when it will be needed to resolve NERC reliability violations and that PATH-VA did not expect to file a new application prior to the 
third quarter  
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of 2010. The Hearing Examiner suspended the procedural schedule and issued a report to the Virginia SCC recommending that the motion to 
withdraw be granted. On January 27, 2010, the Virginia SCC granted the motion to withdraw, and the application is no longer pending.  

NOTE 6:  REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES  

Allegheny’s regulated utility operations are subject to regulated industry specific accounting provisions. Regulatory assets represent 
probable future revenues associated with incurred costs that are expected to be recovered in the future from customers through the rate-making 
process. Regulatory liabilities represent probable future reductions in revenues associated with amounts that are to be credited or refunded to 
customers through the rate-making process or amounts collected for costs not yet incurred. Regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities reflected 
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets were as follows:  
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(In millions) 
   December 31, 
   2009    2008 

Regulatory assets, including current portion:        

Income taxes (a)(b)     $ 234.9    $ 231.3 
Pension benefits and postretirement benefits other than pensions (a)(c)       396.5      390.4 
Pennsylvania Competitive Transition Charge (“CTC”) reconciliation (d)       5.0      73.6 
Unamortized loss on reacquired debt (a)(e)       26.8      31.1 
Unrealized loss on fair value of financial transmission rights (f)       1.7      17.8 
Deferred ENEC charges (f)       109.5      52.0 
Transmission revenue requirement (i)       29.8      8.1 
Other (g)       45.8      42.2 

              

Subtotal       850.0      846.5 
              

Regulatory liabilities, including current portion:        

Net asset removal costs—Virginia (h)       —        50.6 
Net asset removal costs—other than Virginia       374.2      356.8 
Income taxes       29.3      35.2 
SO allowances       12.8      13.3 
Virginia collections for costs not yet incurred       —        28.3 
Fort Martin Scrubber project-environmental control surcharge       40.1      29.1 
Maryland rate stabilization and transition plan surcharge       30.1      61.7 
Other       12.1      23.1 

              

Subtotal       498.6      598.1 
              

Net regulatory assets     $ 351.4    $ 248.4 
              

  
(a) Does not earn a return. 
(b) Amount is being recovered over various periods associated with the remaining useful life of related regulated utility property, plant and 

equipment. 
(c) See Note 11, “Pension Benefits and Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.”  
(d) Recorded amount includes an 11% return on amounts deferred that was earned through 2005. No additional return will be earned through 

the 2010 recovery period. 
(e) Amount is being recovered over various periods through 2025, based upon the maturities of reacquired debt. 
(f) Includes amounts that do not earn a return on amounts deferred with recovery periods up to two years. 
(g) Includes amounts that do not earn a return on amounts deferred with various recovery periods through 2027. 
(h) Net asset removal costs of $51.0 million are included in liabilities associated with assets held for sale at December 31, 2009 in the 

consolidated balance sheet. 
(i) Amount earns interest at the approved FERC interest rate and will be recovered through 2011. 

2 
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See Note 4, “Rates and Regulation,” for additional information regarding regulatory developments impacting regulatory assets and 
liabilities, Note 11, “Pension Benefits and Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” for a discussion of regulatory assets relating to 
pension and other postretirement benefits, and Note 13, “Fair Value Measurements, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” for 
information relating to regulatory assets relating to unrealized gains and losses on FTRs. Other regulatory assets and liabilities reflected in the 
table above relate to the following:  

Income Taxes, Net  

In certain jurisdictions, deferred income tax expense is not permitted as a current cost in the determination of rates charged to customers. 
In certain of these jurisdictions a deferred income tax liability, or asset as appropriate, is recorded with an offsetting regulatory asset or liability. 
These deferred income taxes primarily relate to temporary differences involving regulated utility property, plant and equipment and the related 
provision for depreciation. In addition, deferred income tax assets are recorded with offsetting regulatory liabilities related to deferred 
investment tax credits. The income tax regulatory asset represents amounts that will be recovered from customers when the temporary 
differences are reversed and the taxes paid. The income tax regulatory liability represents amounts that will be returned to customers as the 
investment tax credits are amortized against taxes paid.  

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits  

Allegheny recognizes the underfunded status of its defined benefit postretirement plans as a liability on its consolidated balance sheet and 
recognizes changes in the funded status in other comprehensive income. However, to the extent that the funded status relates to Allegheny’s 
rate-regulated subsidiaries and such amounts will be recovered through the rate-making process, the funded status and changes in funded status 
are recognized as a regulatory asset rather than as a charge to other comprehensive income.  

Pennsylvania Stranded Cost Recovery and CTC Reconciliation  

Pennsylvania’s Electricity Generation Customer Choice and Competition Act (the “Customer Choice Act”) gave all retail electricity 
customers in Pennsylvania the right to choose their electricity generation supplier beginning January 2, 2000. Under terms of a customer choice 
implementation agreement between the Pennsylvania PUC and West Penn, beginning in 1998 and through June 2008, West Penn was 
authorized to recover $670 million of Competitive Transition Charges (“CTC”) incurred as part of the transition to customer choice. West 
Penn’s customer bills included a CTC charge, and West Penn recognized revenue related to CTC charges through the end of the recovery 
period in June 2008. For 2008 and 2007, West Penn recorded pre-tax income of approximately $21 million and $52 million respectively, 
related to CTC.  

Any difference between CTC charges recognized and the amount collected from customers was recorded as a regulatory asset for future 
collection. In 2005, the Pennsylvania PUC authorized West Penn to securitize and collect $115 million previously deferred as the difference 
between authorized and billed stranded cost recovery revenues, with an 11% return on the amounts deferred. This difference represents a 
separate regulatory asset (“Pennsylvania CTC Reconciliation”). Collection of these amounts from customers is occurring over an extended 
transition period through 2010. Recovery of the Pennsylvania CTC Reconciliation regulatory asset began after the Pennsylvania stranded cost 
regulatory asset was fully recovered. The amount of under-recovery of CTC during the transition period, if any, will be determined at the end 
of the transition period in 2010.  

Expanded Net Energy Cost  

In May 2007, the West Virginia PSC issued a rate order that re-established an annual ENEC method of recovering net power supply 
costs, including fuel costs, purchased power costs, including purchased power costs associated with the Grant Town PURPA Generation 
Facility and other related expenses, net of related revenue  
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and interest earnings on the Fort Martin Scrubber project escrow fund. Under the ENEC, actual costs and revenues are tracked for under and/or 
over recoveries, and revised ENEC rate filings are made on an annual basis. Any under and/or over recovery of costs, net of related revenues, is 
deferred, for subsequent recovery or refund, as a regulatory asset or regulatory liability, with the corresponding impact on the Consolidated 
Statements of Income reflected within “Deferred energy costs, net.” See Note 4, “Rates and Regulation” for additional information.  

Asset Removal Costs  

In certain jurisdictions, depreciation rates include a factor representing the estimated costs associated with removing an asset from service 
upon retirement. The accrual accumulates during the asset’s service life and is reduced when the actual cost of removal is incurred. The 
accumulated balance of such removal costs represents a regulatory liability. In other jurisdictions, retirement costs are collected in rates only 
after they are incurred, in which case the costs are recorded as a regulatory asset. See Note 19, “Asset Retirement Obligations (“ARO”), for a 
description of asset retirement obligations.  

Maryland Rate Stabilization and Transition Plan Surcharge  

From March 2007 through December 2008, Potomac Edison collected a rate stabilization surcharge from its Maryland residential 
customers. The amounts collected through the surcharge and interest, which is recorded as a regulatory liability, will be returned to the 
Maryland residential customers in the form of a credit from January 2009 through December 2010. The credit reduces the impact of the rate 
cap expiration on the Maryland residential customers.  

Transmission Revenue Requirement  

Under a formula rate mechanism approved by FERC, TrAIL Company and PATH, LLC make annual filings in order to recover incurred 
costs and an allowed return. An initial rate filing is made for each calendar year using estimated costs, which is used to determine the billings to 
customers. All prudently incurred allowable costs and return earned during each calendar year are eventually recovered on a dollar-for-dollar 
basis through a true-up mechanism. As such, TrAIL Company and PATH, LLC recognize revenue as they incur recoverable costs and earn the 
allowed return on a monthly basis. Any differences between revenues earned based on actual costs and the amounts billed based on estimated 
costs are included in a regulatory asset or liability and will be recovered or refunded, respectively, in subsequent periods.  

NOTE 7:  INCOME TAXES  

Components of federal and state income tax expense were as follows:  
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(In millions)    2009     2008     2007   

Income tax expense (benefit)-current:         

Federal     $ (14.8 )    $ 13.6      $ (19.3 )  
State       21.1        34.3        9.4    

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total       6.3        47.9        (9.9 )  
Income tax expense (benefit)-deferred:         

Federal       232.7        170.2        251.3    
State       6.2        (10.4 )      13.0    

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total       238.9        159.8        264.3    
Amortization of deferred investment tax credit       (3.6 )      (3.6 )      (3.6 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Income tax expense     $ 241.6      $ 204.1      $ 250.8    
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On March 31, 2008, the state of West Virginia enacted a change in its income tax law that implemented combined reporting and a 
reduction in its income tax rate that phases in from 2009 through 2014. During 2008, Allegheny recognized a benefit of approximately $6.8 
million, net of federal income tax, representing an adjustment of its deferred tax assets and liabilities to reflect the effects of this rate reduction.  

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania limited the amount of net operating loss carryforwards that may be used to reduce current year 
taxable income to the greater of $3 million or 12.5% of apportioned Pennsylvania taxable income per year through 2008. During 2008, an 
additional benefit of $3.9 million, net of applicable federal income tax, was recorded to adjust the recorded Pennsylvania net operating loss 
carryforward asset to reflect estimates of future Pennsylvania taxable income during the carryforward period.  

On October 9, 2009, Pennsylvania enacted H.B. 1531, which modified the corporate net operating loss utilization rules and made minor 
modifications to apportionment provisions. Under H.B. 1531, the annual net operating loss carryforward limitation was increased to 15% of 
taxable income for 2010 and 20% thereafter. During 2009, an additional benefit of $11.0 million, net of applicable federal income tax, was 
recorded to reflect estimates of future Pennsylvania taxable income during the carryforward period and to adjust the Pennsylvania net operating 
loss carryforward asset to reflect estimated benefits resulting from the increased utilization caps under H.B. 1531.  

The following table reconciles income tax expense calculated by applying the federal statutory income tax rate of 35% to “income before 
income taxes” to “income tax expense”:  
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(In millions, except percent) 
   2009     2008     2007   
   Amount     %     Amount     %     Amount     %   

Income before income taxes     $ 635.7        $ 599.9        $ 666.8      
       

  
        

  
        

  
  

Income tax expense calculated at the federal statutory rate of 35%       222.5      35.0        210.0      35.0        233.4      35.0    
Increases (reductions) resulting from:               

Rate-making effects of depreciation differences       (1.7 )    (0.3 )      5.3      0.9        5.5      2.3    
AFUDC       (2.0 )    (0.3 )      (1.8 )    (0.3 )      (1.0 )    (0.4 )  
Change in estimated Pennsylvania net operating loss benefits, net of federal 

income tax       (11.0 )    (1.7 )      (3.9 )    (0.7 )      (4.2 )    (1.8 )  
March 2008 West Virginia state income tax rate change, net of federal income 

tax       —        —          (6.8 )    (1.1 )      —        —      
Other state income tax, net of federal income tax benefit       29.1      4.6        12.7      2.1        17.5      2.6    
Amortization of deferred investment tax credits       (3.5 )    (0.6 )      (3.6 )    (0.6 )      (3.6 )    (1.5 )  
Changes in tax reserves related to uncertain tax positions and audit settlements      3.5      0.6        (3.4 )    (0.5 )      1.8      0.8    
Other, net       4.7      0.7        (4.4 )    (0.8 )      1.4      0.6    

       
  

    
  

      
  

    
  

      
  

    
  

Income tax expense     $ 241.6      38.0      $ 204.1      34.0      $ 250.8      37.6    
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At December 31, deferred income tax assets and liabilities consisted of the following:  
   

Allegheny has recorded as deferred income tax assets the effect of net operating losses and tax credits which will more likely than not be 
realized through future operations and through the reversal of existing temporary differences. The tax effected net operating loss carryforwards 
consisted of $150.2 million of state net operating loss carryforwards that expire from 2019 through 2029 and $72.3 million of federal net 
operating loss carryforwards that expire from 2023 to 2029. Federal Alternative Minimum Tax credits of $20.2 million have an indefinite 
carryforward period.  

Allegheny’s valuation allowance on deferred tax assets was reduced in 2009 primarily because of a change in Pennsylvania tax law with 
respect to net operating loss carryforwards enacted in the fourth quarter of 2009. This benefit was partially offset by a reduction in the expected 
realization of carryforward amounts due to forecasted taxable income.  

Allegheny adopted the provisions of FIN 48 (ASC Topic 740) on January 1, 2007, which prescribes a comprehensive model for how 
companies should recognize, measure, present and disclose in their financial statements uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken on 
an income tax return. As a result of the implementation, Allegheny recognized a $17.7 million reduction to its January 1, 2007 balance of 
retained earnings.  

Allegheny records interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as a component of income tax expense. Allegheny 
recognized interest expense related to uncertain tax positions, net of tax, of approximately $1.0 million, $1.8 million and $0.2 million during 
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Accrued interest, net of tax, related to uncertain tax positions was $5.4 million and $4.5 million at 
December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively. The reduction in actual interest in 2009 compared to 2008 is due primarily to 
resolution of federal income tax audit issues for the years 1998 to 2003.  
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(In millions)    2009     2008   

Deferred income tax assets:       

Recovery of transition costs     $ 42.4      $ 35.6    
Unamortized investment tax credits       35.9        38.0    
Postretirement benefits       98.9        99.8    
Tax effect of net operating loss carryforwards and credits       247.8        184.5    
Derivative contracts       2.2        —      
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets       (5.0 )      (16.3 )  
Other       46.2        37.3    

       
  

      
  

Total deferred income tax assets       468.4        378.9    
       

  
      

  

Deferred income tax liabilities:       

Plant asset basis differences, net       1,816.6        1,535.9    
Derivative contracts       —          7.3    
Other       71.6        43.5    

       
  

      
  

Total deferred income tax liabilities       1,888.2        1,586.7    
       

  
      

  

Total net deferred income tax liability       1,419.8        1,207.8    
Deferred income taxes included in current assets       81.5        69.6    

       
  

      
  

Total long-term net deferred income tax liability     $ 1,501.3      $ 1,277.4    
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Allegheny’s uncertain tax position reserves were $89.5 million and $79.5 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively ($59.8 
million and $53.0 million, net of the federal tax benefit for state tax reserves). At December 31, 2009, approximately $85.7 million of the 
reserve is not expected to be resolved in the next 12 months and, therefore, has been classified as long term income taxes payable on the 
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet.  

The following represents an analysis of the changes in unrecognized tax benefits during 2009, 2008 and 2007, excluding accrued interest: 
   

If recognized, the portion of the unrecognized tax benefits that would reduce Allegheny’s effective tax rate was $54.3 million and $48.7 
million at December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively ($84.1 million and $75.2 million, respectively, before the federal income 
tax effects on state income tax positions).  

The unrecognized tax benefit balance also included approximately $42.4 million and $37.5 million of tax positions at December 31, 2009 
and December 31, 2008, respectively, for which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which there is uncertainty about the timing 
of such deductibility. A change in the period of deductibility would not affect the effective tax rate but would impact the timing of cash 
payments to the taxing authorities.  

The major jurisdictions in which Allegheny is subject to income tax are U.S. Federal, Pennsylvania, West Virginia, Maryland and 
Virginia. Allegheny files consolidated federal income tax returns, and those returns are currently under audit by the Internal Revenue Service 
(“IRS”) for the tax years 2004 through 2006. The 2007 and 2008 federal returns have been filed and are subject to review. Several of 
Allegheny’s subsidiaries file returns in Pennsylvania. Returns filed with the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue for the tax years 2004 
through 2008 are subject to review. Allegheny also files a consolidated West Virginia return. The consolidated West Virginia return has been 
audited through 2004. The 2005 through 2008 returns remain subject to review. Several of Allegheny’s subsidiaries are also subject to tax in 
the state of Maryland. The Maryland returns for the tax years 2005 through 2008 remain subject to review. Additionally, certain Allegheny 
subsidiaries are subject to tax in Virginia. The Virginia returns for tax years 2005 through 2008 remain subject to review.  

The IRS audits of Allegheny’s income tax returns for the tax years 1998 through 2003 have been completed. During 2008, Allegheny 
reached a settlement with the IRS on substantially all issues and recorded a benefit due to reduced interest charges of $6.1 million. The Joint 
Committee on Taxation reviewed these audits. During that review the Joint Committee made certain inquiries regarding a settlement that 
Allegheny had reached with the Appeals Division in 2006 relating to contributions to capital. Allegheny resolved this issue with the IRS and 
the Joint Committee during the fourth quarter of 2008. The net charge to earnings during the fourth quarter of 2008 was $1.4 million. 
Additionally, Allegheny has liabilities for uncertain positions taken on various state income tax returns that it files. The statute of limitations 
for some of these returns expired during 2009 and 2008 and resulted in a benefit of approximately $2.2 million and $1.3 million, respectively. 
During 2010, additional state statute of limitations will expire that will result in a net benefit of approximately $3.8 million.  
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(In millions)    2009     2008     2007   

Balance at January 1     $ 112.6      $ 102.9      $ 107.6    
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year       53.8        10.7        32.7    
Additions for tax positions of prior years       0.2        —          18.1    
Reductions for tax positions of prior years       (37.8 )      (1.0 )      (3.3 )  
Settlements       (2.4 )      —          (52.2 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Balance at December 31     $ 126.4      $ 112.6      $ 102.9    
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NOTE 8:  CAPITALIZATION AND DEBT  

Common Stock  

During 2009, 2008 and 2007, Allegheny paid the following dividends on its common stock:  
   

AE issued 0.2 million, 2.1 million and 1.9 million shares of common stock in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively, primarily in connection 
with stock option exercises and the settlement of stock units.  

Preferred Stock of Subsidiary  

On September 4, 2007, Monongahela redeemed its 4.40% Cumulative Preferred Stock, $100 par value, its 4.80% Cumulative Preferred 
Stock, Series B, $100 par value, its 4.50% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series C, $100 par value and its $6.28 Cumulative Preferred Stock, 
Series D, $100 par value with an aggregate carrying value of $24.0 million. In connection with the cash redemption, Monongahela paid accrued 
dividends at the redemption date plus a redemption premium of approximately $1.1 million that was charged against other paid-in capital. This 
premium also reduced earnings per common share as shown in Note 9, “Earnings per Share.”  
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Payment Date    Record Date    Dividend per Share 

December 28, 2009     December 14, 2009    $ 0.15 
September 28, 2009     September 14, 2009    $ 0.15 
June 22, 2009     June 8, 2009    $ 0.15 
March 23, 2009     March 9, 2009    $ 0.15 
December 29, 2008     December 15, 2008    $ 0.15 
September 29, 2008     September 15, 2008    $ 0.15 
June 23, 2008     June 9, 2008    $ 0.15 
March 24, 2008     March 10, 2008    $ 0.15 
December 17, 2007     December 3, 2007    $ 0.15 
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Debt  

Allegheny’s long-term debt was as follows:  
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     As of December 31, 2009    As of December 31,   

(Dollar amounts in millions)    Contractual Maturities    
Interest 
Rate %    2009     2008   

AE Supply:             

Medium-Term Notes  
   2011-2039    

5.750 –
 8.250    $ 1,253.7      $ 1,050.0    

AE Supply Credit Facility (a)     2011    —        —          447.0    
Pollution Control Bonds  

   2012-2037    
5.050 –
 6.875      268.5        268.5    

Exempt Facilities Revenue Bonds     2039    7.000      235.0        —      
Debentures     2023    6.875      100.0        100.0    
Unamortized debt discounts     —      —        (4.4 )      (3.1 )  

             
  

      
  

Total AE Supply long-term debt     —      —      $ 1,852.8      $ 1,862.4    
Monongahela:             

Medium-Term Notes     2010    7.360    $ 110.0      $ 110.0    
First Mortgage Bonds  

   2013-2017    
5.375 –
 7.950      640.0        640.0    

Environmental Control Bonds  
   2016-2031    

4.982 –
5.523      383.3        329.5    

Pollution Control Bonds  
   2012-2029    

5.050 –
 6.875      70.3        70.3    

Unamortized debt discounts     —      —        (1.0 )      (1.4 )  
             

  
      

  

Total Monongahela long-term debt     —      —      $ 1,202.6      $ 1,148.4    
West Penn:             

First Mortgage Bonds  
   2016-2017    

5.875 –
 5.950    $ 420.0      $ 420.0    

Medium-Term Notes     2012    6.625      80.0        80.0    
Transition Bonds     2010    4.460      16.0        95.8    
Unamortized debt discounts     —      —        (1.0 )      (1.2 )  

             
  

      
  

Total West Penn long-term debt     —      —      $ 515.0      $ 594.6    
Potomac Edison:             

First Mortgage Bonds  
   2014-2016    

5.125 –
 5.800    $ 420.0      $ 420.0    

Environmental Control Bonds  
   2016-2031    

4.982 –
 5.523      128.0        110.0    

Unamortized debt discounts     —      —        (1.0 )      (1.2 )  
             

  
      

  

Total Potomac Edison long-term debt           $ 547.0      $ 528.8    
TrAIL Company:             

Term Loan (b)     2015    2.129    $ 435.0      $ 70.0    
Revolving Loan (b)     2015    2.115      20.0        20.0    

             
  

      
  

Total TrAIL Company long-term debt     —      —      $ 455.0      $ 90.0    
Eliminations     —      —        (14.6 )      (14.4 )  

             
  

      
  

Total     —      —      $ 4,557.8      $ 4,209.8    
Less amounts due within one year     —      —        (140.8 )      (93.9 )  

             
  

      
  

Consolidated long-term debt     —      —      $ 4,417.0      $ 4,115.9    
             

  

      

  

  
(a) Represents debt under AE Supply’s previous credit facility, which was replaced with a new credit facility in September 2009 
(b) Variable rate debt 
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Outstanding debt and scheduled debt repayments at December 31, 2009 were as follows:  
   

Certain of Allegheny’s properties are subject to liens of various relative priorities securing debt.  
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(In millions)    2010     2011     2012     2013     2014     Thereafter     Total   

AE Supply:                 

Medium-Term Notes     $ —        $ 150.5      $ 503.2      $ —        $ —        $ 600.0      $ 1,253.7    
Pollution Control Bonds       —          —          1.3        —          15.4        251.8        268.5    
Exempt Facilities Revenue Bonds       —          —          —          —          —          235.0        235.0    
Debentures-AGC       —          —          —          —          —          100.0        100.0    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total AE Supply       —          150.5        504.5        —          15.4        1,186.8        1,857.2    
Monongahela:                 

Environmental Control Bonds (a)       11.1        11.6        12.2        12.8        13.5        322.1        383.3    
First Mortgage Bonds       —          —          —          300.0        120.0        220.0        640.0    
Medium-Term Notes       110.0        —          —          —          —          —          110.0    
Pollution Control Bonds       —          —          6.0        7.1        —          57.2        70.3    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total Monongahela       121.1        11.6        18.2        319.9        133.5        599.3        1,203.6    
West Penn:                 

First Mortgage Bonds       —          —          —          —          —          420.0        420.0    
Transition Bonds (a)       16.0        —          —          —          —          —          16.0    
Medium-Term Notes       —          —          80.0        —          —          —          80.0    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total West Penn       16.0        —          80.0        —          —          420.0        516.0    
Potomac Edison:                 

First Mortgage Bonds       —          —          —          —          175.0        245.0        420.0    
Environmental Control Bonds (a)       3.7        3.9        4.1        4.3        4.5        107.5        128.0    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total Potomac Edison       3.7        3.9        4.1        4.3        179.5        352.5        548.0    
TrAIL Company:                 

Term Loan       —          —          —          —          —          435.0        435.0    
Revolving Loan       —          —          —          —          —          20.0        20.0    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total TrAIL       —          —          —          —          —          455.0        455.0    
Unamortized debt discounts       (1.3 )      (1.2 )      (0.9 )      (0.7 )      (0.6 )      (2.7 )      (7.4 )  
Eliminations (b)       —          —          (1.3 )      —          —          (13.3 )      (14.6 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total consolidated debt     $ 139.5      $ 164.8      $ 604.6      $ 323.5      $ 327.8      $ 2,997.6      $ 4,557.8    
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

  
(a) Amounts represent repayments based upon estimated surcharge collections from customers. 
(b) Amounts represent the elimination of certain pollution control bonds, for which Monongahela and AE Supply are co-obligors. 
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Credit Facilities  

In addition to the debt described above, AE, AE Supply and Monongahela each had a revolving credit facility. AE’s credit facility 
matures in 2011 and AE Supply’s and Monongahela’s credit facilities mature in 2012. At December 31, 2009, borrowing capacity under these 
credit facilities was as follows:  
   

In addition, at December 31, 2009, TrAIL Company had borrowings under its $550 senior unsecured credit facility in the amount of $455 
million. All amounts outstanding under the senior unsecured credit facility were repaid in January 2010, with proceeds from TrAIL Company’s 
January 25, 2010 issuance of unsecured notes and a new $350 million senior unsecured revolving credit facility.  

Under terms of their individual credit facilities, outstanding debt of AE Supply and Monongahela may not exceed 65% of the sum of their 
debt and equity as of the last day of each calendar quarter. These provisions limit the net assets of AE Supply and Monongahela that may be 
transferred to AE.  

2009 Debt Activity  

Borrowings and principal repayments on debt during 2009 were as follows:  
   

On July 6, 2009, the Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority issued $235 million of 7.0% tax-exempt bonds that 
mature in 2039 and loaned the proceeds from that issuance to AE Supply to finance a portion of the cost of constructing and installing 
Scrubbers at its Hatfield’s Ferry generation facility. AE Supply capitalized $2.4 million in debt issuance costs associated with this transaction.  
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(In millions)    
Total  

Capacity    Borrowed    

Letters of 
 

Credit  
Issued    

Available  
Capacity 

AE Revolving Credit Facility     $ 376.0    $ —      $ 3.2    $ 372.8 
AE Supply Revolving Facility       1,000.0      —        —        1,000.0 
Monongahela Revolving Credit Facility       110.0      —        —        110.0 

                            

Total     $ 1,486.0    $ —      $ 3.2    $ 1,482.8 
                            

(In millions)    Issuances    Repayments 

AE:        

AE Revolving Credit Facility     $ 120.0    $ 120.0 
AE Supply:        

AE Supply Credit Facility-Revolving Loan (a)       120.0      120.0 
AE Supply Credit Facility-Term Loan (a)       —        447.0 
Exempt Facilities Revenue Bonds       235.0      —   
Medium-Term Notes       600.0      396.3 

TrAIL Company:        

TrAIL Company Credit Facility-Term Loan       365.0      —   
West Penn:        

Transition Bonds       —        79.8 
Monongahela:        

Environmental Control Bonds       64.4      10.6 
Potomac Edison:        

Environmental Control Bonds       21.5      3.5 
              

Consolidated Total     $ 1,525.9    $ 1,177.2 
              

  
(a) Represents debt activity under AE Supply’s previous credit facility, which was replaced with a new credit facility in September 2009. 
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On September 4, 2009, AE Supply repurchased $97.5 million and $146.8 million, respectively, of its 7.80% Notes due 2011 and its 
8.25% Notes due 2012 pursuant to a cash tender offer, at an aggregate premium of $18.1 million. AE Supply expensed the $18.1 million 
premium, $0.7 million in unamortized debt costs, and $0.6 million in fees associated with the tender offer.  

On September 24, 2009, AE Supply entered into a new $1 billion senior unsecured revolving credit facility with a three-year maturity. 
The new revolving credit facility replaced AE Supply’s previous $400 million revolving credit facility, which was scheduled to mature in May 
2011. Loans under the new facility bear interest that is calculated based on the London Interbank Offered Rate, plus a margin based on AE 
Supply’s senior unsecured credit rating. AE Supply capitalized $22.3 million in debt costs related to this facility.  

On October 1, 2009, AE Supply issued $600 million aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes, consisting of $350 million of 
5.75% Notes due 2019 and $250 million of 6.75% Notes due 2039. AE Supply used a portion of the net proceeds from the sale of these notes to 
repay in full its existing $447 million term loan on October 2, 2009. AE Supply capitalized $5.3 million in debt issuance costs associated with 
this new debt issuance and expensed $0.6 million of unamortized debt costs associated with the extinguished term loan.  

On October 21, 2009, AE Supply used the remaining proceeds of its senior unsecured note offering to repurchase approximately $152 
million aggregate principal amount of its 7.80% Medium Term Notes due 2011 pursuant to a cash tender offer at an aggregate premium of 
$12.7 million. AE Supply expensed the $12.7 million premium, $0.3 million in unamortized debt costs, and $0.4 million in fees related to this 
tender offer.  

On December 18, 2009, Monongahela entered into a new $110 million senior unsecured revolving credit facility with a three-year 
maturity. Loans under the new facility generally bear interest that is calculated based on the London Interbank Offered Rate, plus a margin 
based on Monongahela’s senior unsecured credit rating. Monongahela capitalized approximately $1.4 million in debt costs related to this 
facility.  

On December 23, 2009, MP Environmental Funding LLC, an indirect subsidiary of Monongahela, and PE Environmental Funding LLC, 
an indirect subsidiary of Potomac Edison, issued $64.4 million and $21.5 million, respectively, of Senior Secured Ratepayer Obligation Charge 
Environmental Control Bonds, Series B. These bonds securitize the right to collect an environmental control surcharge that Monongahela and 
Potomac Edison impose on their retail customers in West Virginia. The bonds were issued with an interest rate of 5.1% and mature in January 
2031. Net proceeds from the sale of the bonds are restricted funds and are being used to fund certain costs incurred in connection with the 
construction and installation of the Scrubbers at Fort Martin. Monongahela and Potomac Edison capitalized $1.9 million and $0.7 million, 
respectively, in debt issuance costs associated with this transaction.  

On January 15, 2010, Monongahela repaid all $110 million of its Medium-Term Notes on their due date.  

On January 25, 2010, TrAIL Company issued $450 million aggregate principal amount of 4.0% senior unsecured notes due in 2015 and 
also entered into a new $350 million senior unsecured revolving credit facility with a three-year maturity. Borrowings under the new facility 
will bear interest that is calculated based on the London Interbank Offered Rate, plus a margin based on TrAIL Company’s senior unsecured 
credit rating. TrAIL Company used the net proceeds from the sale of the notes, together with funds from its new credit facility, to repay all 
amounts outstanding under the $550 million senior unsecured credit facility that it had entered into in 2008.  
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2008 Debt Activity  

Issuances of indebtedness and repayments of principal on indebtedness, during 2008 were as follows:  
   

On August 15, 2008, TrAIL Company entered into a $550 million senior secured credit facility with a seven-year maturity. The facility 
included a $530 million construction loan and a $20 million revolving facility, both with an initial borrowing rate equal to the London 
Interbank Offered Rate plus 1.875 percent.  

On December 15, 2008, Monongahela issued $300 million aggregate principal amount of 7.95% First Mortgage Bonds that mature in 
2013. Proceeds from the First Mortgage Bonds were used to repay short-term intercompany debt, to finance certain capital expenditures, 
including a portion of the costs to install Scrubbers at Fort Martin, and for working capital needs and other general corporate purposes.  
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(In millions)    Issuances    Repayments 

AE:        

AE Revolving Credit Facility     $ 14.1    $ 14.1 
AE Supply:        

AE Supply Credit Facility-Term Loan (b)       —        125.0 
AE Supply Credit Facility-Revolving Loan (b)       250.0      250.0 

TrAIL Company:        

Short-Term Promissory Note       —        10.0 
TrAIL Company Credit Facility-Term Loan       70.0      —   
TrAIL Company Credit Facility-Revolving Loan       40.0      20.0 

West Penn:        

Transition Bonds (a)       2.8      78.3 
Monongahela:        

First Mortgage Bonds       300.0      —   
Environmental Control Bonds       —        14.9 

Potomac Edison:        

Environmental Control Bonds       —        4.9 
              

Consolidated Total     $ 676.9    $ 517.2 
              

  
(a) The issuance amounts represent interest that was accrued and added to the principal amount of certain bonds. 
(b) Represents debt activity under AE Supply’s previous credit facility, which was replaced with a new credit facility during September 

2009. 
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NOTE 9:  EARNINGS PER SHARE  

The reconciliation of the basic and diluted earnings per common share calculation was as follows:  
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(In millions, except share and per share amounts)   2009   2008   2007   

Basic Income per Common Share:        

Numerator:        

Net income attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc.    $ 392.8   $ 395.4   $ 412.2    
Redemption of preferred stock (a)      —       —       (1.1 )  

                  
  

Net income attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc. available for 
common shareholders    $ 392.8   $ 395.4   $ 411.1    

                  

  

Denominator:        

Weighted average common shares outstanding      169,537,642     168,458,909     166,021,597    
                  

  

Basic income per common share    $ 2.32   $ 2.35   $ 2.48    
                  

  

Diluted Income per Common Share:        

Numerator:        

Net income attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc.    $ 392.8   $ 395.4   $ 412.2    
Redemption of preferred stock (a)      —       —       (1.1 )  

                  
  

Net income attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc. available for 
common shareholders    $ 392.8   $ 395.4   $ 411.1    

                  

  

Denominator:        

Weighted average common shares outstanding      169,537,642     168,458,909     166,021,597    
Effect of dilutive securities:        

Stock options (b)      387,444     1,251,445     2,723,934    
Stock units      2,697     209,342     660,877    
Non-employee stock awards      —       57,511     61,330    
Performance shares      34,017     14,056     —      

                  
  

Total shares      169,961,800     169,991,263     169,467,738    
                  

  

Diluted income per common share    $ 2.31   $ 2.33   $ 2.43    
                  

  

  
(a) See Note 8, “Capitalization and Debt,”  for information related to Monongahela’s redemption of preferred stock. 
(b) The dilutive share calculations for 2009, 2008 and 2007 exclude 1,808,960 shares, 576,101 shares and 48,578 shares, respectively, under 

outstanding stock options because the inclusion of these stock options would have been antidilutive under the treasury stock method. 
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NOTE 10:  STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION  

On May 15, 2008, AE’s stockholders approved the Allegheny Energy, Inc. 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “2008 LTIP”). The 2008 
LTIP authorized the grant of equity-based compensation to AE’s directors and to its executives and other key employees in the form of 
performance awards, stock options and stock appreciation rights, restricted shares, and restricted stock units.  

Allegheny records compensation expense for share-based payments to employees and non-employee directors, including grants of 
employee stock options, performance shares, restricted shares and stock units, over the requisite service period based on their estimated fair 
value on the date of grant.  

The following table summarizes stock-based compensation expense included in operations and maintenance expense during 2009, 2008 
and 2007:  
   

Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, 
using an estimated annual forfeiture rate of 5%. No stock-based compensation cost was capitalized in 2009, 2008 or 2007.  

Stock Options  

The exercise price, terms and other conditions applicable to stock option awards are generally determined by the Management 
Compensation and Development Committee of AE’s Board or the independent directors of the Board. The exercise price per share for each 
award is equal to or greater than the fair market value of a share of AE’s common stock on the grant date. Stock options vest in annual tranches 
on a pro-rata basis over the vesting period, which is typically two to five years, and become fully vested and exercisable upon a change in 
control. Stock options typically expire after 10 years. Stock option awards are expensed using the straight-line attribution method over the 
requisite service period of the last separately vesting tranche of the award.  

Allegheny records compensation expense for employee stock options based on the estimated fair value of the options on the date of grant 
under the Black-Scholes option-pricing model using the following weighted-average assumptions for stock options granted in 2009, 2008 and 
2007:  
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(In millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Stock options     $ 7.4    $ 9.3    $ 7.3 
Performance shares       7.3      2.9      —   
Non-employee director shares       0.9      1.1      1.0 
Restricted shares       0.1      —        —   
Stock units       —        0.6      2.4 

                     

Total stock-based compensation expense       15.7      13.9      10.7 
Income tax benefit       6.4      5.7      4.3 

                     

Total stock-based compensation expense, net of tax     $ 9.3    $ 8.2    $ 6.4 
                     

     2009     2008     2007   

Annual risk-free interest rate       2.86 %      3.18 %      4.62 %  
Expected term of the option (in years)       6.00        6.06        5.62    
Expected annual dividend yield       2.53 %      1.13 %      0.20 %  
Expected stock price volatility       36.4 %      27.5 %      24.8 %  
Grant date fair value per stock option     $ 7.14      $ 15.18      $ 17.23    
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The annual risk-free interest rate is based on the United States Treasury yield curve at the date of the grant for a period equal to the 
expected term of the options granted. The expected term of the 2009, 2008 and 2007 stock option grants was calculated in accordance with 
Staff Accounting Bulletin 107, using the “simplified” method. AE continues to use the simplified method for its calculation of expected term 
due to its lack of sufficient historical exercise data to provide a reasonable basis upon which to estimate expected term and because AE has 
granted stock options in prior years with varying vesting terms, which also makes it difficult to evaluate historical exercise data. The expected 
annual dividend yield assumption was based on AE’s current dividend rate at the time of each grant. For stock options granted in 2009, 2008 
and 2007, the expected stock price volatility was based on both historical stock volatility and the volatility levels implied on the grant date by 
actively traded option contracts on AE’s common stock.  

Stock option activity was as follows:  
   

The grant-date fair value of stock options granted, the total pre-tax intrinsic value of stock options exercised and exercisable, and the cash 
received by AE from stock option exercises in 2009, 2008 and 2007 are shown in the table below:  
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Stock  

Options     

Weighted-
 

Average  
Exercise  

Price 

Outstanding at December 31, 2006     4,670,338      $ 16.50 
Granted     31,000      $ 52.36 
Exercised     (1,445,969 )    $ 18.29 
Forfeited/Expired     (63,960 )    $ 13.38 

     
  

  

Outstanding at December 31, 2007     3,191,409      $ 16.11 
Granted     628,763      $ 52.36 
Exercised     (1,849,316 )    $ 13.71 
Forfeited/Expired     (100,347 )    $ 45.62 

     
  

  

Outstanding at December 31, 2008     1,870,509      $ 29.08 
Granted     1,204,965      $ 23.68 
Exercised     (163,700 )    $ 14.20 
Forfeited/Expired     (58,832 )    $ 30.55 

     
  

  

Outstanding at December 31, 2009     2,852,942      $ 27.62 
     

  

  

(in millions)    2009    2008    2007 

Grant-date fair value of stock options granted     $ 8.6    $ 9.6    $ 0.5 
Total pre-tax intrinsic value of stock options exercised (a)     $ 2.1    $ 64.5    $ 56.6 
Total pre-tax intrinsic value of stock options exercisable at December 31 (b)     $ 7.9    $ 14.9    $ 92.0 
Cash received by AE from stock option exercises     $ 2.3    $ 25.3    $ 26.4 
  
(a) Represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value based on the difference between the market value of AE’s common stock at exercise and the 

exercise price of the options. 
(b) Represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value based on the difference between the exercise price of stock options exercisable (with an 

exercise price lower than AE’s closing stock price) and AE’s closing stock price of $23.48, $33.86, and $63.61, on December 31, 2009, 
2008, and 2007, respectively. 

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 1232 of 9808



Table of Contents  

ALLEGHENY ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)  
   

Allegheny issued new shares of its common stock to satisfy these stock option exercises. No cash tax benefit was realized from tax 
deductions on stock options exercised during 2009, 2008 and 2007 because of existing net operating loss carryforwards.  

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and stock options exercisable at December 31, 2009:  
   

As of December 31, 2009, Allegheny had approximately $7.8 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested 
outstanding stock options, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 1.4 years.  

Allegheny records excess tax benefits associated with share-based awards directly to equity only when realized. Accordingly, deferred tax 
assets have not been recognized for net operating loss carryforwards resulting from excess tax benefits subsequent to January 1, 2006. The 
unrecorded excess tax benefits from share-based awards were $66.0 million and $65.2 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.  

Performance Shares  

AE has granted equity-based performance shares to key employees pursuant to which award recipients may earn shares of AE common 
stock based on AE’s Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”) and AE’s performance with respect to its Annual Incentive Plan (“AIP”) goals. 
Performance shares vest at the end of the three-year performance period and become fully vested and payable upon a change in control.  
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Range of Exercise  
Prices 

  Options Outstanding   Options Exercisable 
      Weighted-Average                 

  

Outstanding as 
of December 31, 

 
2009   

Remaining  
Contractual Term 

 
(in Years)   

Exercise 
 

Price   

Aggregate  
Intrinsic Value 

 
(in millions) (a)   

Exercisable as  
of December 31, 

 
2009   

Weighted  
Average  

Exercise Price   

Aggregate  
Intrinsic Value 

 
(in millions) (a) 

$10.00 - $14.99    750,171   4.2   $ 13.53   $ 7.5   750,171   $ 13.53   $ 7.5 
$15.00 - $19.99    83,722   5.1   $ 18.91     0.4   65,922   $ 18.87     0.3 
$20.00 - $24.99    1,219,558   8.9   $ 23.53     0.1   46,057   $ 20.87     0.1 
$25.00 - $29.99    71,243   7.2   $ 27.77     —     32,764   $ 28.40     —   
$30.00 - $34.99    10,200   2.0   $ 34.56     —     10,200   $ 34.56     —   
$35.00 - $39.99    61,800   6.2   $ 35.97     —     39,400   $ 36.26     —   
$40.00 - $44.99    63,557   3.8   $ 42.49     —     63,186   $ 42.48     —   
$45.00 - $49.99    85,570   7.6   $ 46.10     —     33,191   $ 46.52     —   
$50.00 - $54.99    495,121   8.1   $ 53.52     —     172,752   $ 53.50     —   
$55.00 - $59.99    12,000   7.5   $ 55.96     —     11,334   $ 55.74     —   

                          

Total    2,852,942   7.2   $ 27.62   $ 8.0   1,224,977   $ 23.81   $ 7.9 
                          

  
(a) Represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value based on stock options with an exercise price less than AE’s closing stock price of $23.48 as of 

December 31, 2009. 
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For performance shares linked to TSR, the TSR of AE’s common stock is compared to the TSR of the companies in the Dow Jones U.S. 
Electric Utilities Index over a three-year performance period. Based upon AE’s percentile rank within the peer group, shares earned can range 
from 0% to 250% of each participant’s target award. The grant date fair value will be recognized as compensation expense over the requisite 
service period on a straight-line basis for awards ultimately expected to vest, using an estimated annual forfeiture rate of 5%. Activity in target 
performance shares linked to TSR was as follows:  
   

The grant date fair value of performance shares linked to TSR granted during the twelve months ended December 31, 2009 was $4.6 
million. The fair value was determined using a Monte Carlo simulation model, utilizing actual TSR information for the common shares of AE 
and its peers for the period from January 1, 2009 to the February 27, 2009 grant date and estimated future stock volatility and dividends of AE 
and its peers. The expected stock volatility assumptions for AE and its peer group was based on three-year historic stock volatility, and the 
annual dividend yield assumptions were based on current dividend yields at the grant date.  

As of December 31, 2009, there was approximately $3.2 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested outstanding 
performance shares linked to TSR, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately one and a half years.  

For performance shares linked to AE’s AIP goals, the number of AE common shares to be earned and distributed is based on AE’s 
performance compared to annual performance targets for a three-year period. The annual performance targets are established at the beginning 
of each individual year. Compensation expense is recognized over the remaining portion of the three-year performance period as if the awards 
were separate annual awards, using an estimated annual forfeiture rate of 5%. The percentage of target shares earned can range from 0% to 
200%. Activity in target performance shares linked to the AIP was as follows:  
   

As of December 31, 2009, there was approximately $1.8 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested outstanding 
performance shares linked to the AIP relating to performance goals, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 
approximately one year.  
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Number of 
 

Shares   

Performance shares outstanding at December 31, 2007     —      
Granted     83,653    
Forfeited     (8,098 )  

     
  

Performance shares outstanding at December 31, 2008     75,555    
Granted     172,075    
Forfeited     (3,898 )  

     
  

Performance shares outstanding at December 31, 2009     243,732    
     

  

     

Number of 
 

Shares   

Performance shares outstanding at December 31, 2007     —      
Granted     83,796    
Forfeited     (8,103 )  

     
  

Performance shares outstanding at December 31, 2008     75,693    
Granted     172,220    
Forfeited     (3,903 )  

     
  

Performance shares outstanding at December 31, 2009     244,010    
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Stock Units  

Allegheny’s Stock Unit Plan permitted the grant to Allegheny’s key executives, at the time of hire, of stock units representing up to 
4.5 million shares of AE’s common stock. Upon vesting, an executive may convert each stock unit into one share of AE common stock. These 
stock units vest in annual tranches on a pro-rata basis over the vesting period, which is typically three to five years, and become fully vested 
upon a change in control. Stock unit awards granted prior to January 1, 2006 are expensed using the graded-vesting method. The fair value of 
each stock unit is equivalent to the market price of Allegheny’s stock on the date of grant. No stock units were granted since 2005.  

Stock unit activity for the last three years was as follows:  
   

The total pre-tax intrinsic value of stock units converted to shares of AE common stock during 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $0.1 million, 
$23.1 million and $29.7 million, respectively. Allegheny issued new shares of its common stock in connection with the stock unit conversions. 
The actual number of common shares issued upon conversion of stock units was net of shares withheld to meet minimum income tax 
withholding requirements.  

Non-Employee Director Shares  

Under the Non-Employee Director Stock Plan, during 2009, 2008 and 2007 each non-employee member of AE’s Board of Directors 
received, on a quarterly basis, subject to his or her election to defer his or her receipt, shares of AE common stock with a value equivalent to 
the lesser of 1,000 shares or $30,000 of AE common stock as determined based on the closing price of AE common stock on the last business 
day of each calendar quarter for services performed. A maximum of 300,000 shares of AE’s common stock, subject to adjustments for stock 
splits, combinations, recapitalizations, stock dividends or similar changes in stock, may be issued under this plan. The 2009, 2008 and 2007 
compensation of each non-employee director was 4,000 shares, 2,895 shares and 2,303 shares, respectively, of AE’s common stock. The 
amount of expense relating to this plan for 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $0.9 million, $1.1 million and $1.0 million, respectively, representing the 
closing price of AE’s common stock on the date of grant multiplied by the number of shares granted.  
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Number of  
Stock Units     

Weighted-Average 
Grant Date  
Fair Value    

Aggregate  
Intrinsic Value (a) 

 
(in millions) 

Outstanding at December 31, 2006 (107,220 units convertible)     1,045,966      $ 15.29    $ 48.0 
Units converted into 373,395 common shares     (596,078 )    $ 15.29    
Dividends on unvested grants     1,167      $ 60.66    

     
  

     

Outstanding at December 31, 2007     451,055      $ 15.40    $ 28.7 
Units converted into 270,633 common shares     (447,640 )    $ 15.53    
Dividends on unvested grants     1,672      $ 47.69    

     
  

     

Outstanding at December 31, 2008     5,087      $ 15.19    $ 0.2 
Units converted into 3,573 common shares     (5,147 )    $ 15.31    
Dividends on unvested grants     60      $ 25.47    

     
  

     

Outstanding at December 31, 2009     —        $ —      $ —   
     

  

     

  
(a) Represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value based on stock units outstanding multiplied by AE’s closing stock price on each respective 

date. 
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Non-employee director share activity in the last three years was as follows:  
   

Restricted Shares  

In the first quarter of 2009, AE granted 17,850 restricted shares with an aggregate fair value of $0.4 million and a three year vesting 
period.  
   

As of December 31, 2009, Allegheny had approximately $0.3 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested restricted 
shares, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 2 years.  

Change in Control  

As described above, stock options and other stock-based awards become fully vested and exercisable upon a change in control. Approval 
by Allegheny’s stockholders of Allegheny’s proposed merger with FirstEnergy Corp. (“FirstEnergy”) would constitute a change in control 
under the relevant stock-based compensation plan provisions. See also Note 27 “Subsequent Event – Merger Agreement.”  

NOTE 11:  PENSION BENEFITS AND POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS  

Substantially all of Allegheny’s personnel, including officers, are employed by AESC and are covered by a noncontributory, defined 
benefit pension plan. Allegheny also maintains a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the “SERP”) for executive officers and other senior 
executives.  

Allegheny also provides subsidies for medical and life insurance plans for eligible retirees and dependents. Medical benefits, which make 
up the largest component of the postretirement benefits other than pensions, have  
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Number of 
 

Shares   

Shares earned but not issued at December 31, 2006     64,893    
Granted     18,424    
Issued     (18,300 )  
Dividends on earned but not issued shares     160    

     
  

Shares earned but not issued at December 31, 2007     65,177    
Granted     26,055    
Issued     (20,869 )  
Dividends on earned but not issued shares     858    

     
  

Shares earned but not issued at December 31, 2008     71,221    
Granted     36,000    
Issued     (22,201 )  
Dividends on earned but not issued shares     1,669    

     
  

Shares earned but not issued at December 31, 2009     86,689    
     

  

     

Number of 
 

Shares   

Restricted shares outstanding at December 31, 2008     —      
Granted     17,850    
Shares vested     (5,950 )  

     
  

Restricted shares outstanding at December 31, 2009     11,900    
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retiree premiums based upon an age and years-of-service vesting schedule, include other plan provisions that limit future benefits and take into 
account certain collective bargaining arrangements. Subsidized medical coverage is not provided in retirement to employees hired on or after 
January 1, 1993, with the exception of certain union employees who were hired or became members before May 1, 2006. The provisions of the 
postretirement health care plans and certain collective bargaining arrangements limit Allegheny’s costs for eligible retirees and dependents.  

The components of the net periodic cost for pension benefits and for postretirement benefits other than pensions (principally health care 
and life insurance) for employees and covered dependents by Allegheny were as follows:  
   

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, Allegheny capitalized $17.7 million, $13.2 million and $14.1 million, 
respectively, of the above net periodic cost amounts to “Construction work in progress,” a component of “Property, plant and equipment, net.”  

In 2008, as required by GAAP, AE changed to a December 31 measurement date for its pension plans, postretirement benefits other than 
pension plans and long-term disability plan. Accordingly, AE performed a measurement of plan assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2008. 
AE’s prior measurement date for these plans was September 30, 2007. Twelve fifteenths of net periodic cost for the fifteen month period from 
September 30, 2007 to December 31, 2008 was recorded as current year benefit costs and three fifteenths of the total cost was charged to 
retained earnings as of December 31, 2008, net of tax. The adjustment to retained earnings in the amount of $6.8 million was comprised of $6.0 
million of pension benefit costs less income tax effect of $2.4 million and $5.4 million of other benefit plan costs less income tax effect of $2.2 
million.  

Allegheny uses the market-related value of pension assets to determine the expected return on pension plan assets, a component of net 
periodic pension cost. The market-related value recognizes changes in fair value on a straight line basis over a five-year period. Changes in fair 
value are measured as the difference between the expected and actual plan asset returns, including dividends, interest and realized and 
unrealized investment gains and losses. Allegheny uses the fair value of assets to determine the expected return on postretirement benefits other 
than pension assets.  
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     Pension Benefits     
Postretirement Benefits  
Other Than Pensions   

(In millions)    2009     2008     2007     2009     2008     2007   
Components of net periodic cost:               

Service cost     $ 22.3      $ 21.2      $ 21.4      $ 4.4      $ 4.4      $ 4.5    
Interest cost       70.9        68.5        64.7        17.2        17.2        17.0    
Expected return on plan assets       (74.2 )      (76.8 )      (73.0 )      (5.3 )      (7.3 )      (6.7 )  
Amortization of unrecognized transition obligation       0.5        0.5        0.5        5.7        5.7        5.7    
Amortization of prior service cost       3.2        3.2        3.2        —          —          —      
Recognized actuarial loss       11.1        7.2        10.5        1.9        0.7        2.4    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net periodic cost     $ 33.8      $ 23.8      $ 27.3      $ 23.9      $ 20.7      $ 22.9    
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The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive loss, pre-tax, and regulatory assets that are expected to be recognized as components of 
net periodic cost during the next fiscal year are as follows:  
   

The amounts accrued at December 31, using a measurement date of December 31, included the following components:  
   

The SERP is a non-qualified pension plan, and Allegheny is therefore not obligated to fund the SERP obligation. The SERP obligation, 
which is included as a component of the pension benefit obligation shown in the table above, was $10.1 million and $8.0 million at 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.  

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, were as follows:  
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(In millions)    

Pension 
 

Benefits    

Postretirement 
 

Benefits Other 
 

Than Pensions 

Net actuarial loss     $ 18.3    $ —   
Net prior service cost       3.2      —   
Net transition obligation       0.5      5.7 

              

Total to be recognized in net periodic cost     $ 22.0    $ 5.7 
              

     Pension Benefits     

Postretirement  
Benefits Other  
Than Pensions   

(In millions)    2009     2008     2009     2008   

Change in benefit obligation:           

Benefit obligations at beginning of year     $ 1,124.9      $ 1,103.7      $ 269.8      $ 278.1    
Service cost       22.3        21.2        4.4        4.4    
Interest cost       70.9        68.5        17.2        17.2    
Plan participants’  contributions       —          —          4.4        4.5    
Actuarial (gain)/loss       76.0        (6.2 )      (9.3 )      (11.8 )  
Benefits paid       (67.7 )      (84.7 )      (22.3 )      (28.0 )  
Effects of changing the plans’  measurement date       —          22.4        —          5.4    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Benefit obligation at end of year       1,226.4        1,124.9        264.2        269.8    
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Change in plan assets:           

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year       750.1        964.1        66.2        89.9    
Actual return on plan assets       95.1        (164.6 )      18.3        (17.7 )  
Plan participants’  contributions       —          —          4.4        4.5    
Employer contribution       38.0        35.3        7.3        13.1    
Benefits paid       (67.7 )      (84.7 )      (19.0 )      (23.6 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Fair value of plan assets at end of year       815.5        750.1        77.2        66.2    
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Funded status at December 31     $ (410.9 )    $ (374.8 )    $ (187.0 )    $ (203.6 )  
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

     Pension Benefits     

Postretirement  
Benefits Other  
Than Pensions   

(In millions)    2009     2008     2009     2008   

Current liabilities     $ (0.5 )    $ —        $ —        $ —      
Noncurrent liabilities       (410.4 )      (374.8 )      (187.0 )      (203.6 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net amounts recognized at December 31     $ (410.9 )    $ (374.8 )    $ (187.0 )    $ (203.6 )  
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Amounts recognized in “Accumulated other comprehensive loss,” pre-tax, at December 31, that have not yet been recognized as 
components of net periodic benefit cost, were as follows:  
   

Allegheny has determined that a portion of the unfunded pension and postretirement benefit obligations represents an incurred cost that 
qualifies for regulatory asset treatment under GAAP. Because future recovery of these incurred costs are probable for certain of its state and 
federal jurisdictions, Allegheny has recorded regulatory assets in the amounts of $362.9 million and $332.6 million for pension benefits and 
$33.6 million and $57.8 million for postretirement benefits other than pensions at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The 2009 
increase in regulatory assets was related to increased unfunded pension obligations.  

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $1.12 billion and $1.04 billion at December 31, 2009 and 
2008, respectively. The portion of the total accumulated benefit obligation related to the SERP was $9.0 million and $7.2 million at 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.  

Information for pension plans with a projected benefit obligation and an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets was as 
follows:  
   

The assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit costs for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 are shown in the 
table below.  
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     Pension Benefits     

Postretirement  
Benefits Other  
Than Pensions   

(In millions)    2009     2008     2009     2008   

Net actuarial loss     $ 466.0      $ 422.1      $ 26.4      $ 50.7    
Net prior service cost       11.2        14.4        —          —      
Net transition obligation       1.2        1.7        15.7        21.3    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, pre-tax       478.4        438.2        42.1        72.0    
Regulatory asset       (362.9 )      (332.6 )      (33.6 )      (57.8 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, pre-tax, recognized at December 31     $ 115.5      $ 105.6      $ 8.5      $ 14.2    
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

(In millions) 
   Pension Benefits 
   2009    2008 

Projected benefit obligation     $ 1,226.4    $ 1,124.9 
Accumulated benefit obligation     $ 1,122.4    $ 1,035.2 
Fair value of plan assets     $ 815.5    $ 750.1 

     2009     2008     2007   
Discount rate:         

Pension (Qualified Plan)     6.50 %    6.40 %    6.00 %  
SERP     6.40 %    6.40 %    6.00 %  
Postretirement benefits other than pension     6.60 %    6.40 %    6.00 %  

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, net of administrative expenses     8.25 %    8.25 %    8.25 %  
Rate of compensation increase (a)     3.60 %    3.60 %    3.60 %  
  
(a) Weighted-average rate for age graded scale. 
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The assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are shown in the table below:  
   

Allegheny determines its discount rate assumptions through the use of a cash flow matching process in which the timing and amount of 
estimated benefit cash flows for each benefit plan are matched with an interest rate curve applicable to the returns of high quality corporate 
bonds over the expected benefit payment period to determine an overall effective discount rate. The interest rate curve used in this process is 
based primarily on the Citigroup Pension Discount Curve and the Citigroup Above Median Pension Discount Curve.  

Allegheny determines its expected long-term rate of return on plan assets assumption based on historical and expected future asset returns 
for each plan investment category as well as the current and expected future allocation of plan assets by investment category. The expected 
long-term rate of return on plan assets used to develop net periodic benefit costs for 2010 was 8.0%.  

Assumed health care cost trend rates at December 31 were as follows:  
   

For measuring obligations related to postretirement benefits other than pensions, Allegheny assumed a health care cost trend rate of 8.5% 
beginning in 2010 and decreasing by 0.5% each year thereafter to an ultimate rate of 5.0% in 2017, and plan provisions that limit future 
medical and life insurance benefits. Because of the plan provisions that limit future benefits, changes in the assumed health care cost trend rate 
would have a limited effect on the amounts displayed in the tables above. A one-percentage-point change in the assumed health care cost trend 
rate would have the following effects:  
   

Under the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the “Medicare Act”), the federal government 
provides subsidies for certain drug costs to companies that provide coverage that is actuarially equivalent to the drug coverage under Medicare 
Part D. The subsidy is 28% of eligible drug costs for retirees who are over age 65 and covered under Allegheny’s postretirement benefits other 
than pension plan.  

Allegheny determined that the prescription drug benefit offered under its postretirement benefits other than pension plan is at least 
actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D and is expected to continue to be actuarially equivalent through 2011. Allegheny received a total 
subsidy of approximately $1.5 million for 2009, $1.6 million for 2008 and $1.4 million for 2007.  
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     2009     2008   
Discount rate:       

Pension (Qualified Plan)     6.00 %    6.50 %  
SERP     6.00 %    6.40 %  
Postretirement benefits other than pension     5.80 %    6.60 %  

Rate of compensation increase (a)     3.60 %    3.60 %  
  
(a) Weighted-average rate for age graded scale. 

     2009     2008   
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year     8.5 %    9.0 %  
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate trend rate)     5.0 %    5.0 %  
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate     2017      2017    

(In millions)    
1-Percentage-Point 

Increase    
1-Percentage-Point 

Decrease   

Effect on total of service and interest cost components     $ 0.7    $ (0.6 )  
Effect on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation     $ 5.2    $ (4.6 )  
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Plan Assets  

The long-term target asset allocation of the defined benefit pension plan is 50% equity securities and 50% fixed income securities. The 
long-term target for the assets associated with the postretirement benefits other than pension plans vary based on the particular structure of each 
plan and range from 55% to 75% equity securities and from 25% to 45% fixed income securities. Equity securities primarily include 
investments in large-cap and mid-cap companies primarily located in the United States (“U.S.”) and in international large-cap companies. 
Fixed income securities include corporate bonds of companies from diversified industries. Under the plans’ investment policies, the actual 
allocations may vary from the long-term objective within specified ranges. Market shifts, changes in the plan dynamics or changes in economic 
conditions may cause the asset mix to fall outside of the long-term policy range in a given period.  

The following table disaggregates by level within the fair value hierarchy described in Note 13, “Fair Value Measurements, Derivative 
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” the fair value of the pension plan’s investments by asset class as of December 31, 2009:  
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(In millions) 
   Fair Value Hierarchy Level 
   Level 1    Level 2    Level 3    Total 

Cash equivalents (a)     $ —      $ 3.3    $ —      $ 3.3 
Equity securities:              

U.S. large-cap (b)       —        227.7      —        227.7 
U.S. mid-cap growth (c)       —        42.4      —        42.4 
International large-cap (d)       —        114.9      —        114.9 

Domestic real estate (e)       —        18.0      —        18.0 
Fixed income securities:              

Corporate bonds (f)       —        24.9      —        24.9 
Government securities (g)       —        53.6      —        53.6 

Group annuity contract (h)       —        330.7      —        330.7 
                            

Total     $ —      $ 815.5    $ —      $ 815.5 
                            

  
(a) This class seeks to generate a reasonable rate of return by investing in securities that are either issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Treasury 

and/or U.S. Government Agencies. 
(b) This class seeks to match the returns of the S&P 500 Index and the Russell 1000 Index. Approximately 76% of these assets are invested 

to match the Russell 1000 index and 24% are invested to match the S&P 500 Index. 
(c) This class seeks to match the return of the Russell 2000 Index. 
(d) This class seeks to match the performance of the Morgan Stanley Capital International EAFE Index while providing low cost, broadly 

diversified, non-U.S. exposure. 
(e) This class seeks to match the return of the Dow Jones U.S. Select REIT Index. 
(f) This class seeks to match the return of the High Yield $200 Million Very Liquid Index, a customized Barclays Capital Index. 
(g) This class seeks to match the return of the Barclays Capital U.S. Long Government/Credit Bond Index. 
(h) An unallocated group annuity contract with Metropolitan Life Insurance Company. Valued at a price per unit that is based upon the 

underlying value of the domestic fixed income securities. 
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The following table disaggregates by level within the fair value hierarchy the fair value of the postretirement benefits other than pensions 
plan’s investments by asset class as of December 31, 2009:  
   

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, a portion of the pension plan’s assets were invested in collective trust funds that participate in a 
securities lending program. These funds have modified their withdrawal procedures as a result of liquidity issues affecting the funds’ ability to 
liquidate their securities lending collateral investment pools. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, Allegheny’s pension plan participation in the 
collateral investment pool was approximately $56 million and $97 million at cost, respectively, with a market value of approximately $55 
million and $91 million, respectively. Allegheny does not currently anticipate that its pension plan will experience any significant loss as a 
result of securities lending by funds in which it participates.  

Contributions  

Allegheny makes cash contributions to its qualified pension plan to meet the minimum funding requirements of employee benefit and tax 
laws and may include additional discretionary contributions to increase the funded level of the plan. Allegheny has not yet determined the 
amount of future contributions, but expects to contribute approximately $80 million to its pension plan for the year 2010. The amount of future 
contributions to the plan will depend on the funded status of the plan, asset performance and other factors. Allegheny currently anticipates that 
it will contribute $12 million to $14 million during 2010 to fund postretirement benefits other than pensions.  

The Pension Protection Act of 2006 (the “Pension Protection Act”) may affect the manner in which many companies, including 
Allegheny, administer their pension plans. Effective January 1, 2008, the Pension Protection Act will require many companies to more fully 
fund their pension plans according to new funding targets, potentially resulting in greater annual contributions. Allegheny is currently assessing 
the impact that the Pension Protection Act will have on its pension funding in future years.  
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(In millions) 
   Fair Value Hierarchy Level 
   Level 1    Level 2    Level 3    Total 

Cash equivalents (a)     $ —      $ 1.4    $ —      $ 1.4 
Equity securities:              

U.S. large-cap (b)       —        21.7      —        21.7 
Trust owned life insurance (TOLI) (c)       —        38.2      —        38.2 
Fixed income securities (d)       —        15.9      —        15.9 

                            

Total     $ —      $ 77.2    $ —      $ 77.2 
                            

  
(a) This class seeks to generate a reasonable rate of return by investing in high grade money market instruments. 
(b) This class seeks to match the return of the S&P 500 Index. 
(c) The TOLI is an unallocated insurance contract that is valued based upon the underlying mutual funds and pooled investments and at the 

value of investments made at a London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR), which approximates the policy’s net cash surrender value. The 
underlying investments are comprised of approximately 60% equities and 40% U.S. fixed income bonds. 

(d) This class seeks to match, as closely as possible, the performance of the Barclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Bond Index, by investing 
primarily in collateralized mortgage obligations, corporate bonds, and U.S. Treasury obligations. 
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Estimated Future Benefit Payments  

The following table shows estimated benefit payments to be made by Allegheny, and the estimated federal subsidy payments to be 
received by Allegheny:  
   

ESOSP 401(k) Savings Plan  

The Allegheny Energy Employee Stock Ownership and Savings Plan (“ESOSP”) was established as a non-contributory stock ownership 
plan for all eligible employees, effective January 1, 1976, and was amended in 1984 to include a savings program. All of Allegheny’s 
employees, subject to meeting eligibility requirements, may elect to participate in the ESOSP. Under the ESOSP, each eligible employee may 
elect to have from 2% to 25% of his or her compensation contributed to the ESOSP on a pre-tax basis. Starting July 1, 2007, participants may 
elect to make all or a portion of their respective contributions to a Roth 401(k). An additional 1% to 6% of compensation may be contributed 
on a post-tax basis. Allegheny matches 50% of an employee’s first 6% of pre-tax salary deferrals and Roth 401(k) contributions into the 
ESOSP. Participants direct the investment of all contributions to specified mutual funds or AE common stock.  

In 2009, 2008 and 2007, AE made ESOSP matching contributions in cash in the amount of $9.0 million, $8.6 million and $8.1 million, 
respectively. These contributions, less amounts capitalized in “Construction work in progress,” were expensed. The capitalized portions of 
these costs were $2.9 million, $2.5 million and $2.2 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  

Disability Benefits  

Allegheny provides benefits to eligible employees who are unable to perform their work duties due to an injury or illness. These benefits 
include income replacement under the Allegheny Energy Long-Term Disability Plan and medical and life insurance benefits under Allegheny’s 
medical and life insurance plans. The benefits are paid in accordance with Allegheny’s established benefit practices and policies. The liability 
related to these disability benefits was $8.9 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008.  

NOTE 12:  SEGMENT INFORMATION  

Allegheny changed the composition of its reportable segments during the fourth quarter of 2009, consistent with changes made to its 
management structure and the internal financial reporting used by its chief operating decision maker to regularly assess the performance of the 
business and allocate resources.  

Prior to the change in composition of segments, the Generation and Marketing segment included the regulated generation operations of 
Monongahela and the unregulated generation operations of AE Supply; and the Delivery and Services segment included the regulated 
operations of Allegheny’s Distribution Companies (excluding Monongahela’s generation operations), TrAIL Company and PATH, LLC.  
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(In millions) 

   

Pension 
Benefits 

   
Postretirement Benefits Other  

Than Pensions 

      
Benefit  

Payments    

Expected Federal 
 

Subsidy 

2010     $ 67.7    $ 19.8    $ 1.6 
2011     $ 68.6    $ 19.7    $ 1.3 
2012     $ 69.9    $ 19.6    $ —   
2013     $ 71.5    $ 19.6    $ —   
2014     $ 73.4    $ 19.8    $ —   
2015 – 2019     $ 414.0    $ 103.7    $ —   
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The changes in Allegheny’s reportable segments during 2009 consisted primarily of the following:  
   

   

   

Segment information for 2008 and 2007 has been reclassified to conform to the 2009 presentation included below:  
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•   Monongahela’s regulated generation operations were moved from the Generation and Marketing segment to the Delivery and 

Services segment.  
  •   The Generation and Marketing segment was renamed the Merchant Generation segment.  
  •   The Delivery and Services segment was renamed the Regulated Operations segment.  

(In millions)    
Merchant  

Generation     
Regulated 
Operations     Eliminations (a)     Total   

2009           

Operating revenues:           

External operating revenues     $ 383.1      $ 3,043.7      $ —        $ 3,426.8    
Internal operating revenues       1,225.5        7.5        (1,233.0 )      —      

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total operating revenues       1,608.6        3,051.2        (1,233.0 )      3,426.8    
Operating expenses:           

Fuel       675.5        211.1        —          886.6    
Purchased power and transmission       26.4        1,702.8        (1,227.2 )      502.0    
Deferred energy costs, net       —          (64.4 )      —          (64.4 )  
Operations and maintenance       247.0        445.9        (5.8 )      687.1    
Depreciation and amortization       106.8        177.1        (1.8 )      282.1    
Taxes other than income taxes       47.2        166.4        —          213.6    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total operating expenses       1,102.9        2,638.9        (1,234.8 )      2,507.0    
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Operating income       505.7        412.3        1.8        919.8    
Other income (expense), net       1.0        17.1        (11.1 )      7.0    
Interest expense       134.9        157.4        (1.2 )      291.1    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Income before income taxes       371.8        272.0        (8.1 )      635.7    
Income tax expense       128.8        112.8        —          241.6    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net income       243.0        159.2        (8.1 )      394.1    
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests       (9.0 )      (1.3 )      9.0        (1.3 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net income attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc.     $ 234.0      $ 157.9      $ 0.9      $ 392.8    
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

  
(a) Represents elimination of transactions between reportable segments. 
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(In millions)    
Merchant  

Generation     
Regulated 
Operations     Eliminations (a)     Total   

2008           

Operating revenues:           

External operating revenues     $ 554.9      $ 2,831.0      $ —        $ 3,385.9    
Internal operating revenues       1,238.0        24.3        (1,262.3 )      —      

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total operating revenues       1,792.9        2,855.3        (1,262.3 )      3,385.9    
Operating expenses:           

Fuel       793.4        287.5        —          1,080.9    
Purchased power and transmission       30.3        1,622.3        (1,257.0 )      395.6    
Deferred energy costs, net       —          (63.7 )      —          (63.7 )  
Operations and maintenance       222.1        458.0        (5.3 )      674.8    
Depreciation and amortization       94.1        181.9        (2.1 )      273.9    
Taxes other than income taxes       47.6        167.3        —          214.9    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total operating expenses       1,187.5        2,653.3        (1,264.4 )      2,576.4    
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Operating income       605.4        202.0        2.1        809.5    
Other income (expense), net       7.8        28.6        (14.1 )      22.3    
Interest expense       99.7        135.6        (3.4 )      231.9    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Income before income taxes       513.5        95.0        (8.6 )      599.9    
Income tax expense       179.7        24.4        —          204.1    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net income       333.8        70.6        (8.6 )      395.8    
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests       (9.5 )      (0.4 )      9.5        (0.4 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net income attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc.     $ 324.3      $ 70.2      $ 0.9      $ 395.4    
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

2007           

Operating revenues:           

External operating revenues     $ 474.2      $ 2,832.8      $ —        $ 3,307.0    
Internal operating revenues       1,151.7        22.5        (1,174.2 )      —      

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total operating revenues       1,625.9        2,855.3        (1,174.2 )      3,307.0    
Operating expenses:           

Fuel       661.7        269.1        —          930.8    
Purchased power and transmission       33.5        1,527.8        (1,168.1 )      393.2    
Deferred energy costs, net       —          (10.1 )      —          (10.1 )  
Operations and maintenance       243.9        449.2        (6.1 )      687.0    
Depreciation and amortization       89.7        189.6        (2.3 )      277.0    
Taxes other than income taxes       49.8        162.0        —          211.8    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total operating expenses       1,078.6        2,587.6        (1,176.5 )      2,489.7    
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Operating income       547.3        267.7        2.3        817.3    
Other income (expense), net       24.0        31.4        (18.6 )      36.8    
Interest expense       86.9        107.7        (7.3 )      187.3    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Income before income taxes       484.4        191.4        (9.0 )      666.8    
Income tax expense       177.3        73.5        —          250.8    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net income       307.1        117.9        (9.0 )      416.0    
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests       (13.1 )      (0.7 )      10.0        (3.8 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net income attributable to Allegheny Energy, Inc.     $ 294.0      $ 117.2      $ 1.0      $ 412.2    
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

  
(a) Represents elimination of transactions between reportable segments. 
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Capital expenditures and identifiable assets by segment were as follows:  
   

NOTE 13:  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS, DERIVATIVE INSTR UMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES  

Allegheny determines the fair value of assets and liabilities based on the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants and based on assumptions that market participants would use when pricing an asset or liability, including assumptions about risk 
and the risks inherent in valuation techniques and the inputs to valuations. This includes not only the credit standing of counterparties and the 
impact of credit enhancements, but also the impact of Allegheny’s own nonperformance risk on its liabilities. Allegheny uses a fair value 
hierarchy based on whether the inputs to valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained 
from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect the Company’s own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants 
would use. The fair value hierarchy includes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value as described below.  
   

In some cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may meet the definition of more than one level of fair value hierarchy. The lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its totality determines the applicable level in the fair value hierarchy.  
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(In millions)    
Merchant  

Generation    
Regulated 
Operations    Other (b)    Eliminations (a)     Total 

2009                

Capital expenditures     $ 233.4    $ 932.8    $ —      $ —        $ 1,166.2 
Identifiable assets     $ 4,284.6    $ 7,286.7    $ 74.7    $ (56.9 )    $ 11,589.1 

2008                

Capital expenditures     $ 347.2    $ 646.9    $ —      $ —        $ 994.1 
Identifiable assets     $ 4,268.8    $ 6,567.0    $ 91.3    $ (116.1 )    $ 10,811.0 

2007                

Capital expenditures     $ 406.8    $ 441.6    $ —      $ —        $ 848.4 
Identifiable assets     $ 4,177.5    $ 5,882.2    $ 48.3    $ (201.4 )    $ 9,906.6 
  
(a) Represents elimination transactions between reportable segments. 
(b) Represents identifiable assets not directly attributable to segments. 

Level 1   —  Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets. 

Level 2 
  

—
  

Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not 
active; and model-derived valuations for which all significant inputs are observable market data. 

Level 3   —  Unobservable inputs significant to the fair value measurement supported by little or no market activity. 
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Allegheny’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following:  
   

See Note 11, “Pension Benefits and Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” for information related to fair value measurements of 
pension and other postretirement benefit plan assets.  

All derivatives, except those for which an exception applies, are recorded in Allegheny’s Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. 
Derivative contracts that have been designated as normal purchases or normal sales are not subject to mark to market accounting treatment, and 
their effects are included in earnings at the time of contract performance.  

Certain derivative contracts that hedge an exposure to variability in expected future cash flows attributable to a particular risk or 
transaction have been designated as cash flow hedges. Allegheny’s hedge strategies include the use of derivative contracts to manage the 
variable price risk related to forecasted sales and forecasted purchases of electricity. These contracts held at December 31, 2009 expire at 
various dates through May 2012.  

For cash flow hedges, changes in the fair value of the derivative contract are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), 
to the extent they are effective at offsetting changes in the hedged item, until earnings are affected by the hedged item. Changes in any 
ineffective portion of the hedge are immediately recognized in earnings.  

For derivative contracts that have not been designated as normal purchase or normal sales or designated as part of a hedging relationship, 
unrealized and realized gains and losses are included in revenues or expenses on the Consolidated Statements of Income, depending on relevant 
facts and circumstances.  

The following table disaggregates the net fair values of derivative assets and liabilities, before netting of cash collateral and FTR 
obligation, based on their level within the fair value hierarchy. This table excludes derivatives that have been designated as normal purchases or 
normal sales.  
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     December 31, 2009     December 31, 2008   
(In millions)    Assets    Liabilities     Assets    Liabilities   
Cash equivalents (a)     $ 194.2    $ —        $ 333.8    $ —      
Derivative instruments (b):             

Current       128.3      (24.5 )      302.9      (22.4 )  
Non-current       —        (9.7 )      9.8      (11.9 )  

              
  

             
  

Total derivative instruments       128.3      (34.2 )      312.7      (34.3 )  
              

  
             

  

Total recurring fair value measurements     $ 322.5    $ (34.2 )    $ 646.5    $ (34.3 )  
              

  

             

  

  
(a) Cash equivalents represent amounts invested in money market mutual funds and are valued using Level 1 inputs. 
(b) Before netting of cash collateral and FTR obligations. 

     December 31, 2009     December 31, 2008 

(In millions)    

Derivative 
 

Assets    

Derivative 
 

Liabilities     
Net Derivative  

Assets (Liabilities)     

Derivative 
 

Assets    

Derivative 
 

Liabilities     

Net Derivative 
 

Assets 

Level 1     $ 31.9    $ (4.7 )    $ 27.2      $ 10.5    $ —        $ 10.5 
Level 2       0.2      (29.5 )      (29.3 )      112.4      (34.3 )      78.1 
Level 3       96.2      —          96.2        189.8      —          189.8 

              
  

      
  

             
  

      

Total     $ 128.3    $ (34.2 )    $ 94.1      $ 312.7    $ (34.3 )    $ 278.4 
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Derivative assets and liabilities included in Level 1 primarily consist of exchange-traded futures and other exchange-traded transactions 
that are valued using closing prices for identical instruments in active markets. Derivative assets and liabilities included in Level 2 primarily 
consist of commodity forward contracts and interest rate swaps. Derivatives included in Level 2 are valued using a pricing model with inputs 
that are observable in the market, such as quoted forward prices of commodities, or that can be derived from or corroborated by observable 
market data. Derivative assets included in Level 3 consist of FTRs and are valued using an internal model based on data from PJM annual and 
monthly FTR auctions.  

The following table shows the expected settlement year for derivative assets and (liabilities) outstanding before netting of cash collateral 
and the FTR obligation at December 31, 2009:  
   

The following table shows the expected settlement year for derivative assets and (liabilities) outstanding before netting of cash collateral 
and FTR obligation at December 31, 2008:  
   

The following tables provide a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance of FTR derivative assets measured at fair value (Level 
3):  
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(In millions)    2010     2011     2012     2013    Total   

Level 1     $ 31.8      $ (1.0 )    $ (3.6 )    $ —      $ 27.2    
Level 2       (24.2 )      (4.1 )      (1.0 )      —        (29.3 )  
Level 3       96.2        —          —          —        96.2    

       
  

      
  

      
  

             
  

Net derivative assets (liabilities)     $ 103.8      $ (5.1 )    $ (4.6 )    $ —      $ 94.1    
       

  

      

  

      

  

             

  

(In millions)    2009    2010     2011     2012    Total 

Level 1     $ 0.7    $ 10.6      $ (0.8 )    $ —      $ 10.5 
Level 2       90.0      (9.3 )      (2.6 )      —        78.1 
Level 3       189.8      —          —          —        189.8 

              
  

      
  

             

Net derivative assets (liabilities)     $ 280.5    $ 1.3      $ (3.4 )    $ —      $ 278.4 
              

  

      

  

             

(In millions)    2009     2008   

Balance at January 1     $ 189.8      $ 150.0    
Total realized and unrealized gains (losses):       

Included in earnings, in operating revenues       (164.2 )      (9.4 )  
Included in regulatory assets or liabilities       (82.9 )      (5.1 )  

Purchases, issuances and settlements       153.5        54.3    
Transfers in / out of Level 3       —          —      

       
  

      
  

Balance at December 31     $ 96.2      $ 189.8    
       

  

      

  

Amount of total gains (losses) included in earnings attributable to the change in unrealized gains (losses) related to 
Level 3 assets held at December 31     $ (3.6 )    $ (36.8 )  
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The following table shows the volume of derivative contracts held by Allegheny at December 31, 2009 and their respective contract 
expiration dates, excluding contracts designated as normal purchase or normal sale:  
   

At December 31, 2009, Allegheny held derivative contracts for the sale or purchase of power that were entered into to hedge the variable 
price risk related to forecasted sales and purchases of power and were designated as cash flow hedging instruments for accounting purposes. 
Changes in the fair value of these hedging instruments representing the effective portion of the hedge are reported in accumulated other 
comprehensive income (loss) and subsequently reclassified into earnings when the forecasted transaction is settled and impacts earnings. 
Allegheny also held derivative contracts at December 31, 2009 that were not designated as part of a cash flow hedge relationship or as normal 
purchase normal sale. Changes in the fair value of these contracts are reported in revenues on a mark-to-market basis. These derivatives include 
contracts for the forward purchase and sale of gas that settle in 2010 and that were entered into to hedge a portion of the value of a capacity 
contract related to the Kern River Pipeline but that do not qualify for cash flow hedge accounting. Interest rate swaps include three interest rate 
swap agreements with an aggregate notional value of $343 million that were entered into during 2003 to substantially offset three existing 
interest rate swaps with the same counterparty. The 2003 agreements effectively locked in a net liability and substantially eliminated future 
income volatility from the interest rate swap positions.  

Allegheny also holds FTRs that generally represent an economic hedge of future congestion charges that will be incurred in connection 
with Allegheny’s load obligations. These future obligations are not reflected on Allegheny’s Consolidated Balance Sheets, and the FTRs are 
not designated for cash flow hedge accounting. As a result, the timing of recognition of gains or losses on FTRs will differ from the timing of 
power purchases, including incurred congestion charges. Allegheny acquires its FTRs in an annual auction through a self-scheduling process 
involving the use of auction revenue rights (“ARRs”) allocated to members of PJM that have load serving obligations. Allegheny initially 
records FTRs and an FTR obligation payable to PJM at the annual FTR auction price, and subsequently adjusts the carrying value of remaining 
FTRs to their estimated fair value at the end of each accounting period prior to settlement. Changes in the fair value of FTRs held by 
Allegheny’s unregulated subsidiaries are included in operating revenues as unrealized gains or losses. Unrealized gains or losses on FTRs held 
by Allegheny’s regulated subsidiaries are recorded as regulatory assets or liabilities.  
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(In millions)    2010    2011    2012    Total 

Forward sales of electricity (MWh):              

Designated as cash flow hedges       3.2      4.5      —        7.7 
Not designated as cash flow hedges       0.3      —        —        0.3 

Forward purchases of electricity (MWh):              

Designated as cash flow hedges       0.2      0.1      0.6      0.9 
Not designated as cash flow hedges       0.3      —        —        0.3 

FTRs (MWh)       26.0      —        —        26.0 
Gas contracts—Kern River (decatherms):              

Forward sales of gas       20.5      —        —        20.5 
Forward purchases of gas       21.4      —        —        21.4 

Interest rate swaps (notional dollars):              

Interest rate swap agreements (fixed rate to floating rate)     $ 143.0    $ 200.0    $ —      $ 343.0 
Interest rate swap agreements (floating rate to fixed rate)     $ 143.0    $ 200.0    $ —      $ 343.0 
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The recorded fair values of derivatives at December 31, 2009 were as follows:  
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(In millions) 

  Power Contracts     
Gas  

Contracts 
 

-Kern  
River   

  Interest 
 

Rate  
Swaps   

  

FTRs 

  

Gross  
Derivatives   

  

Netting   

  

Net  
Derivatives   

  

FTR  
Obligation (a)   

  

Collateral   

  
Balance  
Sheet  

Derivatives     Sales     Purchases                     

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:     
Derivative assets:                        

Current    $ 0.3      $ —        $ —        $ —        $ —     $ 0.3      $ (0.3 )    $ —        $ —        $ —        $ —      
Long-term      0.6        —          —          —          —       0.6        (0.6 )      —          —          —          —      

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

            
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total derivative assets      0.9        —          —          —          —       0.9        (0.9 )      —          —          —          —      
Derivative liabilities:                        

Current      (12.1 )      (4.8 )      —          —          —       (16.9 )      (1.4 )      (18.3 )      —          0.1        (18.2 )  
Long-term      (1.5 )      (5.9 )      —          —          —       (7.4 )      (0.3 )      (7.7 )      —          3.0        (4.7 )  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

            
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total derivative liabilities      (13.6 )      (10.7 )      —          —          —       (24.3 )      (1.7 )      (26.0 )      —          3.1        (22.9 )  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
            

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Total designated      (12.7 )      (10.7 )      —          —          —       (23.4 )      (2.6 )      (26.0 )      —          3.1        (22.9 )  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
            

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:     
Derivative assets:                        

Current      0.9        —          44.4        —          96.2     141.5        (13.2 )      128.3        (96.2 )      (27.5 )      4.6    
Long-term      —          —          —          —          —       —          —          —          —          —          —      

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

            
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total derivative assets      0.9        —          44.4        —          96.2     141.5        (13.2 )      128.3        (96.2 )      (27.5 )      4.6    
Derivative liabilities:                        

Current      (0.9 )      (1.7 )      (12.4 )      (6.1 )      —       (21.1 )      14.9        (6.2 )      —          —          (6.2 )  
Long-term      —          (0.9 )      —          (2.0 )        (2.9 )      0.9        (2.0 )      —          —          (2.0 )  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

            
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total derivative liabilities      (0.9 )      (2.6 )      (12.4 )      (8.1 )      —       (24.0 )      15.8        (8.2 )      —          —          (8.2 )  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
            

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Total not designated      —          (2.6 )      32.0        (8.1 )      96.2     117.5        2.6        120.1        (96.2 )      (27.5 )      (3.6 )  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
            

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Total derivatives    $ (12.7 )    $ (13.3 )    $ 32.0      $ (8.1 )    $ 96.2   $ 94.1      $ —        $ 94.1      $ (96.2 )    $ (24.4 )    $ (26.5 )  
      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

            

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

  
(a) The FTR obligation at December 31, 2009 is $127.9 million and is payable to PJM in approximately equal weekly amounts through the PJM planning year ending May 31, 2010. Of 

this obligation, $96.2 million has been netted against the FTR derivative asset balance and the remaining $31.7 million is included in non-derivative current liabilities on the 
consolidated balance sheet. Prior to June 1, 2009 FTR obligations were payable to PJM in monthly installments. 
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